
Vale of White Horse District Council 
Cabinet agenda - Friday, 30 September 2022 

 Page 1 

Agenda 

 
Contact: Steve Culliford, Democratic Services 
Telephone: 07895 213735 
Email: steve.culliford@southandvale.gov.uk 
Date: 22 September 2022 
Website: www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk 
 

 

 

A meeting of the  

Cabinet 

will be held on Friday 30 September 2022 at 10.30 am  
135 Eastern Avenue, Milton Park, OX14 4SB 
 
To watch this virtual meeting, follow this link to the council’s YouTube channel.   
 

Cabinet Members: 
Councillors  
Emily Smith (Chair)  Debby Hallett 
Bethia Thomas (Vice-Chair)  Helen Pighills 
Andy Crawford Sally Povolotsky 
Neil Fawcett Judy Roberts 
 
 

Alternative formats of this publication are available on request.  These 
include large print, Braille, audio, email and easy read. For this or any 
other special requirements (such as access facilities) please contact the 
officer named on this agenda.  Please give as much notice as possible 
before the meeting. 
 
Patrick Arran 
Head of Legal and Democratic 
 

Agenda 

 

Open to the Public including the Press 
 

1. Apologies for absence  
  
To record apologies for absence.   
 

2. Minutes  
(Pages 4 - 7)  
  
To adopt and sign as a correct record the minutes of the Cabinet meeting held on 22 July 
2022.   

mailto:carole.nicholl@whitehorsedc.gov.uk
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/
https://www.youtube.com/c/SouthandValeCommitteeMeetings


Vale of White Horse District Council 
Cabinet agenda - Friday, 30 September 2022 

 Page 2 

 

3. Declarations of interests  
  
To receive declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests, other registrable interests and 
non-registrable interests or any conflicts of interest in respect of items on the agenda for 
this meeting. 
 

4. Urgent business and chair's announcements  
  
To receive notification of any matters which the chair determines should be considered as 
urgent business and the special circumstances which have made the matters urgent, and 
to receive any announcements from the chair. 
 

5. Public participation  
  
To receive any questions or statements from members of the public that have registered 
to speak.   
 

6. Recommendations and updates from other committees  
  
To consider any recommendations to Cabinet from other committees.   
 

7. Hackney carriage fares  
(Pages 8 - 38)  
  
To consider the head of legal and democratic’s report.   
 

8. Adoption of powers from Oxfordshire County Council under Land 
Drainage Act  

(Pages 39 - 45)  
  
To consider the head of housing and environment’s report.   
 

9. Great Coxwell Conservation Area Appraisal and Boundary Review 
Adoption  

(Wards Affected: Watchfield and Shrivenham)  
 
(Pages 46 - 63)  
  
To consider the head of planning’s report.   
 

10. Update on the Corporate Transformation Programme, and the 
Technology and Customer Workstreams  

(Pages 64 - 77)  
  
To consider the report of the Deputy Chief Executive – Transformation and Operations.   
 
 



Vale of White Horse District Council 
Cabinet agenda - Friday, 30 September 2022 

 Page 3 

11. Business case for Transforming IT and Systems of Planning and 
Regulatory Services  

(Pages 78 - 82)  
  
To consider the report of the Deputy Chief Executive – Transformation and Operations.   
 

12. Corporate Performance Report - Quarter 1, 2022/23  
(Pages 83 - 139)  
  
To consider the head of policy and programmes’ report.   
 

13. Climate Action Plan Performance Report - Quarter 1, 2022-23  
(Pages 140 - 184)  
  
To consider the head of policy and programmes’ report.   
 

14. Budget monitoring - quarter 1, 2022/23  
(Pages 185 - 190)  
  
To consider the head of finance’s report.   
 

15. Treasury outturn 2021/22  
(Pages 191 - 211)  
  
To consider the head of finance’s report.   
 

16. Exclusion of the public, including the press  
  
To consider whether to exclude members of the press and public from the meeting for the 
following item of business under Part 1 of Schedule 12A Section 100A(4) of the Local 
Government Act 1972 and as amended by the Local Government (Access to Information) 
(Variation) Order 2006 on the grounds that:  
(i) it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraph 3, Part 

1 of Schedule 12A of the Act, and  
(ii) the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in 

disclosing the information.   
 
 

Exempt information under section 100A(4) of the Local Government 
Act 1972  

  

17. Business case for Transforming IT and Systems of Planning and 
Regulatory Services  

(Pages 212 - 241)  
  
To note the confidential appendix to the report of the Deputy Chief Executive – 
Transformation and Operations.   
 



 

Vale of White Horse District Council – Cabinet minutes - Friday, 22 July 2022  

Minutes 

of a meeting of the 

Cabinet 

 

 
held on Friday 22 July 2022 at 10.30 am 
at 135 Eastern Avenue, Milton Park, OX14 4SB  
 
 

Open to the public, including the press 
 

Present in the meeting room:  
Cabinet members: Councillors Bethia Thomas (Vice-Chair - in the chair), Neil Fawcett, 
Helen Pighills, Sally Povolotsky and Judy Roberts 
Officers: Steve Culliford (Democratic Services) 
 
Remote attendance:  
Cabinet members: Councillors Andy Crawford and Debby Hallett  
Officers: Patrick Arran (Head of Legal and Democratic), John Backley (Technical Services 
Manager), Jayne Bolton (Community Wellbeing Manager), Simon Hewings (Head of 
Finance), Jeremy Lloyd (Broadcasting Officer), Jo Paterson (Active Communities Team 
Leader), Mark Stone (Chief Executive)  
Guests: Councillor Hayley Gascoigne (Chair of the Climate Emergency Advisory 
Committee)  

 
 

118. Apologies for absence  
 
Councillor Emily Smith (Chair) had sent her apologies for absence.  Councillor Bethia 
Thomas, the Vice-Chair, took the chair for this meeting.   
 

119. Minutes  
 
RESOLVED: to adopt as a correct record the minutes of the Cabinet meeting held on 24 
June 2022 and agree that the chair signs them as such.   
 

120. Declarations of interests  
 
None 
 

121. Urgent business and chair's announcements  
 
None 
 

122. Public participation  
 
Three members of the public had registered to speak at the meeting.   
 

Page 4

Agenda Item 2



 

Vale of White Horse District Council – Cabinet minutes - Friday, 22 July 2022  

(1) Lizzie Pugh made a statement and gave a presentation, requesting Cabinet to 
provide a splash park in Faringdon.  The presentation set out the need for a splash 
park, provided estimated costs, and suggested the best location for the facility.   
 
The Cabinet member for healthy communities thanked Lizzie for her statement and 
welcomed the idea for a splash park in Faringdon.  However, the council would be 
unable to fund the installation and ongoing costs alone.  Instead, the Cabinet 
member suggested ways in which a splash park could be progressed by raising 
funds from other sources and working together with other partners.  The Cabinet 
member reported that the council would bear this idea in mind when working on plans 
and strategies for leisure activities across the Vale.  Councillors encouraged Lizzie to 
contact the council’s enablement team to provide details of funding sources.  There 
would be a need for partnership working to achieve this, in which the council could 
take part.   
 

(2) Julie Mabberley had submitted a question on behalf of the Wantage and Grove 
Campaign Group.  The question, which was read out in her absence, related to the 
Active Communities Strategy, which was on the agenda for this Cabinet meeting.  It 
asked when performance indicators, targets and measures would be produced for 
the council’s strategy.   
 
The Cabinet member for healthy communities reported that following the adoption of 
the strategy, the council would prepare a delivery plan, with targets and performance 
measures.  It was hoped that this would be brought to Cabinet for approval by the 
end of the year.  In the meantime, the council continued to provide a range of active 
communities’ initiatives and opportunities, particularly supporting residents with long-
term health conditions post-Covid and for families that needed support with children’s 
activities.   
 

(3) Honorary Alderwoman Joyce Hutchinson asked a question regarding the new leisure 
strategy, which was due to be published approximately one year ago, and as this had 
not happened, was the Active Community Strategy a replacement?   If so, was the 
section 106 money to be allocated according to the original legal agreements made 
by the council and the developers?   
 
The Cabinet member for healthy communities reported that the impact of Covid-19 
had required the re-allocation of resources and therefore work on this had been 
delayed.  The active communities’ strategy was one of a suite of strategies that would 
be part of our overarching healthy communities strategy and address many of the 
health and wellbeing priorities of the council’s Corporate Plan.  Officers were working 
with Sport England to secure relevant external support and expertise to develop a 
district wide leisure facilities strategy that would sit within the same suite of 
strategies.  This would outline needs across the district and would provide evidence 
to inform the new Joint Local Plan.  
  
Section 106 funds earmarked for terminated Wessex Leisure Centre project 
remained allocated until the most appropriate, beneficial and deliverable uses of the 
funds were determined.  The council was engaging with stakeholders on this.  The 
section 106 funds had to be spent in accordance with the original spending criteria, 
for example funds allocated towards swimming could only be spent on swimming-
related projects.   

 
 

Page 5



 

Vale of White Horse District Council – Cabinet minutes - Friday, 22 July 2022  

123. Recommendations and updates from other committees  
 
Cabinet received updates from other committees, including the Scrutiny Committee, the 
Joint Audit and Governance Committee, and the Climate Emergency Advisory Committee.    
 

124. Active communities’ strategy  
 
Cabinet considered the head of policy and programmes’ report, which proposed a new 
active communities’ strategy.  The strategy’s vision was ‘be active, be healthy, be happy’.  
The strategy had six key aims to:  

 enable everyone to be active 

 create healthier communities through walking and cycling 

 maximise the potential of our natural environment 

 build the skills base of our communities 

 provide effective communication, promotion and consultation 

 provide collaborative partnerships and funding advice 
 
A delivery plan would be brought to Cabinet later in the year.   
 
The Scrutiny Committee had welcomed the strategy and had made suggestions for 
improvements, which had been included in the policy proposed to Cabinet.   
 
Cabinet welcomed the strategy as it provided opportunities to increase the general health 
of Vale residents by getting people more active and lead to improved health.  Small 
changes could have significant benefits.  Councillors suggested that using the green 
environment would help meet the strategy’s aims.   
 
RESOLVED: to approve the Active Communities’ Strategy, attached at appendix 1 to the 
head of policy and programmes’ report to Cabinet on 22 July 2022.   
 

125. New car park order - consultation results  
 
Cabinet considered the head of development and corporate landlord’s report.  This set out 
the outcome of public consultation exercise and proposed a new car park order and policy.   
 
The Cabinet member for finance and corporate assets welcomed the report and praised 
officers for the work that had been put into developing the new car park order and policy.  
This brought the council’s car park order and policy up to date to support the civil parking 
enforcement introduced in November 2021.  It also brought the council into line with most 
councils in the country and would make the car parking service more efficient, and more 
transparent for the public.   
 
Cabinet noted that the only objection to the car park order was to the time allowed for free 
parking, an issue that was not related to civil parking enforcement but could be considered 
later in the year when Cabinet reviewed its car parking fees and charges.   
 
Cabinet welcomed the new car park orders and policy.  The new policy brought together 
existing and updated policy elements to set out how the council delivered its parking 
service.  It also was linked to the active communities’ strategy and the council’s general 
direction of travel in its corporate plan to encouraging greener thinking.   
 
Cabinet noted that the report referred to two car park orders.  The Cabinet member 
explained that one car park order covered the Vale district, whereas the other covered the 

Page 6



 

Vale of White Horse District Council – Cabinet minutes - Friday, 22 July 2022  

Rye Farm and Hales Meadow car parks which, although located just outside the district 
boundary, were owned and managed by the council.   
 
The report also proposed that the council joined PATROL, the Parking and Traffic 
Regulations Outside London Adjudication Joint Committee, as a member.  This committee 
enabled all councils with car park orders to carry out civil enforcement of parking 
contraventions and to exercise their legal functions.  Cabinet supported the council 
becoming a member of the PATROL joint committee and noted that the appointments of a 
member and substitute member to this committee were decisions to be made by the 
leader.   
 
RESOLVED to:  
 
(a) agree the making of new 2022 car park orders having considered the comments 

made during the consultation period;  
 
(b) authorise the head of legal and democratic to make the new order and to determine 

the date it comes into effect;  
 
(c) adopt the new Joint Management Parking Policy, set out in Appendix C to the head 

of development and corporate landlord’s report to Cabinet on 22 July 2022;  
 
(d) agree to the Vale of White Horse District Council joining PATROL (Parking and 

Traffic Regulations Outside London) Adjudication Joint Committee as a member;  
 
(e) request the leader to appoint Councillor Neil Fawcett to represent the Vale of White 

Horse District Council on the PATROL Adjudication Joint Committee for the 
remainder of this council until May 2023; and  

 
(f) request the leader to appoint Councillor Andrew Crawford as the named substitute in 

respect of the appointment under (e) above.   
 
 
 
 
The meeting closed at 11.20 am 
 
 
 
 
Chair:        Date:  

Page 7



Cabinet Report 

 
Report of Head of Legal and Democratic 

Author: Laura Driscoll 

Telephone: 01235 422561 

E-mail: laura.driscoll@southandvale.gov.uk 

Wards affected: all 

 

Cabinet member responsible: Helen Pighills 

Tel: 01235 534446 

E-mail: helen.pighills@whitehorsedc.gov.uk 

To: CABINET 

Date: 30 September 2022 

 

 
 

Hackney carriage fares 

Recommendations 

Cabinet is recommended to  
 

(a) consider the results of the consultation at Appendix B 
 

(b) adopt the proposed maximum hackney carriage fares at Appendix C with effect 
from 1 October 2022 

 

Purpose of Report 

1. To report on the results of a recent consultation in order that the Cabinet can set 
maximum fares for journeys carried out by Vale of White Horse licensed hackney 
carriages within the Vale of White Horse district. 

Corporate Objectives  

2. The relevant strategic objectives are ‘Working in an open and inclusive way’ and 
‘Building healthy communities’.  

Background 

3. Between March and May 2021, we carried out a consultation on some proposed 
changes to the Joint Taxi Licensing Policy and as part of that process, we received 
some requests to review the maximum tariff journeys carried out by Vale of White 
Horse licensed hackney carriages within the Vale of White Horse district, to ensure it 
was set at an appropriate level. 

Page 8

Agenda Item 7

mailto:laura.driscoll@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:helen.pighills@whitehorsedc.gov.uk


Proposed fares 

4. There is a suggested method (created by Guildford Borough Council) for calculating a 
hackney carriage tariff which we initially looked at. However this resulted in extremely 
high figures when compared to our neighbouring authorities. As much of Vale of White 
Horse is a rural district, these fares seemed excessively high especially when 
considering that some people rely on taxis for their main mode of transport. 

5. We therefore took our existing tariff figures and applied the annual inflation (CPI) for 
every year since it was last reviewed, which produced figures which are closer in line 
with neighbouring authorities. 

6. The proposed hackney carriage fares which went out to consultation are attached at 
Appendix A.  

7. We also proposed reducing the number of tariffs by introducing a new charge for 
additional passengers in vehicles which carry more than four passengers, with the aim 
of removing any confusion for passengers who would have been charged different 
amounts for the same journey if one of those journeys was for more than four 
passengers. 

Consultation 

8. The consultation ran from 29 June 2022 to 3 August 2022. A survey link was sent 
directly to all 186 hackney carriage proprietors who between them hold licences for 271 
hackney carriage vehicles, and details included in the taxi newsletter sent to all licence 
holders on 6 July 2022. A notice was placed in local newspapers and at the council 
offices in accordance with section 65 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1976. In addition we held a drop-in session at Great Western Park 
District Centre on Tuesday 5 July and officers have visited each of the ranks in the 
district at least twice during that period.  

9. A report on the results of the consultation can be found at Appendix B.  

10. There were 46 responses to the consultation, and the officer comments on the responses 
within Appendix B include how some the suggested amendments have been 
incorporated into the proposed new tariff at Appendix C.  

11. If we adopt the tariff proposed in Appendix C, Vale of White Horse will be the joint 16th 

highest tariff in the country (out of 349 councils) for a two mile journey on Tariff 1. This 
is based on data accessed at www.phtm.co.uk/taxi-fares-league-tables on 16 
September 2022. A table of the top 25 fares including the year the tariff was last 
changed by that council is shown below.  

Position Council 2 mile fare Last change 

1 London (Heathrow) £13.40 2022 

2 Guildford £10.00 2022 

3= Epsom & Ewell £9.80 2022 

3= London £9.80 2022 

5 Luton Airport £9.70 2020 

Page 9

https://www.phtm.co.uk/taxi-fares-league-tables


6 Stevenage £8.70 2022 

7= Mid Sussex £8.40 2022 

7= Watford £8.40 2017 

9= Huntingdonshire £8.30 2022 

9= Uttlesford £8.30 2021 

11= Broxbourne £8.20 2022 

11= Carrick £8.20 2022 

11= Hart £8.20 2022 

11= Wokingham £8.20 2022 

11= Worthing £8.20 2022 

16 Brentwood £8.10 2022 

17= Breckland £8.00 2022 

17= Coventry £8.00 2022 

17= Maidstone £8.00 2022 

17= Reading £8.00 2021 

17= Rushcliffe £8.00 2022 

17= Stroud £8.00 2022 

17= Torridge £8.00 2022 

17= Tunbridge Wells £8.00 2022 

25= Isle of Man £7.90 2022 

25= Restormel £7.90 2022 

The figures for some neighbouring local authorities can be found in the table below. 
West Oxfordshire are in the process of consulting on an increase to their fares, which if 
agreed as proposed would change their figures to those shown in brackets.  

39 Oxford City £7.60 2021 

53 West Berks £7.40 2021 

75 Cotswold £7.10 2022 

145 Swindon £6.70 2017 

228 (61) West Oxon £6.20 (£7.20) 2017 (2022) 

246 Buckinghamshire £6.00 2021 

310 Cherwell £5.56 2013 

Implementation 

12. The new fares take effect from 1 October 2022 and drivers will be allowed a period of 
one month to get their meters updated with their meter company representative. 

Page 10



Future reviews 

13. As the cost of living continues to increase, we are open to reviewing the tariff again 
within the next 12 months. 

Options 

14. The Cabinet may further alter the figures in Appendix C as they consider appropriate.  

Climate and ecological impact implications 

15. There are no anticipated climate and ecological implications arising from the adoption 
of the proposed policy. 

Financial Implications 

16. Any council decision that has financial implications must be made with the knowledge 
of the council’s overarching financial position. For Vale, the position reflected in the 
council’s medium-term financial plan (MTFP) as reported to Full Council in February 
2022 showed that the council was able to set a balanced budget for 2022/23, but that 
there is expected to be a budget gap in future years.  

17. This future funding gap is predicted to increase to over £3.7 million by 2026/27. As 
there remains no certainty on future local government funding, following the 
announcement of a one-year spending review by government, and as the long-term 
financial consequences of the Coronavirus pandemic remain unknown, this gap could 
increase further. Every financial decision made needs to be cognisant of the need to 
address this funding gap in future years. 

18. There are no anticipated financial implications arising from the adoption of the 
proposed policy. 

Legal Implications 

19. Section 65(1) of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 states that 
a district council may fix the rates or fares for journeys within the district, and all other 
charges in connection with the hire of a hackney carriage.  

20. Under section 65(4), where there are objections to a proposed set of fares, the district 
council shall set a further date, not later than two months after the first specified date [4 
August 2022 was the first specified date, on which the fares would have come into 
force if there were no objections] on which the fares shall come into force with or 
without modifications as decided by them after consideration of the objections.  

21. Under section 65(6), on the coming into operation of a table of fares made by a council 
under this section for the district, any table of fares previously made shall cease to 
have effect. 

Risks 

22. Failure to properly consider the objections and failure to set the new fares to take effect 
from 1 October could result in the council not complying with the relevant legislation as 
detailed above.  

Page 11



Other implications 

23. Whilst officers are mindful of the current cost of living increases and the need to set a 
tariff to support licence holders who are running a business, increasing the tariff any 
higher than suggested will have an impact on the users that need the service the most, 
namely those on lower income and those with disabilities. However, if a tariff is not set, 
licence holders would be able to set their own rates which could also impact on people 
that rely on taxis most. 

Conclusion 

24. Cabinet is recommended to  

(a) consider the results of the consultation at Appendix B 
(b) adopt the proposed maximum hackney carriage fares at Appendix C with effect 

from 1 October 2022 

 

Appendices 

 Appendix A – Proposed hackney carriage fares which went out to consultation 

 Appendix B – Report on consultation  

 Appendix C – Proposed new hackney carriage fares  

 

Page 12



Appendix A – Proposed hackney carriage fares which went out to consultation 

The CPI increase since 2014 (when the previous tariff was set) is 17.5%. Using this 
percentage rounded to the nearest 5p produces the figures as below.  

There are three proposed tariffs depending on time of day, day of the week and holidays as 
shown in the below table:  

 For any journey starting:  The tariff 
level is:  

06:00 - 22:59  Tariff 1 

23:00 - 01:59  Tariff 2 

All day on Sundays, Bank Holidays, Public Holidays and Easter Sunday 

20:00 - 23:59 Christmas Eve and New Year’s Eve  

02:00 - 05:59  Tariff 3 

All day Christmas Day, Boxing Day and New Year’s Day 

 
The below table shows the proposed starting charge and subsequent charges for distance 
after 1 mile and for any waiting time. 

  
  

Tariff 1 Tariff 2 Tariff 3 

Flag fall £5.40 £6.70 £7.25 

Inclusive miles 1 1 1 

Subsequent 176 yd or 161 m (1/10 mile)  £0.27 £0.35 £0.40 

Waiting time per minute or part thereof  £0.27 £0.35 £0.40 

 
Some examples of journey costs are below:  
 

2 miles £8.10 £10.20 £11.25 

3 miles £10.80 £13.70 £15.25 

5 miles £16.20 £20.70 £23.25 

10 miles £29.70 £38.20 £43.25 

Proposed extra charges are shown in the below table 

Carrying more than 4 passengers £1 per extra passenger (regardless of distance) 

Soiling charge  £100 maximum 

 
 
 

Page 13



 

 

Proposed Taxi Tariff for Vale of 

White Horse 

APPENDIX B: REPORT ON CONSULTATION 
 
AUGUST 2022 
 

 

 

This report includes the following: 

BACKGROUND TO THE ENGAGEMENT 
METHODOLOGY 
ENGAGEMENT COMMUNICATION 
SURVEY AND FULL RESULTS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 14



BACKGROUND TO THE ENGAGMENT 

In March 2021 we asked proprietors, residents and businesses for their views on 
some proposed changes to our Joint Taxi Licensing Policy. As part of that process, 
we received some requests to review the tariff to ensure it was set at an appropriate 
level. 
 
We looked at the previous tariff set in 2014 and adjusted the figures to take in to 
account inflation since that date. We have also reduced the number of tariffs by 
introducing a new charge for additional passengers in vehicles which carry more 
than four passengers. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 15



METHODOLOGY  

The following summarises the methodology for the Taxi Tariff Consultation. 

 There were 186 email notifications issued to proprietors which provided a link 
to the proposed tariff, online survey and details about how to take part. A copy 
of the email notification can be found in this report. A link to the survey was 
also included in the newsletter sent to all taxi licence holders on 6 July. 

 The website was updated with the consultation documentation. A detailed 
online survey was used, offering drivers and proprietors the opportunity to 
indicate their level of agreement with the proposed tariff. If respondents 
disagreed overall with the tariff, they then had the chance to state which parts 
of the tariff they disagreed with. A free text box was provided. 

 The survey was aimed at taxi drivers and proprietors licensed by the district 
council. However, individuals/ members of the public could also make general 
comments if they wished.  

 Drivers and proprietors had the opportunity to attend a drop-in session 
at Great Western Park Community Centre on Tuesday 5 July between 1pm 
and 4pm to discuss the tariff with licensing officers before providing 
comments. 

 A five-week consultation period was open for submitting responses from 
Wednesday 29 June until midnight on Wednesday 3 August 2022.  

Reporting methodology 

 A total of 46 completed responses were received. In addition, we received 37 
partial responses (these were not included in the total as they had only been 
partially completed). We also manually added 4 email responses to the 
consultation once the survey had closed. 

 We received 1 late response a day after the consultation had closed therefore 
it was not included in the total responses.  

 The full results to the consultation are included in this report, alongside an 
officer response.  

 Any personal information supplied to us within the comments that could 
identify anyone has been redacted and will not be shared or published in the 
report. Further information on data protection is available in our general 
consultation’s privacy statement on our website.  

 Some spelling, grammatical and punctual errors in the original comments 
raised have been corrected. 

 

 

 
 

 

Page 16

https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/northern-neighbourhood-community-centre-at-gwp/
https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/vale-of-white-horse-district-council/get-in-touch/consultations/


ENGAGEMENT COMMUNICATION 
 

A copy of the email notification is provided below.  
 
Subject: Proposed Taxi Tariff for Vale of White Horse: have your say 
 
Dear [NAME] 
 
You may recall that in March 2021 we asked for your views on some proposed 
changes to our Joint Taxi Licensing Policy. You can view the adopted policy on our 
website. As part of that process, we received some requests to review the tariff to 
ensure it was set at an appropriate level. 
 
We looked at the previous tariff set in 2014 and adjusted the figures to take into 
account inflation since that date. We have also reduced the number of tariffs by 
introducing a new charge for additional passengers in vehicles which carry more 
than four passengers. 
 
We would now like to know what you think of the new proposed tariff.  
 
This consultation runs from Wednesday 29 June until midnight on Wednesday 3 
August 2022.  
 
As the cost of living continues to increase, we are open to reviewing the tariff again 
within the next 12 months. 
 
How to comment 
The quickest and easiest way to comment is to click here to use our online comment 
form. 
 
Note that this is a unique link just for you and is tied to your email address. If you 
would like to forward this message to anybody else, please refer them to the public 
link to the survey. 
 
Drop-in session 
If you would like to discuss the tariff with one or our licensing officers before 
providing your comments, please come along to our drop-in session at Great 
Western Park Community Centre on Tuesday 5 July between 1pm and 4pm. 
 
What happens next 
Once the consultation period ends, we will collate and review all the responses. The 
process for adopting the new tariff is as follows:  

 If we receive any objections to the tariff, we will need to refer the matter to 
Cabinet for review. This would take place at the end of September 2022 and 
we could not adopt the new tariff until after that meeting has taken place.  

 If we do not receive any objections, the new tariff will take effect in Vale of 
White Horse from 4 August 2022. 

Page 17

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/vale-of-white-horse-district-council/taxis-and-private-hire/taxi-licensing-policy/
https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/vale-of-white-horse-district-council/taxis-and-private-hire/taxi-licensing-policy/
https://files.smartsurvey.io/2/0/OKKYRV8D/Proposed_Vale_Tariff.pdf
https://app.smartsurvey.co.uk/survey/collect/mail/view/id/%5bSURVEYLINK%5d
https://app.smartsurvey.co.uk/survey/collect/mail/view/id/%5bSURVEYLINK%5d
https://survey.southandvale.gov.uk/s/TaxiTariffConsultation_Vale2022/
https://survey.southandvale.gov.uk/s/TaxiTariffConsultation_Vale2022/
https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/northern-neighbourhood-community-centre-at-gwp/
https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/northern-neighbourhood-community-centre-at-gwp/


Once the new tariff comes into place, you will need to update your taxi meter with 
your meter company representative. We will allow a period of 1 month for this to be 
done. The garage will check and seal your meter at the time of your next compliance 
test. 
 
We will publish the new tariff, along with the consultation statement and a 
consultation summary report on our website. 
 
We look forward to hearing your views. 
 
Kind regards 
 
Laura Driscoll 
Licensing Team Leader 
Vale of White Horse District Council 
  

 
If you have any questions about the proposed tariff, please 
email licensing.unit@whitehorsedc.gov.uk or call 01235 422556 (you will need to 
leave your name and number and we will call you back).  
 
If you have any queries about the survey or require it in an alternative format (for 
example: large print, Braille, audio, email, Easy Read or alternative languages) 
please email haveyoursay@southandvale.gov.uk or call 01235 422425. 
 
Opt out: If you do not wish to receive emails like this from us, please 
email licensing.unit@whitehorsedc.gov.uk or call 01235 422556. Please note, we 
may still need to contact you for certain consultations if we have a legal obligation to 
do so.  
  
Data protection: Please refer to our privacy policy regarding how your personal 
data is used for this consultation, available on the consultation page of our website. If 
you would like to know more about the council’s data protection registration or to find 
out about your personal data, please visit our website.  

Page 18

mailto:licensing.unit@whitehorsedc.gov.uk
mailto:haveyoursay@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:licensing.unit@whitehorsedc.gov.uk
https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/vale-of-white-horse-district-council/get-in-touch/consultations/
https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/vale-of-white-horse-district-council/about-the-council/privacy/data-protection/


SURVEY AND FULL RESULTS 

A copy of the survey is provided below which includes the full results alongside an 
officer response. 

 
 

This survey is aimed at taxi drivers and proprietors licensed by the district council. If 
you're an individual/ member of the public and would like to comment, you can do so 
by completing the general comments box at the end of the survey. 
 
You may recall that in March 2021 we asked for your views on some proposed 
changes to our Joint Taxi Licensing Policy. As part of that process, we received 
some requests to review the tariff to ensure it was set at an appropriate level. 
 
We looked at the previous tariff set in 2014 and adjusted the figures to take into 
account inflation since that date. We have also reduced the number of tariffs by 
introducing a new charge for additional passengers in vehicles which carry more 
than four passengers. 
 
We would now like to know what you think of the new proposed tariff.  
 
This consultation runs from Wednesday 29 June until midnight on Wednesday 3 
August 2022.  
 
As the cost of living continues to increase, we are open to reviewing the tariff again 
within the next 12 months. 
 
Drop-in session 
If you would like to discuss the tariff with one or our licensing officers before 
providing your comments, please come along to our drop-in session at Great 
Western Park Community Centre on Tuesday 5 July between 1pm and 4pm. 
 
What happens next? 
Once the consultation period ends, we will collate and review all the responses. The 
process for adopting the tariff is as follows:  
 

 If we receive any objections to the tariff, we will need to refer the matter to 
Cabinet for review. This would take place at the end of September 2022 and 
we could not adopt the tariff until after that meeting has taken place.  

 If we do not receive any objections, the tariff will take effect in Vale of White 
Horse from 4 August 2022. 

 

Page 19

https://files.smartsurvey.io/2/0/OKKYRV8D/Proposed_Vale_Tariff.pdf
https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/northern-neighbourhood-community-centre-at-gwp/
https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/northern-neighbourhood-community-centre-at-gwp/


Once the tariff comes into place, you will need to update your taxi meter with your 
meter company representative. We will allow a period of 1 month for this to be 
done. The garage will check and seal your meter at the time of your next compliance 
test. 
 
We will publish the tariff, along with the consultation statement and a consultation 
summary report on our website. 
 
Queries? 
If you have any questions about the proposed tariff or require the documents in an 
alternative format (for example large print, Braille, audio, email, Easy Read and 
alternative languages), please email licensing.unit@whitehorsedc.gov.uk or call 
01235 422556.  
 
Personal details 
If you are responding as a driver or proprietor you are required to provide either your 
name, or trading name and email address to ensure we can contact you if we require 
any further clarification on your comments. If you are responding as a 
individual/member of the public, or other you do not need to provide this information 
but can do so if you wish. Any personal information you provide to the council within 
your comments that could identify you will not be published in the consultation report. 
Further information on data protection is available in our privacy statement. 
 
By clicking 'next page' you confirm you are happy for your response to be 
used in the survey analysis and results. Your responses may be included as 
valid answers, even if you do not click 'finish' at the end of the survey. 
 

A bit about you...  
  

1. Are you responding as:  

Answer Choices 
Response 
Percent 

Response 
Total 

1 
a driver/proprietor 
licensed by the district 
council 

  
 

93.48% 43 

2 
an individual/member of 
the public 

  
 

2.17% 1 

3 Other (please specify):   
 

4.35% 2 

 
answered 46 

skipped 0 

Other (please specify): (2) 

1 ID: 194470070  looking at the cost of taxi and inflation i think it should be 
more than the proposed tariff.  
 

Page 20

mailto:licensing.unit@whitehorsedc.gov.uk
https://files.smartsurvey.io/2/0/A5UC5WWI/27_01_2021_privacy_policy__general_consultations.pdf


1. Are you responding as:  

(An officer response to this comment has been provided in 
the ‘anything else’ question) 

2 ID: 196910754  Hackney carriage driver 
 

 
 

2. Which district council are you licensed by?  

Answer Choices 
Response 

Percent 
Response 

Total 

1 
Vale of White 
Horse 

  
 

95.35% 41 

2 South Oxfordshire   
 

4.65% 2 

3 Both  0.00% 0 

4 Another council  0.00% 0 

 
answered 43 

skipped 3 

  

3. Please provide either your name, or trading name:  

Answer Choices 
Response 
Percent 

Response 
Total 

1 Responses have been removed 100.00% 36 

 

4. Please provide your email address:  
 
We ask for your email address to ensure we can contact you if we require 
any further clarification on your comments. Further information on data 
protection is available in our privacy statement.  

Answer Choices 
Response 
Percent 

Response 
Total 

1 Responses have been removed 100.00% 34 

 

  

Page 21



Proposed tariffs  
This section of the survey could only be answered by drivers and proprietors. 
 
We are asking for your views on three proposed tariffs depending on: 
 

 time of day 

 day of the week 

 holidays 
 
The tariff only applies to journeys which start and finish within Vale of White Horse 
district, not for journeys to destinations outside of the district. 
 
You can view the proposed tariff documents here. 
 
If you wish to compare these figures with other tariffs, the Private Hire Trade Monthly 
magazine produces a monthly table of all council tariffs which you can access here. 
 
Please note, If we receive any objections to the tariff, we will need to refer the matter 
to Cabinet for review. This would take place at the end of September 2022 and we 
could not adopt the tariff until after that meeting has taken place. If we do not receive 
any objections, the tariff will take effect in Vale of White Horse from 4 August 2022. 
 
5. Overall, how far do you agree or disagree with the proposed tariff? 
 

 
 
 
 
 

15.0%

15.0%

7.5%

10.0%

52.5%

Strongly agree

Agree

Neither agree nor
disagree

Disagree

Strongly disagree

I don't know

No comment

Page 22

https://files.smartsurvey.io/2/0/OKKYRV8D/Proposed_Vale_Tariff.pdf
https://www.phtm.co.uk/taxi-fares-league-tables


6. You have disagreed with the proposed tariff for Vale of White Horse. To help 
us understand your reason(s) why, please answer the following statements. 
 
Proposed tariff times, days and dates 

Strongly 
agree 

Agree 
Neither agree nor 

disagree 
Disagree 

Strongly 
disagree 

I don't 
know 

No 
comment 

Response 
Total 

0.00% 
0 

8.00% 
2 

8.00% 
2 

32.00% 
8 

48.00% 
12 

0.00% 
0 

4.00% 
1 

25 

 
Minimum charge (‘flag fall’) for each tariff 

Strongly 
agree 

Agree 
Neither agree nor 

disagree 
Disagree 

Strongly 
disagree 

I don't 
know 

No 
comment 

Response 
Total 

0.00% 
0 

0.00% 
0 

4.00% 
1 

24.00% 
6 

68.00% 
17 

0.00% 
0 

4.00% 
1 

25 

 
Subsequent distance charge 

Strongly 
agree 

Agree 
Neither agree nor 

disagree 
Disagree 

Strongly 
disagree 

I don't 
know 

No 
comment 

Response 
Total 

0.00% 
0 

0.00% 
0 

4.00% 
1 

28.00% 
7 

64.00% 
16 

0.00% 
0 

4.00% 
1 

25 

 
Waiting time charge 

Strongly 
agree 

Agree 
Neither agree nor 

disagree 
Disagree 

Strongly 
disagree 

I don't 
know 

No 
comment 

Response 
Total 

0.00% 
0 

0.00% 
0 

12.00% 
3 

32.00% 
8 

52.00% 
13 

0.00% 
0 

4.00% 
1 

25 

 
Charge per additional passenger when carrying 5+ passengers 

Strongly 
agree 

Agree 
Neither agree nor 

disagree 
Disagree 

Strongly 
disagree 

I don't 
know 

No 
comment 

Response 
Total 

0.00% 
0 

0.00% 
0 

8.00% 
2 

20.00% 
5 

68.00% 
17 

4.00% 
1 

0.00% 
0 

25 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 23



7. If you have any comments on the above statements, please provide your 
comments below. 
 

ID number Comments Officer response 

195014987 Tariff should start from about £5.70 and 
subsequently 30-35p , same for waiting 
time 

This would result in a 2 mile tariff 1 
fare of £8.70 to £9.20 which would 
place us 6th highest in the country. 

195377497 Minimum fare £6 and £3/mile 

 

Using the figures suggested on the 
left would result in a 2 mile tariff 1 
fare of £9 which would place us 6th 
highest in the country. 

196747202 

196752602 

196752799 

196771613 

196969788 

196973571 

196976040 

196976211 

196976250 

196976265 

196976387 

197052802 

197053193 

197053237 

197053291 

196976285 

 

Dear Sir / Madam, 
 
I strongly object to the proposed tariffs set 
by the council because there has not been 
any proper consultation with the drivers or 
their representatives. I would like for the 
council to have a meeting with the South 
Oxfordshire and Vale of white horse taxi 
drivers’ association (S&VTDA) to discuss a 
new tariff on my behalf as I am a member 
of S&VTDA or arrange a formal discussion 
/ meeting with all drivers. 
 
The existing Vale tariff is extremely out of 
date; it should have been review at least 
once if not twice before, as it is well over 8 
years old. In that time the cost of goods 
and services has risen by more than 35% 
since Jan 2014 (www.hl.co.uk). 
 
The new proposed tariff by the council 
does not reflect the rise in the cost of living. 
Using the 5-tariff structure of the old Vale 
Tariff from 2014 is ok with a few, changes 
but the figures are not very good and are 
very unfair to the drivers. 
 
New Tariff will need to consider every 
aspect of the cost-of-living crisis including 
the rising costs of overall License fees from 
the council. 
 
For Now, ONLY 1 Example on that matter: 
 
A 10-mile fare at the current rates on the 
Vale tariff, for up to 4 passengers and 

The survey is the consultation 
route along with the newspaper 
notice, public notice at the office, 
newsletter, drop in session and 
rank visits conducted. Given there 
are almost 700 hackney carriages 
and over 1000 drivers licensed by 
the two districts, having a meeting 
with all drivers is not viable. The 
council is not aware of any drivers’ 
association and will make contact 
separately for future reference. 

Page 24



more than 4 passengers between 23:00-
01:59 and 02:00-05:59. 
23:00-01:59 = Car T2: £32.70 MPV T4: 
£33.20 Result: £0.50 02:00-05:59 = Car 
T3: £36.80 MPV T5: £38.50 Result: £1.70 
 
Why would any Driver have an MPV? For 
50p or £1.70 extra? I for one, don’t think 
so. 
And on your new proposal £1 extra 
regardless of distance is also a disgrace. 
Where’s the incentive for the drivers to 
have an MPV? 
 
Fuel alone has risen by more than 82% in 
ONLY just over 2 years and PLEASE don’t 
forget fuel is our biggest expense in our 
line of work. Transport sector has been hit 
the hardest with this cost-of-living crisis. 
These are official figures for fuel from the 
Central Government. 
As the current proposed tariff cannot be 
adopting, it will now need to be taken to 
the Cabinet for a review as per council 
guidelines. 
I expect that the council will now look to 
schedule a meeting with the S&VTDA 
before the cabinet meeting, to discuss 
what would be an acceptable tariff for all 
concerned, which then can take to the 
cabinet. 
 
Finally, we appreciate that the council will 
look to review the tariff situation in the next 
12 months due to the cost-of-living crisis. 
South Oxfordshire and Vale of white horse 
taxi drivers’ association (S&VTDA) 

 

196952363 I am writing this email to you after 
attending the consultation on Tuesday 5th 
July about the proposed new tariffs. To be 
honest it was a lot of people all shouting at     
and nothing really being discussed. Most 
definitely there needs to be a tariff increase 
& I really don’t think having gone over the 
proposal that the increase is enough. In 
particular the main issue I have is with the 
tariff increases for 6 seaters & up. I am 
going to give you an example of why I 
disagree with this, on Saturday 2nd July I 

As outlined above, officers do not 
support additional separate tariffs 
for MPVs to use when they are 
carrying more than four 
passengers, as this could be open 
to fraud as the driver would be able 
to select the tariff at any time. 
However in view of the concerns 
outlined in the response, officers 
are happy to propose an increase 

Page 25



took 6 people from Bella Napoli in 
Abingdon to Courtyard of Marriott, Milton 
gate. 
 
On tariff 1= £14-49 
On tariff 2= £18-60 This was the fare 
 
On your new tariff it would amount to £17-
01 + £2-00 for 2 extra people totaling £19-
01, an increase of 41 pence. I would hardly 
call that a price increase considering that 
there has,nt been an increase for over 8 
years. When I spoke to     about this he 
said that it was to save confusion with the 
5 tariffs, for who ? 
 
Surely cars up to 4 passengers only need 
3 tariffs & 5 seats & above need 5 tariffs. 
 
So if these guidelines are followed in a 
compliance test the right vehicles will then 
have the right tariffs. But at the moment it 
appears that some/not all have 5 tariffs. As 
I previously said I would like to know who 
is confused with the 5 tariffs. It’s on the 
tariff sheet which should be displayed in 
each vehicle, for passengers and the 
driver. I really think this should be left as it 
was before & many drivers I spoke to were 
in agreement with me that it should be 
priced on tariff 2 for 5 or more passengers. 
Anyway this is something for the licensing 
team to consider. I look forward to your 
reply. 

to the ‘extra’ charge per passenger 
to £1.50. 

194993049 Tariff 1 should be minimum of £6. 
Tariff 2 £7.50 
Tariff 3 £8.50 
 
Price per mile minimum has to be £3.00 

Setting the flag fall to £6 and 
distance charge to £0.30 would 
result in a 2 mile tariff 1 fare of 
£9.00 which would place us 6th in 
the country. 

195321149 This year we have seen a 90% increase in 
fuel so far. Doubling of tyre costs. A 
massive increase in new and second hand 
car costs nearly double in some cases. 18 
months off work due to Covid & crippling 
inflation. Tariff one of £5.40 Flag and £2.70 
a mile is lower than anyone currently 
charges in South Oxford Region. We used 
these exact Tariffs 12 years ago in 2010. I 

Setting the flag fall to £6.20 and 
distance charge to £0.325 would 
result in a 2 mile tariff 1 fare of 
£9.45 which would place us 6th in 
the country. 

Page 26



propose to change Tariff 1 to £6.20 Flag 
and £3.25 a mile to keep up with inflation 
for both Vale and S.O.D.C. Councils. 

196969788 It is NOT the councils job to set a tariff they 
believe is correct but to account for those 
running businesses to be enabled to make 
a profit. 
Please remember those of us who have 
NO choice to be VAT registered are losing 
20% as well as facing additional 
employment cost required by law. 
We therefore require a higher tariff than 
solo operators. 
If you continue with this proposal without a 
proper face to face consultation as a 
matter of urgency with members from the 
trade who actually care about the service 
we provide I feel you have failed in your 
duties. 
I would also like to remind you of the 270% 
increase you have put on the cost of our 
licence plates and wish for clarification of 
the consultation for this procedure and the 
public response before you implemented 
this. 

Given there are almost 700 
hackney carriages and over 1000 
drivers licensed by the two 
districts, having a face to face 
meeting with all drivers is not 
viable. We have conducted an 
online/postal survey, placed the 
newspaper notices required by 
law, held a drop in session and 
conducted a number of rank visits 
during the consultation period.  
 
Increases in vehicle and operator 
licence fees are advertised in local 
newspapers as per the 
requirements of section 70 of the 
Local Government (Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1976. In addition a 
notice is displayed at the council 
offices. The standard vehicle 
licence plate fee was £310 in 2014 
and is now £341 which is an 
increase of 10%. 
 

 

Proposed tariffs  
This section of the survey could only be answered by individuals / members of the public. 
 
We are proposing three new tariffs depending on:  
 

 time of day  

 day of the  

 week holidays  
 
The tariff only applies to journeys which start and finish within Vale of White Horse 
district, not for journeys to destinations outside of the district. The tariff also doesn't 
apply for pre-booked journeys. 
 
You can view the proposed tariff document here.  
 
If you wish to compare these figures with other tariffs, the Private Hire Trade Monthly 
magazine produces a monthly table of all council tariffs which you can access here.  
 
 
 
 

Page 27



  

Page 28



8. If you have any comments on the tariff, please provide them below. 
  

ID number Comments Officer response 

196910754 Considering the cost of fuel and cost of 
living the tariff you are trying to set is too 
low 

The figures proposed in the 
consultation tariff put Vale of White 
Horse joint 16th highest tariff (out of 
349 councils) for a two mile 
journey on Tariff 1. 

195517557 This increases does not reflect inflation, 
and with these we will not be able to find 
taxis through night, another tariff needed 
through night please. Also no minibuses 
will oparate for weddings etc, no incentives 
for them in this tariff. 

The figures proposed in the 
consultation were based on an 
inflationary rise. There are different 
tariffs depending on the time of day 
so there is already a proposed 
‘night’ tariff. 

 

Anything else? 
 
9. If you have any other comments on the proposed tariff, please provide them 
below. 
 

ID number Comments Officer response 

196000663 I have just seen the proposed tariff charges 
and my personal thoughts are that they are 
too high, I'd be in favour of leaving them as 
they are, elderly people such as OAP's 
would be impacted the most, so on that 
basis I'd prefer to stay as we are. 
 
Also we need to consider the loss of 
business due to a price rise, overall the taxi 
drivers would be no better off, people vote 
with their feet on matters like this, trade 
would decrease. 
 
Just some thoughts there. 

It is a useful point to bear in mind 
that if hackney carriages are 
perceived to be too expensive, 
people may choose alternatives. 

194470070 looking at the cost of taxi and inflation I 
think it should be more than the proposed 
tariff.  

It is still very cheap. A minimum journey 
should be £8.00 

The figures proposed in the 
consultation tariff put Vale of White 
Horse joint 16th highest tariff (out of 
349 councils) for a two mile 
journey on Tariff 1. Setting the flag 
fall to £8 would result in a 2 mile 
tariff 1 fare of £10.70 which would 
place us 2nd highest in the country. 

Page 29



196752602 It will take more driver out of business. 
 

There is insufficient detail to be 
able to respond to this comment.  

195412023 
195429283 
 

Times: 
Tariff 2 timings should be brought forward 
and as a result, others adjusted 
accordingly as follows: 
Tariff 1 (Tariff 2 for MPV): 06:00 - 20:59 
Tariff 2 (Tariff 3 for MPV): 21:00 - 00:59 
Tariff 3 (Tariff 4 for MPV): 01:00 - 05:59 
Christmas Eve & New Year’s Eve: 18:00 - 
23:59 
 
Minimum Charges should be as follows: 
T1 = £6 T2 = £7 T3 = £8 T4 = £10 
 
Reduction of Tariffs for MPV: 
If the council wishes to move away from 
the additional tariffs (4&5 for MPV) then 
they should provide a suitable alternative. 
£1 per additional passenger is not 
sufficient, MPV uses up a lot more in fuel 
and general running costs are much 
higher. As a result, the council may find 
that there will not be enough MPVs. For 
the customer it may be bad news as if 
there are 5 of them the cost of an 
additional taxi depending on distance 
would be considerable compared to one 
MPV fare.  
Example: 5 People on Council Proposed 
Tariff 2 at 23:30, Abingdon to Wantage – 
10 miles 
On the old Tariff system, it would have 
been something like £43.25 (£0.50 per mile 
more on MPV per tariff). The starting rate 
should also be slightly higher as per the 
per-mile charge (maybe £0.50-£1). 
Total: £43.25 approx. depending on the 
tariff start rate. 
Cost £8.65 per head 
£38.20 per taxi as 2 cars would be required 
= a Total of £76.40, 
Cost £15.28 per head - almost double the 
amount for the customer and the possibility 
of another vehicle not being available, not 
to mention 2 vehicles going to the same 
destination creating more pollution than we 
must, when that vehicle could have taken 
someone else home. 

The different timings proposed are 
based on a higher rate for 
unsociable hours and officers 
would not support a large number 
of tariffs that could confuse 
customers. As outlined above, 
officers do not support additional 
separate tariffs for MPVs to use 
when they are carrying more than 
four passengers, as this could be 
open to fraud as the driver would 
be able to select the tariff at any 
time. However in view of the 
concerns outlined in the response, 
officers are happy to propose an 
increase to the ‘extra’ charge per 
passenger to £1.50. Officers are 
also happy to increase the soiling 
charge to £150. Increasing the 
tariff 1 distance charge to £0.30 to 
achieve the £3 per mile would 
result in a 2 mile tariff 1 fare of 
£8.40 which would place us joint 
7th highest in the country. The 
waiting time proposed in the 
consultation tariff is a rate of 
approximately £16.20 an hour. 

Page 30



Preferred Solution 1 Options: 
Reduce the tariffs to 4 rather than 3 from 5. 
For MPV - 4 Plus passenger:  
Tariff 2: 06:00-20:59 
Tariff 3: 21:00-00:59 
Tariff 4: 01:00-05:59 (& Bank Holidays) 
(Tariff 4 would be identical to Tariff 3 with 2 
changes: 
1) £10.00 inclusive of 1st mile. 
2) £0.45 pen per mile. 
Solutions 2 options? 
£4 / £5 / £6? Additional fee for Carrying 
more than 4 passengers per person 
or 
£7 / £8 / £9? Additional flat fee for any 
additional Passengers after 4. – Potentially 
up to 8 passengers. 
 
Waiting Charge: 
The waiting time needs to be adjusted to 
reflect what happens. When people keep a 
driver waiting whilst they are still 
chatting/saying long goodbyes / keeping us 
waiting at food places, most of the time at 
busy periods for us. It hinders our income 
when that happens. 
These should be: 
Waiting time per minute or part thereof: 
Tariff 1 - £0.35 
Tariff 2 - £0.40  
Tariff 3 - £0.45  
Tariff 4 - £0.50  
 
Soiling Charge of £100: 
Although it’s an increased amount, which 
was never sufficient. It still wouldn’t be 
sufficient when you consider the following 
factors: 
In the normal case scenario when it 
happens: 
The driver will be off-road with immediate 
effect – Loss of earnings 
The driver will be having to deal with the 
smell initially. 
Then the cost to get the vehicle Valeted 
which can be anything from £70 to £100. 
The Vehicle may be off-road due to smell 
for 2/3 days – further loss of earnings 
Listed above are genuine situations a night 
shift taxi driver will deal with, So the £100 

Page 31



is not sufficient but we are also not asking 
for £300/£400 – something reasonable…. 
something in between £150 to £200 
 
Tariff 1 adjustments: 
 
Due to the rise of the cost of living and 
running costs for the Taxi driver, not only 
the fuel has shot up in price but other costs 
including council fees, repairs, tires etc. 
£0.30 rise per mile don't cover the costs 
when you consider all factors. 
The drivers are usually waiting around for 
long periods without a job and then when 
he/she gets one, it must be able to help to 
cover quieter periods. because most of the 
area covered by the vale is rural and the 
fares are so few and far between. So, a 
minimum of £3 per mile during the day 
would help in covering the rising costs. If 
the council does not seriously consider 
something like this, there may not be many 
taxi drivers on the rank as they just can’t 
make ends meet. 
 
Finally, we appreciate that the council will 
look to review the tariff situation in the next 
12 months due to the cost of living crisis. 

 

195321149 This year we have seen a 90% increase in 
fuel so far. Doubling of tyre costs. A 
massive increase in new and second hand 
car costs nearly double in some cases. 18 
months off work due to Covid & crippling 
inflation. Tariff one of £5.40 Flag and £2.70 
a mile is lower than anyone currently 
charges in South Oxford Region. We used 
these exact Tariffs 12 years ago in 2010. I 
propose to change Tariff 1 to be minimum 
£6.00 Flag and £3.00 a mile to keep up 
with inflation for both Vale and S.O.D.C. 
Councils. 

The figures proposed in the 
consultation tariff were based on 
an inflationary rise. Using the 
figures suggested on the left would 
result in a 2 mile tariff 1 fare of £9 
which would place us 6th highest in 
the country. 

194993049 The charge of £1per passenger when 
carrying more than is absolutely 
unacceptable. 

 

This change is proposed to avoid 
the need for additional separate 
tariffs for MPVs to use when they 
are carrying more than four 
passengers, as this could be open 

Page 32



to fraud as the driver would be able 
to select that tariff at any time. 

194540007 What I think minimum fare should be at 
least £6 on tariff 1 because how the rise of 
fuel price gone up. At least 30 pence 161 
metre. Thanks 

Setting the flag fall to £6 and 
distance charge to £0.30 would 
result in a 2 mile tariff 1 fare of 
£9.00 which would place us 6th 
highest in the country. 

194535702 The issue of 5 passenger or more, should 
be traffic 2. 

 

As outlined above, officers do not 
support additional separate tariffs 
for MPVs to use when they are 
carrying more than four 
passengers, as this could be open 
to fraud as the driver would be able 
to select the tariff at any time. 

194526757 I agree with the flag fall, but would like to 
see the distance charge at a round figure 

Increasing the tariff 1 distance 
charge to £0.30 (the nearest round 
figure) would result in a 2 mile tariff 
1 fare of £8.40 which would place 
us joint 7th highest in the country. 

194469367 Agree with all increases but as an mpv 
vehicle owner totally disagree on adding a 
pound extra per person regardless of 
distance.  
It should be left as before & compliance 
tests should be more stringent that ONLY 
MPV,s or vehicles that carry more than 4 
passengers have 5 tariffs, vehicle’s 
carrying 4 or less passengers would only 
need 3 tariff’s. I look forward to your reply 

As outlined above, officers do not 
support additional separate tariffs 
for MPVs to use when they are 
carrying more than four 
passengers, as this could be open 
to fraud as the driver would be able 
to select the tariff at any time. 
However in view of the concerns 
outlined in the response, officers 
are happy to propose an increase 
to the ‘extra’ charge per passenger 
to £1.50. 

196910754 You guys have put all the prices up on 
plates and other bits and bobs but the tariff 
is too low 

The figures proposed in the 
consultation tariff put Vale of White 
Horse joint 16th highest tariff (out of 
349 councils) for a two mile 
journey on Tariff 1. 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 33



 
 
 
Our commitment to equal access for all  
 
We are committed to making sure that residents have equal access to all council 
services. Please help us to keep track of how successfully we are achieving this by 
ticking the appropriate boxes below. 
 
All questions are optional. All information is confidential and will only be used to help 
us monitor whether views differ across the community. 

 
10. So we can understand if we have reached everyone we need to, please tell 
us the first part of your postcode in the box below, e.g., OX10 

 
34 respondents provided us with a postcode and the results are shown below. 

Buckinghamshire Oxfordshire 

HP1 OX1 (X3) 
OX2 (X4) 
OX4 (X3)  
OX11 
OX12 (X2) 
OX13 (X4) 
OX14 (X12) 
 
SN7 (X4) 

 
11. Which of the following describes how you identify yourself? 
 

Page 34



 
12. How old are you? 
 

 
 

88.9%

5.6%

5.6%

Male

Female

Neither of the above (specify
below if you would like to)

Prefer not to say

I identify as:

2.7%

59.5%

27.0%

5.4%

5.4%

16-24

25-34

35-44

45-54

55-64

65-74

Page 35



13. What is your ethnic group? 

Answer Choices 
Response 
Percent 

Response 
Total 

White 

1 
English, Welsh, Scottish, Northern 
Irish, British 

  
 

35.29% 12 

2 Irish  0.00% 0 

3 Gypsy or Irish Traveller  0.00% 0 

4 Any other white background   
 

8.82% 3 

Asian or Asian British 

5 Indian   
 

5.88% 2 

6 Pakistani   
 

17.65% 6 

7 Bangladeshi   
 

14.71% 5 

8 Chinese  0.00% 0 

9 Any other Asian background   
 

2.94% 1 

Black or Black British 

10 Caribbean  0.00% 0 

11 African   
 

5.88% 2 

12 Any other black background  0.00% 0 

Mixed or Multiple Ethnic Groups 

13 White and Black Caribbean  0.00% 0 

14 White and Black African  0.00% 0 

15 White and Asian  0.00% 0 

16 Any other mixed background   
 

2.94% 1 

Other Ethnic Group 

17 Arab  0.00% 0 

18 Other (please specify):   
 

5.88% 2 

 
answered 34 

skipped 12 

Other (please specify): 
 

 Prefer not to say 

 White European 
 

Page 36



14. Are your day to day activities limited because of a health problem or 
disability which has lasted or is expected to last 12 months or more?  

Answer Choices 
Response 

Percent 
Response 

Total 

1 Yes   
 

5.56% 2 

2 No   
 

88.89% 32 

3 Prefer not to say   
 

5.56% 2 

 
answered 36 

skipped 10 

 
END. 

Page 37



Appendix C – Proposed new hackney carriage fares 

 For any journey starting:  The tariff 
level is:  

06:00 - 22:59  Tariff 1 

23:00 - 01:59  Tariff 2 

All day on Sundays, Bank Holidays, Public Holidays and Easter Sunday 

20:00 - 23:59 Christmas Eve and New Year’s Eve  

02:00 - 05:59  Tariff 3 

All day Christmas Day, Boxing Day and New Year’s Day 

 
The below table shows the proposed starting charge and subsequent charges for distance 
after 1 mile and for any waiting time. 

  
  

Tariff 1 Tariff 2 Tariff 3 

Flag fall £5.40 £6.70 £7.25 

Inclusive miles 1 1 1 

Subsequent 176 yd or 161 m (1/10 mile)  £0.27 £0.35 £0.40 

Waiting time per minute or part thereof  £0.27 £0.35 £0.40 

 
Some examples of journey costs are below:  
 

2 miles £8.10 £10.20 £11.25 

3 miles £10.80 £13.70 £15.25 

5 miles £16.20 £20.70 £23.25 

10 miles £29.70 £38.20 £43.25 

Proposed extra charges are shown in the below table 

Carrying more than 4 passengers £1.50 per extra passenger (regardless of distance) 

Soiling charge  £150 maximum 

  

 

Page 38



 

 

Cabinet Report 

 

 
 

Report of Head of Development and Corporate Landlord 

Author: John Backley 

Telephone: 07917 088317 

Textphone: 18001 07917 088317 

E-mail: john.backley@southandvale.gov.uk  

Wards affected: all 

 

Vale Cabinet member responsible: Councillor Sally Povolotsky 

Tel: 01235 422520 

E-mail: sally.povolotsky@whitehorsedc.gov.uk  

To: CABINET 

Date: 30 September 2022 

 

 

Adoption of powers from Oxfordshire 

County Council under Land Drainage Act 

Recommendations 

(a) To support the request from Oxfordshire County Council (OCC) for Vale of White 
Horse District Council to adopt powers under the land drainage act as set out in 
paragraph 8 of this report 
 

(b) To recommend approving the adoption of powers under an agency agreement 
with OCC 
 

(c) Subject to Council approving the adoption of powers that Cabinet authorises the 
Head of Development and Corporate Landlord in consultation with the Head of 
Legal and Democratic to negotiate and finalise the agreement with OCC and 
enter into agreement to adopt the powers from OCC. 
 
 

 

Purpose of Report 

1. For cabinet to consider the request from Oxfordshire County Council (OCC) for the 
district councils to act as an agent of the county council in the discharge of delegated 
functions for the operation and management of the powers and responsibilities of the 

CONFIDENTIAL 

Page 39

Agenda Item 8

mailto:john.backley@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:sally.povolotsky@whitehorsedc.gov.uk


 

 

lead local flood authority (LLFA) under Sections 19, 23, 24 and 25 of the 1991 Land 
Drainage Act. 

In brief, the Functions of the Land Drainage Act 1991 that OCC are looking to 
discharge are: 

 Section 19 - flood investigations   

 Section 23 - the determination of applications for consent to alter a watercourse 

 Section 24 – investigate any nuisance caused by erecting or altering an obstruction or 
culvert in a watercourse  

 Section 25 - enforcement action (to comply with OCC policy for watercourse/ditch 
clearing enforcement)  

Corporate Objectives  

2. For the corporate plan 2020-24, carrying out this work is in line with the policy to work 
in partnership with other councils. 

Background 

3. The Flood and Water Management Act 2010 (FWMA) established OCC as Lead Local 
Flood Authority, with a responsibility for leading the coordination of flood risk 
management for surface, groundwater and smaller watercourses in its area.   Under 
this Act the functions under sections 24 and 25 of the Land Drainage Act 1991 were 
transferred to OCC. 

4. OCC as the Highway Authority has a duty to maintain the physical fabric of adopted 
highways to appropriate standards as well as a general responsibility to assert and 
protect public highway rights. Therefore, there may be occasions when OCC needs to 
consider using its powers to secure an action to maintain a watercourse or watercourse 
in the interests of safeguarding highway safety.   

5. OCC has the power under section 24 of the Land Drainage Act 1991 to require a 
person to abate a nuisance caused by erecting or altering an obstruction or culvert in a 
watercourse without the consent of the drainage board/LLFA further to section 23 of 
the Land Drainage Act 1991.   

6. OCC has the power under section 25 of the Land Drainage Act 1991 to compel certain 
persons to maintain a watercourse so that the proper flow of water is not impeded.  

7. Note: “Watercourse” is defined as “including all rivers and streams and all ditches, 
drains, cuts, culverts, dikes, sluices, sewers (other than public sewers within the 
meaning of the Water Industry Act 1991) and passages, through which water flows.  
The watercourses referred to in this note are those which are defined in the Act as 
“ordinary watercourses” rather than ‘Main rivers’ which are the responsibility of the 
Environment Agency and do not fall under this agreement. 

Delegation of functions 

8. OCC is requesting the district council to act as an agent to carry out: 

Page 40



 

 

(a) formal flood investigations under Section 19 of the Land Drainage Act 
1991 that meet specific criteria (i.e internal flooding to five or more 
properties or to one property for more than one week or flooding of critical 
infrastructure).  Appendix 1 has the formal thresholds for the investigation 
of flood incidents.  In addition, OCC request the district council 
investigates and reports on flood events at any specific location as 
requested within the Vale ‘affecting habitable dwellings’ and ‘affecting 
highways’. 

(b) the determination of applications for consent under Section 23 to alter 
watercourse 

(c) informal enforcement action under Section 24 and 25 on behalf of the 
County Council to ensure the proper flow of water (preliminary steps e.g. 
investigations, sending initial letter).  If issue remains unresolved it is 
passed back to OCC for formal enforcement action. 

9. In order to carry out this work, OCC has provided the following documents as part of 
the legal agreement available as background papers: 

(a) guidance notes for ordinary watercourse consent applications 

(b) OCC enforcement procedure and protocol S24 and S25 (including 
flowchart outlining the enforcement procedure S25, templates for informal 
letters S24). 

10. Formal investigations require a report to be provided from the council to OCC within 
agreed deadlines. 

 

Risks  

11. Both OCC and the district council have powers to investigate flooding. The County 
Council as LLFA has powers and duties under S19 of the 1991 Act in respect of 
investigations on becoming aware of a flood in its area. The District Council is a risk 
management authority under the 2010 Act and also has powers and duties as a local 
authority under the 1991 Act in respect of general drainage and flood risk 
management. 

12. As both OCC as LLFA and the district council have powers to investigate flooding, the 
risk is that it is unclear who is responsible for investigating flooding and potentially work 
is doubled up or passed from one to the other causing delay and confusion.  The 
delegation of function from OCC gives power to the Vale council to investigate any 
internal flooding to a habitable dwelling, business or infrastructure.  In addition, formal 
reports are required for flooding in accordance with the thresholds set out in appendix 
1, note this excludes flooding from main river. 

13. The risk of not having the resources to carry out the task in the agreement is mitigated 
as both sides are able to withdraw from the agreement on written notice. 

14. There is a low risk if we do not have the internal resource to carry out the service and 
we have to employ an external resource (temporary staff) and we are not able to 
recharge 100 percent of this cost to OCC.  This risk is mitigated by the terms of the 

Page 41



 

 

proposed agreement including provision for OCC to accept recharge of interim staff 
costs although the total recharge amount is capped each year. 

15. There is a low risk of resources being diverted to wide scale investigations following a 
major flood incident.  In emergency flood situations, our land drainage engineers would 
be heavily involved in associated tasks prioritised over routine work.   

16. Officers are negotiating a notice period to be three months if either side wishes to 
terminate or put the agreement ‘on hold’ which would reduce risk to the council if there 
are insufficient resources to continue carrying out the service for OCC or if the service 
becomes financially unsustainable for the Vale. 

Opportunities 

17. As part of current duties, the council’s engineering team provide expert advice to 
residents, councillors and internal teams, including major and minor planning 
applications in terms of land drainage.  Vale has carried out a number of flood 
alleviation schemes over the years.  These historic projects and the experience it 
brings provides the engineers with the ideal skills, geographical knowledge and 
understanding of land drainage to carry out the delegated functions as requested by 
OCC and to recharge for their work. 

18. The council’s engineering team has carried out the Sections (S) 19, 23, 24 and 25 work 
successfully on behalf of OCC on an informal basis since the service was brought in-
house in April 2018.   

19. The agreement allows for OCC to request flood investigations are carried out on other 
occasions other than stipulated as “additional works”, but these must be agreed by the 
engineers and can be recharged at the agreed rate. 

Climate and ecological impact implications 

20. Flood investigations and enforcement remind landowners of good practices for keeping 
water within watercourses by proper and regular maintenance. 

Financial Implications 

21. Any council decision that has financial implications must be made with the knowledge 
of the council’s overarching financial position. For Vale, the position reflected in the 
council’s medium-term financial plan (MTFP) as reported to Full Council in February 
2022 showed that the council was able to set a balanced budget for 2022/23, but that 
there is expected to be a budget gap in future years.  

22. This future funding gap is predicted to increase to over £3.7 million by 2026/27. As 
there remains no certainty on future local government funding, following the 
announcement of a one-year spending review by government, and as the long-term 
financial consequences of the Coronavirus pandemic remain unknown, this gap could 
increase further. Every financial decision made needs to be cognisant of the need to 
address this funding gap in future years. 

23. The engineering team keeps a record of the hours spent carrying out the service for 
OCC including travel costs and updates this each quarter.  The agreement sets out an 
hourly recharge fee which covers the salary costs of the engineers, plus on-costs and a 

Page 42



 

 

management fee. There is an annual payment ‘upfront’ from OCC at the start of each 
financial year (non-returnable) which covers all the Vale costs.  The cost of providing 
the service by the engineers is fully recharged to OCC up to the agreed annual limit as 
set out in the funding agreement.  Once this limit is reached authorisation is required 
from OCC for any further spend and there is no obligation on the Vale to supplement 
any funding.  The income this provides goes to supplement the land drainage budgets.  

24. Officers keep account of actual time and spends up to the budget provided by OCC 
(with regular updates each month to monitor spend and identify ahead of time any 
potential overspend).  Once the upfront payment levels are reached no further work is 
undertaken until OCC provide additional budget.  The agreement allows for requests 
for additional resource or payment from OCC during severe flooding for example and 
therefore will be subject to OCC confirmation at the time. 

25. In the past few years, the cost recharged to OCC based on hourly rates is largely within 
the budget OCC will be paying the council each year in the future.  To note however 
there have been no serious flood events during this period which would have 
potentially increased the amount of work. 

26. For the consenting work S23, the council receives an application fee of £50 per 
structure (as set out in the Act).  The council only recharges when the time spent on 
processing the application is greater than the fee received.  

27. Going forward OCC will pay up front on a non-returnable basis an annual fee.  The 
agency agreement will allow for recharging to be based on an hourly rate for the 
engineers’ work. Once the agreement is confirmed, officers will adjust the base 
budgets accordingly for income received from OCC and for the income from the 
applications for consenting work. 

Staff Implications 

28. The salary of the engineers who will carry out the delegated work is already included in 
the base budget and so this additional income will not have an impact on existing 
budgets.  The work associated with the agency agreements can be carried out using 
existing resources by the four staff members in the engineering team. Delegated 
function work may have an impact on existing projects if there were a large number of 
investigations for example following a serious flood event (non main river).  The agency 
agreement would allow negotiations between Vale and OCC in these circumstances to 
potentially seek extended timescales, and/or increase budget to allow for recruitment of 
additional resources. 

29. The council is able to withdraw and terminate the agency agreement by written notice 
with any costs pro-rata payment returned to OCC. 

Equalities Implications 
 
30. No equalities implications have been identified through the development of this 

proposal. 

Page 43



 

 

Legal Implications 

31. OCC request that the Vale council enters into an agreement under Section 101 of the 
Local Government Act 1972 and Section 19 of the Local Government Act 2000 relating 
to the management of functions under the Land Drainage Act 1991. 

32. A delegation of functions requires full council approval.  Page 19 of the Vale 
constitution, refers, Functions of the full Council 3. (o) “decide whether to accept a 
delegation from another local authority under joint arrangements”. 

33. Under General delegations, delegations to Chief Executive and Heads of Service, 
reference 7.5 the Head of Service is able “to exercise the powers delegated to the 
council under agency agreements or contracts with other councils”. 

34. Officers request that authority is given to the Head of Development and Corporate 
Landlord in consultation with the Head of Legal and Democratic to finalise the details of 
the agreement between Vale and OCC and enter into the agreement. 

35. The agency agreement sets out OCC request to Vale to carry out informal enforcement 
action under Section 24 and 25 on behalf of the County Council to ensure the proper 
flow of water (preliminary steps e.g. discussions and meetings with landowners, site 
investigations, sending initial letter), all of which can be carried out by the engineers.  If 
the issue remains unresolved it is passed back to OCC for formal legal enforcement 
action and there is no legal action taken by Vale.  There is therefore no impact on 
additional work for the legal team. 

Conclusion 

36. The district council has carried out numerous flood alleviation schemes over the years.  
The engineering team provide expert land drainage advice to residents, councillors and 
internal teams such as planning applications.  The in-house skills and knowledge can 
be therefore best applied to carry out the flood investigations, consenting and 
enforcement on behalf of OCC.   

37. The agreement allows for Vale to recharge all of their time associated with relevant 
flood investigations and be paid in advance of any work carried out. 

38. The district council can decide to withdraw this service at relatively short notice if there 
are changes to resources in the future.   

 

Background papers 
 Guidance note for ordinary watercourse consent applications 

 OCC enforcement procedure and protocol Sections 24 and 25 LDA 1991 

 Draft agreement with OCC relating to management of functions under the land 
drainage act 1991.  

Page 44



 

 

Appendix 1 
 

 
 In addition to the formal investigations as above, OCC has agreed that investigations 

should also be carried and recharged where there is any internal flooding to a 
habitable dwelling, business or infrastructure. 

 

Page 45



 

 
 

Cabinet Report 

 
Report of Head of Planning 

Author: Samantha Allen 

Telephone: 07717 274692 

E-mail: samantha.allen@southandvale.gov.uk  

Wards affected: Watchfield and Shrivenham Ward 

 

Cabinet member responsible: Cllr Debby Hallett 

E-mail: debby.hallett@whitehorsedc.gov.uk  

To: CABINET 

Date: 18 August 2022 

 

 

Great Coxwell Conservation Area 

Appraisal and Boundary Review Adoption 

Recommendations: 

(a) That the Great Coxwell Conservation Area boundary is adopted as per the proposed 
revisions shown at Appendix 1. 

(b) That the Great Coxwell Conservation Area Appraisal and Management Plan as 
amended is adopted.  

(c) To delegate to the Head of Planning in consultation with the relevant Cabinet Member 
to make minor changes, typographical corrections or non-material amendments to the 
Great Coxwell Conservation Area Appraisal and Management Plan document prior to 
formal publication and statutory notification requirements.  

 

Purpose of Report 

1. The purpose of this report is to provide a summary of the representations received 
during the public consultation on the draft Great Coxwell Conservation Area Appraisal 
and Boundary Review, to detail the changes that have been made and to seek formal 
adoption of the boundary and associated document.  

Corporate Objectives  

2. The Appraisal accords with 2020-2024 Corporate Objectives 1 (Providing the homes 
people need) and 3 (Building healthy communities). The document also forms part of 
the development plan evidence base supporting the preservation and enhancement of 
the district’s historic environment.  

Page 46

Agenda Item 9

mailto:samantha.allen@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:debby.hallett@whitehorsedc.gov.uk


 

 
 

Background 

Purpose of the Conservation Area Appraisal and Boundary Review 

3. Under Sections 69 & 71 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 
1990 local authorities have a duty to designate conservation areas and from time to 
time to review the boundaries.  Such areas are defined as ‘areas of special 
architectural or historic interest, the character or appearance of which it is desirable to 
preserve or enhance’. The Great Coxwell Conservation Area Appraisal Document is 
the mechanism by which the local authority defines the special interest of the area and 
the boundary was reviewed during the writing of the document. 

4. This appraisal and review were instigated by Great Coxwell Parish Council following on 
from their Neighbourhood Plan work. The Conservation Team assisted with proof-
reading of early drafts and produced the desk-top published version of the document 
issued for consultation.  

5. The Council were satisfied that the draft document and proposed boundary extension 
met with the tests of Historic England’s guidance for Conservation Area designation 
and appraisal and the draft documents were issued for a public consultation.  

6. An eight-week period of public consultation commenced on Wednesday 6 April 2022, 
closing on Wednesday 1 June 2022. Hard copies of the document were provided at the 
Parish Church of St Giles and Faringdon Library. We were assisted with the advertising 
of the consultation by local residents who put together much of the document.   

7. Under Section 71 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990, 
we have exercised our duty to formulate and produce proposals for the preservation 
and enhancement of the conservation area. The appraisal document once adopted will 
form part of the evidence base for the Development Plan. It should be used in the 
development management process to manage positive change within the designated 
conservation area or its setting to minimise harm and encourage preservation or 
enhancement. 

Summary of the Appraisal Document and alterations to the Proposed Boundary  

8. The appraisal document provides a summary of the history of Great Coxwell’s 
development, an assessment of its historic and architectural interest, a gazetteer of 
local interest buildings (non-listed structures) and interactive mapping showing various 
details of spatial analysis. 

9. The Conservation Team propose revisions to the existing boundary. These include 
rationalisation of the boundary where it crosses through a plot boundary and proposed 
extensions. 

Proposed changes to the Designated Boundary 

10. There are three areas where the existing Conservation Area Boundary is proposed for 
revision. The proposals are shown at Appendix 1.  

 The boundary is proposed to be rationalised to follow the domestic curtilage of 
Greenlanes at the southern end of the village, correcting an existing mapping 
anomaly partly through the garden and the existing right of way.   

Page 47



 

 
 

 The boundary is proposed to be extended at the current boundary at Holloway 
Lodge to the east to include the remaining historic spaces to the rear of properties 
along Holloway Road that extend to Dark Lane, one of the historic routeways 
around the village.  

 The boundary is proposed to be extended to the south of the church to include the 
new burial ground extension and open land that is closely surrounded by the 
historic routeway that encircles the outer limits of the village. 

Summary of consultation responses received  

11. In total, 13 responses were received during the public consultation period. 9 responses 
were via the online web survey, 2 responses were received via email and 2 responses 
were paper replies. A consultation statement summarising the detailed comments is 
attached at Appendix 2. 

12. An anonymised comment was received on behalf of the Parish Council. The local 
group who worked on the Neighbourhood Plan team produced the document.   

13. Overall, the responses received were generally supportive of the content of the 
document with two respondents welcoming the document that would help to manage 
change and one seeking to extend the boundary further to protect the natural and wild 
status of the southern fields. 

14. Two respondents commented specifically on the justification for the proposed boundary 
revisions – Historic England and a Local Resident. One respondent raised concerns 
about the further inclusion of land associated with Greenlanes. Detailed comments on 
how the Conservation Team have responded to all the comments received can be 
found in Appendix 2. Summaries of the revisions made as a result of the comments are 
detailed below. 

Proposed changes to the consultation version of the Appraisal Document 

15. The following specific changes are proposed to be made to the document following the 
public consultation: 

 Historic England identified that the County HER (Historic Environment Record) 
data was not reproduced within the document. The HER data has been sourced 
from Oxfordshire County Council. A brief summary of findings will be provided 
within the document and the relevant local finds plotted on the interactive map. 
This information does not affect the overall content of the document or any 
permitted development rights of residents and therefore no further public 
consultation is considered necessary on this element. 

 The justification for the inclusion of two new areas of the conservation area was 
not adequately drawn out in the Boundary Changes Section (Section 7) of the 
document although the information was provided elsewhere in the text. It is 
proposed to update Section 7 to repeat the descriptions found elsewhere in order 
to provide clarity on the proposed boundary revisions. As no new information is 
provided no further public consultation is considered necessary on this element. 

Page 48



 

 
 

 It is proposed to add the standard methodology information from the other adopted 
appraisals into the introductory section of the document along with a summary of 
the consultation process as per comments received from Historic England.  

Options 

16. There are three options for Cabinet: 

1) To find that the Great Coxwell Conservation Area as proposed to be extended is 
of special architectural and historic interest and designate the whole area as a 
conservation area. 

2) To find that the Great Coxwell Conservation Area as proposed to be extended is 
not of special architectural and historic interest and not to extend the designated 
area, leaving the existing boundary as the designated conservation area. 

3) To find that there is an area of special architectural and historic interest that 
extends beyond the existing boundary but that it should be different to that 
proposed. Having identified and justified the difference to designate that area the 
conservation area.  

17. Based upon officers’ assessment of Great Coxwell as presented in the Conservation 
Area Appraisal and the responses received during public consultation, it is 
recommended that the proposed extension to the boundary is adopted and the whole 
area is designated Great Coxwell Conservation Area together with adopting the 
accompanying Appraisal, which is in line with Option (1) and the recommendations 
made at the beginning of this report.  

Climate and ecological impact implications 

18. There are no anticipated negative climate or ecological implications as a result of the 
proposed boundary revision or appraisal document.  

19. At paragraph 8.1.3 the management plan section of the document encourages high 
quality and energy efficient designs to combat climate change for all proposed 
development within the conservation area.  

20. Specifically at section 8.2 the document also encourages the effective tree and hedge 
management, repair and maintenance of the village’s historic buildings and structures 
to ensure their longevity and reduce the need for new replacement as well as 
continued use of traditional materials. 

21. Conservation Area designation also specifically increases protection of trees over a 
certain size.   

Financial Implications 

22. Any council decision that has financial implications must be made with the knowledge 
of the council’s overarching financial position. For Vale, the position reflected in the 
council’s medium-term financial plan (MTFP) as reported to Full Council in February 
2022 showed that the council was able to set a balanced budget for 2022/23, but that 
there is expected to be a budget gap in future years.  

 

Page 49



 

 
 

23. This future funding gap is predicted to increase to over £3.7 million by 2026/27. As 
there remains no certainty on future local government funding, following the 
announcement of a one-year spending review by government, and as the long-term 
financial consequences of the Coronavirus pandemic remain unknown, this gap could 
increase further. Every financial decision made needs to be cognisant of the need to 
address this funding gap in future years. 
 

24. The process of designating a conservation area entails a small cost to advertise the 
designation of a new boundary to meet the statutory notification requirements as 
described in the legal implications section below. This cost can be met from within 
existing planning budgets.  

25. Dwellings within the proposed extension once designated would be required to apply 
for planning permission for certain works that no longer benefit from permitted 
development rights. In the case of these proposed changes this only affects four 
properties, three of which are already partly within the existing designated area. 

26. There will be some increased work to the council arising from the processing of those 
applications but some of the cost of processing these applications would be recovered 
from the planning fee. Additionally, there may be a small increase in overall workload 
for the service that might not be recovered because some cases will be more complex 
than average. However, having regard to the very small number of additional properties 
that the extension would cover, this impact is likely to be very modest relative to annual 
workloads. 

27. The modest costs associated with the above points will be met from existing planning 
budgets. 

Legal Implications 

21. The Appraisal meets the Council’s obligations required by the Planning (Listed Building 
and Conservation Areas) Act 1990. Under Sections 69 and 71 of the Act, the Council 
should review conservation area boundaries from time-to-time and formulate and 
publish proposals for the preservation and enhancement of any parts of their area 
which are conservation areas. This Appraisal for Great Coxwell forms part of the 
Council’s rolling programme of providing conservation area appraisals for all its 
designated conservation areas. 

22. The principal legal effect of the designation of an area as a conservation area is control 
over demolition of buildings (including structures classed as buildings in planning 
legislation) and control over works to trees. In determining applications, the council also 
has a duty under the Planning Acts to have regard to the desirability of preserving or 
enhancing the character or appearance of the area and there are less generous 
permitted development rights, under the Town and Country Planning (General 
Permitted Development) Order 2015. 

23. The Act requires that the designation of a new conservation area or variation to it be 
advertised in the London Gazette, a local newspaper and registered as a local land 
charge. The Secretary of State (DCMS) and Historic England will also be notified. 

Page 50



 

 
 

Risks 

24. No strategic or operational risks associated with the matters covered in this report have 
been identified. 

Other implications 

25. It has been confirmed that an Equality Impact Assessment is not required for this 
Conservation Area Appraisal document. The document is a supplementary guide to 
existing planning policy and statutory designation with no negative impact on 
associated policies, service users or employees. The document has been produced to 
be as accessible as possible.  

Conclusion 

26. Having regard to the evidence collected and presented in the Great Coxwell 
Conservation Area Appraisal and to the responses received during consultation, it is 
recommended that the Great Coxwell Conservation Area boundary is amended as 
proposed. It is also recommended that the Conservation Area Appraisal document is 
adopted.  

 
 

Appendices 

 Appendix 1: Great Coxwell Conservation Area Proposed Boundary Map 

 Appendix 2: Consultation Statement  

Page 51



Page 52



1 
 

Great Coxwell Conservation Area 

Appraisal and Boundary Review  

Consultation Statement 

  

Page 53



2 
 

Introduction 

1. The purpose of this statement is to provide a summary of the representations 
received during the public consultation on the Great Coxwell Conservation Area 
Appraisal and Boundary Review held between Wednesday 6 April and 
Wednesday 1 June 2022. 

Background 

Purpose of the Conservation Area Appraisal and Boundary Review 
 
2. Under Sections 69 & 71 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation 

Areas) Act 1990 local authorities have a duty to designate conservation areas 
and from time to time to review the boundaries. The Conservation Area Appraisal 
Document is the mechanism by which the local authority defines the special 
interest of these areas and they form part of the Local Authority Development 
Plan evidence base. 

3. Under Section 71 of the above act, we have exercised our duty to formulate and 
produce proposals for the preservation and enhancement of the conservation 
area.  

4. The appraisal document forms part of the evidence base for the Development 
Plan. It should be used in the development management process to manage 
positive change within the designated conservation area or its setting to minimise 
harm and encourage preservation or enhancement. 

Summary of the Appraisal Document and alterations to the Proposed 
Boundary 

5. The document provides a summary of the history of Great Coxwell’s 
development, an assessment of its historic and architectural interest by character 
area, a gazetteer of local interest buildings (non-listed structures) and a series of 
illustrative maps showing various details of spatial analysis. 

6. The Conservation and Design Team proposed revisions to the existing boundary. 
These include rationalisation of the boundary where it crosses through a building 
plot and the addition of two areas considered to contribute to the significance of 
the area.  

Summary of consultation responses received  

7. In total, 13 responses were received during the public consultation period. 9 
responses were via the online web survey, 2 responses were received via email 
and 2 responses were paper replies. 

8. A version of the paper copy of the consultation questions was originally deposited 
that had the two map extracts the wrong way round relevant to the questions. 
Corrected versions of the hard copies were replaced on the third day of 
consultation. Unfortunately, one paper copy was returned before the correct 

Page 54



3 
 

versions were issued. The respondent was local and realised the error and this 
did not affect their ability to provide comments.  

9. Overall, the responses received were generally supportive of the content of the 
document with two respondents welcoming the document that would help to 
manage change and one seeking to extend the boundary further to protect the 
natural and wild status of the southern fields. 

10. Two respondents commented specifically on the justification for the proposed 
boundary revisions – Historic England and a Local Resident. One respondent 
raised concerns about the further inclusion of land associated with Greenlanes. 
Detailed comments on how the Conservation Team have responded to all the 
comments received can be found in the table below. 

Responses 

11. The table below outlines all the responses received during the consultation with 

the Conservation Team’s response and relevant actions.  

12. Names have been removed. Respondents were invited to provide a partial 

postcode when responding in order to capture the geographical extent of 

comments on this localised consultation; postcodes have been removed from the 

table provided below.  

Conclusion 

13. Overall, the level of response was broadly as expected on this localised 

consultation.  

14. The questions asked provided specific opportunities to comment on the proposed 

boundary revisions and on the appraisal document itself. The comments received 

were useful to the team in finalising the document and boundary review.  

 

Page 55



4 
 

Rep Responding 
as 

Name of the 
business / 
organisation, 
council or 
body you are 
representing: 

How far do 
you agree or 
disagree with 
the proposed 
extension 
south of the 
church? 

How far do 
you agree or 
disagree with 
the proposed 
extension 
along Dark 
Lane? 

Overall comments Conservation and 
Design Team response 

1 an individual 
/ member of 
the public 

- Strongly agree Strongly agree - n/a 

2 an individual 
/ member of 
the public 

- Strongly agree Strongly 
disagree 

- n/a 

3 an individual 
/ member of 
the public 

Great Coxwell 
Parish Council 

Strongly agree Strongly agree I would like to see the 
conservation area extended, 
notably to the West/ South West 
of the village behind Berry Hill 
cottage - the bottom of the lane 
behind here is a 'wild field' that 
fall in behind Clover House. 
This has started to be used as a 
dumping ground by some 
residents and this field needs 
protecting as left wild. - Help 
protect the field behind Clover 
House and adjacent properties 
as it is losing it 'wild status' as 
some people are choosing to 
dump items in it and this has 
disturbed the wildlife in this 
area. 

Unfortunately it is beyond 
the remit of Conservation 
Area designation to 
include lands with wildlife 
interest - the focus of this 
designation must be the 
historic built form and land 
that was specifically 
adapted or designed to 
form part of the built 
environment. Protection of 
land for its environmental 
or wild character would be 
better achieved through 
neighbourhood planning 
or Natural England. 

P
age 56



5 
 

4 an individual 
/ member of 
the public 

- Agree Agree Good idea! In these days of 
people being able to sell land 
for housing at the drop of a hat 
it becomes necessary to protect 
areas that are vulnerable. We 
also need to ensure the village 
retains its character for the 
foreseeable future. 

Comments welcomed 
although it must be noted 
that conservation area 
designation does not 
prohibit development or 
prevent applications being 
made. The designation 
and accompanying 
appraisal serve to ensure 
where development is 
proposed it is informed by 
an understanding of an 
area's significance and 
responds appropriately. 

5 an individual 
/ member of 
the public 

- Agree - This is 
an area I 
regularly use 
for running and 
walking the 
children 

Agree - ONly 
agree to look 
for a neat 
boundary and 
existing 
covenants on 
this field 

The village is so under invasion 
of people who do not 
understand or take care of our 
neighbourhoods now we need 
to protect as much as possible 

Comments welcomed 
although it must be noted 
that conservation area 
designation does not 
prohibit development or 
prevent applications being 
made. The designation 
and accompanying 
appraisal serve to ensure 
where development is 
proposed it is informed by 
an understanding of an 
area's significance and 
responds appropriately. 

6 an individual 
/ member of 
the public 

- Agree Agree - n/a 

P
age 57



6 
 

7 an individual 
/ member of 
the public 

- Neither agree 
nor disagree - 
The review 
document is 
very 
comprehensive, 
but nowhere 
does it say why 
the field below 
the church is 
being added. 

Neither agree 
nor disagree - 
Again, the 
review 
document 
gives no 
reason for this 
extension. I 
would like to 
why. 

- Comments noted and 
welcomed. It is agreed 
that the justification for the 
proposed extensions is 
not well presented in the 
boundary revisions 
section. The appraisal 
document does describe 
why the areas proposed 
for inclusion are of 
particular significance 
worthy of inclusion and 
this has been drawn out 
into an improved summary 
of justification in Section 7 
as revised. It is 
considered the areas are 
still worthy of addition and 
the improved presentation 
of information within 
Section 7 resolves these 
comments.  

8 an individual 
/ member of 
the public 

- Agree Agree - n/a 

P
age 58



7 
 

9 an individual 
/ member of 
the public 

- Strongly 
disagree - 
Strongly 
disagree to the 
inclusion of 
Greenlanes 
rear garden; 
the property 
"Greenlanes" is 
already part of 
the existing 
conservation 
area which 
currently ends 
at the property. 
There is no 
benefit to the 
public to further 
extending the 
boundary to 
include the rear 
garden of 
Greenlanes but 
it will adversely 
impact any 
property 
owners of 
Greenlanes.  If 
there is a true 
public interest 
to include the 
rear garden of 
Greenlanes  
this would also 
incorporate the 

Agree A consultation prior to plans 
being drawn and proposed 
would have been much more 
inclusive, in particular prior 
consultation with property and 
land owners would have been 
helpful.   

The plot of Greenlanes is 
already more than 50% 
included within the 
designated boundary. The 
proposed revision here 
corrects a boundary 
anomaly where the 
existing designation 
crosses at random 
through the historic 
property boundary. In 
conjunction with the 
proposed extension to 
include the field, the 
boundary can be more 
naturally drawn to include 
the historic domestic 
curtilage of Greenlanes, 
over 50% of which is 
already within the 
designated boundary. The 
designation should not be 
considered to be a burden 
on the property owner, 
especially given that the 
building and over half its 
curtilage lies within the 
designated boundary 
meaning the current 
permitted development 
restrictions in place would 
not change as a result of 
this boundary correction.  
This public consultation 
was the first opportunity 

P
age 59



8 
 

field that it sits 
within; as the 
southern field is 
not included it 
is not logical to 
include the 
garden situated 
here.  This is 
not to say there 
is disagreement 
to the entire 
proposal; 
disagreement 
only extends to 
the inclusion of 
Greenlanes 
garden.  

for comment on draft 
proposals. Decisions are 
not made without 
consultation and therefore 
informal consultation with 
property and land owners 
prior to this formal 
consultation was not 
considered to be 
necessary.  

10 an individual 
/ member of 
the public 

- Agree Agree - n/a 

P
age 60



9 
 

11 an individual 
/ member of 
the public 

- Strongly Agree Agree I was very pleased to see that 
you were able to make use of 
my phtograph of the Great Barn 
and the Vale and White Horse 
on the cover of your excellent 
report. It was taken (with others) 
on 20th April 2013. The Vale 
District Council is welcome to 
use this image in the future for 
any of their publications. Great 
Coxwell village is quite unusual 
in that it is almost entirely built 
along the lines of a long North 
to South cul de sac. This 
confers enormous benefits with 
no through traffic, it's use as a 
pedestrian precinct, a safe 
place for children, peace and 
quiet. All of this results in a 
caring sense of commuinity. 
This status has to be protected 
in the future against any 
proposals which might be made 
to join the south of the village by 
a road to the A420 highway.  

Comments welcomed. It is 
recommended that the 
inside cover of the 
document is amended to 
include specific credit to 
Mr Rounce for the cover 
photo.  
It must be noted that 
conservation area 
designation does not 
prohibit development or 
prevent applications being 
made. The designation 
and accompanying 
appraisal serve to ensure 
where development is 
proposed it is informed by 
an understanding of an 
area's significance and 
responds appropriately. 

12  statutory 
consultee 

Historic 
England 

  
Appraisal is missing a 
methodology and public 
consultation statement from the 
introduction. 

Noted. It is recommended 
that the standard text from 
the in-house appraisals be 
added. 

Summary of special interest 
should be formatted to be more 
succinct using bullet points. 

Noted. One paragraph 
would easily form a bullet 
point list. Other 
paragraphs are already 
summarised.  

P
age 61



10 
 

Section 3.0 Statement of 
Special Interest should be re-
titled 'Character Assessment of 
Great Coxwell'  

Disagree. This section is a 
more detailed assessment 
of overall special interest. 
Character Assessment is 
at Section 6 Character 
Analysis. As there are not 
character areas is it 
suggested the heading is 
changed to character 
analysis or assessment of 
Great Coxwell to be clear 
it is the whole area. No 
action 

Spatial analysis to be included 
as a sub heading to section 3.0 
rather than an individual section 

Disagree. I do not think it 
detracts from the 
document for this section 
to read as a separate 
detailed analysis. No 
Action 

Further photographs and detail 
should be included as part of 
the section on important views 
in order to strengthen their 
protection. 

Noted. Add fig. refs to 
existing images within 
document and supplement 
as needed with new 
images. No new text 
required. 

The identified NDHA's in 
Appendix B lack indications of 
significance and justifications 

Disagree. The simple list 
of prominent features, age 
and character meet the 
requirements of HE 
guidance. No action 

A list of detracting buildings and 
spaces is also advised. 

Noted. However, there are 
very few areas in the 
village which actively 
detract. It is not 
considered necessary to 

P
age 62



11 
 

identify detracting areas at 
this time. No action. 

It is advised section 6.0 
Character Analysis is redrafted 
as a new one concerning 
'Character Areas' and these 
sub-areas should be displayed 
on an accompanying map.  

Noted. However, given the 
small nature of the 
settlement, the 
differentiation between 
north and south is all that 
is required and additional 
subdivision would not add 
to the detail already 
presented. No action. 

The Boundary Review is lacking 
in sufficient explanation and 
justification for the proposed 
boundary changes. 

Noted. It is recommended 
that the details of the 
additional interest of these 
areas as described 
elsewhere in the 
document be better 
consolidated into the 
boundary revision section.  

Further detail and an alternative 
format is advised for section 8.0 
Management Plan. 

Noted. However this 
section is consistent with 
other appraisals and 
identifies those elements 
specific to Great Coxwell. 
Further work on this 
element is not proposed. 
No action.  

13 Statutory 
consultee 

Natural 
England 

  No specific comments.  n/a 

 

P
age 63



Cabinet Report 

 

 

 

Report of Deputy Chief Executive for Operations and Transformation 

Authors: Harry Barrington-Mountford 

Telephone: 07554432156 

E-mail: Harry.Barrington-Mountford@southandvale.gov.uk  

Wards affected: All 

 

South Cabinet member responsible: Cllr Andrea Powell 

Tel: 07882 584120 

E-mail: andrea.powell@southoxon.gov.uk    

Vale Cabinet members responsible: Cllr Debby Hallett 

Tel: 07545 241013 

E-mails: debby.hallett@whitehorsedc.gov.uk  

To: CABINET 

Dates:29 September 2022 (South) 30 September 2022 (Vale) 

 

 

Update on the Corporate Transformation 

Programme, and the Technology and 

Customer Workstreams  

Recommendations 

That Cabinet is requested to note the update on the transformation programme and 
progress to date on the technology and customer workstreams.   
 

 

Purpose of report 

1. To update Cabinet members on progress implementing the council’s agreed 
transformation programme, including the proposed structure of the transformation 
team, and the further development of transformation outcomes linked to clear themes.  

Page 64

Agenda Item 10

mailto:Harry.Barrington-Mountford@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:andrea.powell@southoxon.gov.uk
mailto:debby.hallett@whitehorsedc.gov.uk


Corporate objectives  

2. Future transformation activity at the Council is fundamental to our ability to enable our 
staff and services to meet and deliver our Corporate Objectives over the coming 
months and years in what will be an increasingly challenging financial environment.  

3. The consistent approach (ensured by focusing on the clearly defined outcomes 
outlined in this paper), will drive a positive approach to transformation activity across 
the councils.  

Background 

4. South Oxfordshire Cabinet agreed the Technology Strategy and roadmap on 4 
November 2021, and the Customer Transformation Strategy and Roadmap on 2 
December 2021. 

5. Vale of White Horse Cabinet agreed the Technology Strategy and roadmap on 29 
October 2021, and the Customer Transformation Strategy and Roadmap on 3 
December 2021 

6. At the time of these decisions progressing through Cabinets, it was identified that these 
workstreams would form a significant part of our overall transformation activity.  

7. This update sets out the progress made in the establishment of the target outcomes for 
the transformation programme and the team to support delivery, and what has been 
achieved on each of the roadmaps since the decisions were made.  

Transformation Outcomes 

8. The councils must ensure staff are enabled by systems and processes, to deliver the 
high standard of services expected by service users, be they residents, businesses or 
visitors.  

9. The transformation outcomes identified below have been categorised into four key 
themes, “Customer”, “Digital, Data and Technology”, “People” and “Future Proof”. With 
three overall outcomes of “Financially Stable”, “Environmentally Positive” and “Open 
and Transparent” which apply to every area, and are driven by the priorities in the 
Corporate Plan. 

10. When undertaking transformation activity, these key themes  will be focused on to 
measure success.  
 

Page 65



 

 
11. Customer Outcomes 

a. No wrong front door – Service users will be dealt with at the first point of contact or 
directed/transferred to the right place for each contact, resulting in a seamless, single 
contact experience.  

b. Delivered once and done – For ‘single transaction’ contacts, each will result in the 
correct action being taken, reducing failure demand and the need for service users to 
undertake multiple, unnecessary contacts. 

c. Every contact right first time – Every contact along the entire customer journey should 
be clear and accurate, delivering the required information at the right time.  

d. Protect the vulnerable – Our service and system design must ensure vulnerable 
service users are identified and are supported to the fullest extent possible. 

e. Digital by default – Our systems and processes should be undertaken in the simplest, 
quickest and most efficient manner possible, using the most appropriate system 
available. 

12. Digital, Data and Technology Outcomes 

a. User centred service design – Processes and systems should be designed and 
implemented in a way which ensures the user experience is at the heart of our 
decision making. 

b. Data driven decision making – We will utilise the data we hold and are able to collect 
to ensure we make the right decisions each time, every time. 

Page 66



c. Connected anywhere anytime – Our systems will be accessible when they are 
needed where they are needed.  

d. Secure and trusted – Our systems, data and processes are safe, secure in the face of 
an ever-changing digital landscape. 

e. Accessible,– Services and processes are accessible in the ways that service users 
need to use them, ensuring that people can access our services using the means of 
contact/channel most appropriate for them. 

13. People Outcomes 

a. Supported – Our staff are supported by the processes and systems they work with, to 
deliver the outcomes required by our service users.  

b. Accountable – The systems and policies we have in place will ensure that our staff 
are accountable for their actions and decision making. 

c. Skilled – The training, and recruitment practices will ensure that our staff have the 
necessary knowledge, skills and experience to deliver the right outcomes for 
residents. 

d. Collaborative – The systems and processes we put in place should enable 
opportunities for collaboration and cross service working; we expect our staff to 
collaborate where appropriate to achieve the best outcomes. 

e. Resilient – We want to work in a way which encourages and enables resilience at  
individual, team and council-wide levels.  

14. Future Proof Outcomes 

a. Continually improving – The systems, processes and supporting policies we 
implement must be open to continuous improvement and designed with that in mind. 

b. Affordable – In an ever more challenging financial environment, we must implement 
solutions which will ensure that council operations are affordable now and into the 
future. 

c. Adaptable – Solutions must be able to flex to meet needs as they arise, no matter 
how unforeseeable they are today. 

d. Commercially focused – Systems and processes we implement must be open to 
seizing opportunities as they arise, with an entrepreneurial mindset and a solution 
focused approach. 

e. Efficient – activity will be focused on delivering solutions which are lean and deliver 
the best value for money for our residents, business and visitors.  

 
 

  

Page 67



Establishment of the Transformation Team and Governance 
 
15.  To support the delivery of transformation activities (both planned and underway), we 

must ensure that we must put in place a structure which can drive progress and 
delivery at pace. Recruitment is currently underway for the team shown below which is 
funded from existing, agreed budgets. 
 

 
 
16. This team will have oversight of all transformation activity, and will both manage 

projects/programmes directly and support transformation being managed at a service 
level. 

17. Whilst operational decision making relating to transformation activities rests at an 
officer level, members will be briefed and consulted through a newly established 
member and officer group consisting of the Cabinet Transformation Leads, Deputy 
Chief Executive Operations and Transformation, Head of Policy and Programmes and 
Council Leaders/Officers as required.  

Progress on the Technology Roadmap 

18. The Technology Roadmap is at Annex A and this update focusses on five areas of 
progress: 

 Finance systems (Unit 4, Pay360 and Bottomline) 

 Property Systems (Concerto, Confirm and Mapinfo) 

Page 68



 Housing Management system (Abritas) 

 Customer Relationship Management system 

 Planning and Environmental Health System (Ocella) 
 
19. The core General Ledger and Accounts Payable system (Unit 4) was one of the first to 

be migrated to the Cloud under the roadmap, with full implementation completed on 
time and on budget in April 2021. Since then the system has performed very well and 
in fact has undergone three major upgrades without any additional cost or negative 
impact to normal business. Since taking the system management back in-house there 
have been significant developments in useability and functionality, which have reduced 
manual effort across the councils and improved visibility of data for financial 
management.  Support to increase use of the system will continue.  

20. On the Property Systems, the councils have successfully upgraded the main IT system 
Concerto to the latest version, again on time and on budget, and enabled the  
decommissioning of two other systems used for Technical Services. For the first time 
the councils have full visibility of all property assets and land parcels in one place, 
using standardised datasets. The move to the latest cloud based platform has also 
enabled the use of Single Sign-On, reducing IT security risks. The full capabilities of 
the new solution will be realised over the next 2 years by providing a single spatial view 
of property and other assets for better decision making across technical services, 
facilities and real estate management.  

21. For the Housing Management Systems, the procurement has been successfully 
concluded with the establishment of a new contract for Abritas as a Cloud hosted 
service. Unfortunately, the supplier has a waiting list for implementation due to huge 
demand across the housing and local government sectors, meaning the 
implementation for South and Vale councils will be between January and March 2023. 

22. The Customer Relationship Management system, Goss Interactive, has now been 
procured and the implementation project has been mobilised. The expected go-live 
date is the start of November 2022. 

23. Moving on to the next key step, officers are currently working on the full business case 
for replacement of systems used by Planning and Environmental Services which will 
support workflow and enhanced automation– this is the subject of a separate report on 
this agenda. 

Progress on the Customer Transformation and Roadmap 

Outcome of the baseline review 

24. Officers have completed a review of each of our customer transactions against the 
Local Government Association’s (LGA) published list of 495 District Council services. 
This baseline review has been used to help revise the roadmap and will provide 
evidence to inform the business case for change as we review each service.  

25. A significant number on the LGA list referred to transactions which were the 
responsibility of other agencies or were internally focused, once these were stripped 
out 176 were examined further. Of those services examined:  

 129 services fit the ‘right first time’ definition 

Page 69



 47 services fit the ‘once and done’ definition 

26. The number of services delivered through each channel is as follows: 

 22 are fully or in part provided through the councils’ (or are partners) points of 
presence (currently Milton Park, Leisure Centres, Cornerstone or Beacon) 

 79 are available digitally through the web sites 

 47 services are fully or in part provided through contact centres (Capita, Biffa, GLL 
or in house) 

27. Completion of processes involves being handed off to other organisations (including 
contractors) for 47 of these services 

28. The main areas for transformation identified in the review are: 

 a significant number of digital services not being fully digital – they still contain 
various analogue and manual steps to complete delivery (e.g. pdf forms, providing 
paper evidence) 

 many services are available through only one channel 

 many of the once and done services are not digital but should be 

 many services are delivered outside the councils but remain the councils’ 
responsibility 

29. In addition to these, a further 73 services on the LGA list are for provision of 
information/advice only with no other customer transaction and a number are 
discretionary, and we have chosen not to include them in this baseline assessment. 

30. Some transactional services are very high volume - revenues and benefits, planning, 
elections, and waste and street cleaning (inc. garden waste) – and any process 
improvements are likely to have the widest impact on our residents. Beacon, 
Cornerstone and community centre bookings are also high-volume services, along with 
housing allocations. Owing to the current systems and processes, much routine work is 
undertaken by higher cost ‘expert’ domains, and not enough routine work is resolved at 
the front end of customer contact. 

The revised roadmap 

31. Conversations with teams around the baseline review and preliminary discussions with 
suppliers, has revealed opportunities to revise the original road map for greatest impact 
and to avoid duplication with other projects. The full revised roadmap is attached at 
Annex B. In summary revisions are: 

 Planning operations and regulatory services has been brought forward to June 
2022 - July 2023, aligned across the technology and customer roadmaps to 
address the limitations on change by current IT solutions. The full business case is 
well under way and is subject to a separate item on this agenda. 

Page 70



 Mobile homes and housing systems procurement completed with implementation, is 
now in January - March 2023 due to supplier congestion in their delivery 
programme. 

 Contact centre service design and telephony solutions has been split into a two-
stage approach: contact centre design in 2022 and telephony procurement in 2023 . 

 Democratic services moved to June 2023 (post the planned local elections). 

 Economic services moved to April 2024. 

 Review of Member IT provision added for January - March 2023 in preparation for 
services required following the 2023 local government election.  

Procurement of the CRM solution 

32. The CRM is a critical part of the councils’ technology provision which will support the 
delivery of the Customer Strategy. Without it the councils will be unable to join the dots 
between services around our residents and businesses.  

33. As part of the IT Strategy, Cabinet agreed an indicative budget of £36,200 per council 
one off implementation costs; and £20,000 per council for annual revenue costs, to be 
funded from savings released from the wider customer transformation review. 
Discussion with our preferred supplier has revealed further opportunities to review 
current working and fill identified needs, by purchasing additional functionality: 

 API connectors to the ‘Whitespace’ system and to GIS will enable us to fully 
automate garden waste processes, including links to Biffa; and to review how 
customer service elements of the waste service are handled in future. 
   

 The GIS Connector and ‘report it’ functions available with the CRM provide us with 
the opportunity to replace some functions no longer supported by Oxfordshire 
County Council’s ‘Fix My Street,’ enabling residents to be able to digitally report 
issues with map references and via mobile devices 
 

 The Bookings functionality will avoid the cost of procuring an alternative booking 
system for community centre bookings which is an identified need.  
 

34. With these additions actual costs are £78,100 (one off capital); £74,159 revenue (year 
1) and £85,560 (year 2). Funding was approved by ICMDs in July and August, this 
included identified cost efficiencies of £97,300 per annum. Work on implementation of 
the CRM began in September and we expect the garden waste service to be migrated 
across in late 2022. 

Customer Service Centre 

35. Based on best practice contact centre models, the new Customer Service Centre 
(CSC) will evolve to become the first point of contact for all council services. It is vital to 
the success of the transformation programme that the new structure and council-wide 
ways of working are established before we begin to migrate services, to minimise risks 
and ensure a smooth transfer, whilst maintaining a positive customer experience. 

36. The new model is an invest to save project; up front funding will allow us to progress 
the transformation of services in line with the agreed roadmap and unlock productivity 

Page 71



gains, any savings being realised by a reduction in support staff. Additional costs of the 
new model will be funded through current year underspends. 

37. Staff consultation and recruitment to the CSC is scheduled for early Autumn 2022.  

Project launch and Engagement 

38. The project has been launched to all staff through the recent staff get togethers, an all 
staff email, and a dedicated Jarvis page with key documents supported by frequently 
asked questions. Feedback from staff has been positive so far with many recognising 
the positive impacts this transformation programme will bring to our residents and staff 
alike. 

39. An all councillor briefing and further staff sessions are scheduled for October. 

Options 

40. This report is provided as an update only. The strategies and roadmaps have been 
approved by Cabinet and are the councils’ agreed policy direction for the 
transformation programme.  

Climate and ecological impact implications 

41. The transformation activity supported by the activities in this paper will support the 
councils’ carbon reduction ambitions by reducing the reliance on paper and postage, 
avoiding unnecessary travel and by delivering increased self-service.  

Financial implications 

42. Any council decision that has financial implications must be made with the knowledge 
of the councils’ overarching financial position. For South, the position reflected in the 
Council’s medium-term financial plan (MTFP) as reported to Full Council in February 
2022 showed that it is due to receive £2.1 million less in revenue funding than it plans 
to spend in 2022/23. For Vale, a balanced budget was set in 2022/23 but there is 
expected to be a budget gap in future years.  

43. The funding gap at both councils is predicted to increase to over £3 million by 2026/27. 
As there remains no certainty on future local government funding, following the 
announcement of a one-year spending review by government, and as the long-term 
financial consequences of the Coronavirus pandemic remain unknown, this gap could 
increase further. Every financial decision made needs to be cognisant of the need to 
address the funding gap in future years. 

44. The effort required to deliver the end-to-end service transformations, underpinned by fit 
for future IT systems, which will deliver against the core principles will be significant, 
challenging longstanding operational practices and cultures, and as such needs 
investment. For each service this will include the formulation of the full business case in 
advance of transformation to set out the investment required and expected return 
which will help close the funding gap. 

45. These programmes are being driven by the Transformation Outcomes, which will 
reduce cost created by duplication, failure demand and overly complicated routes for 
residents and businesses to engage with council services. As such the projects 

Page 72



delivered under this programme will deliver cost efficiencies over the course of the 
programme and beyond, thereby helping to address the funding gap.  

Legal implications 

46. As individual projects are progressed, legal advice is being sought on terms of existing 
contracts, procurement of new systems and software including approval and 
preparation of contracts.  

Risks 

47. The main risks to delivery of the transformation programme are: 

 Lack of co-operation from outsourced delivery partners and their capacity to meet 
our timelines. This will be mitigated as part of contract reviews and by including the 
core principles in future contracts as part of mandatory requirements. 
  

 Customers do not take up the revised service models as digital by default. This will 
be mitigated by including customers in the service design process to ensure it is fit 
for purpose and meets their needs, and by wide-ranging communication of the 
changes the councils are enacting. 
 

 Efficiencies from streamlining services, increasing self-service and removing 
duplication are not realised. The service review and redesign process will include 
the creation of full business cases to ensure efficiencies are identified and 
delivered. 
 

 

Background papers 

 Adopted IT Strategy (Cabinet decision, October 2021) 

 Revised IT Roadmap  

 Adopted Customer Transformation Strategy and Roadmap (Cabinet decision, 
December 2021)   

Page 73



Summary

Programme Project Sponsor Project 
Manager

Status Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Column1 Column2 Column3 Column4 Column5
Platform Connectivity Mark Minion SDT On Hold

Unified communications Mark Minion SDT On Hold
End user environment Mark Minion LB Active
Follow me print Mark Minion SDT Complete
End user device Mark Minion LB Active

Corporate systems Enterprise Resource Planning Simon Hewings SDT Active
Information management Adrianna Partridge LB Scheduled

Business intelligence
Harry Barrington-
Mountford

LB On Hold

Spatial data management Mark Minion LB Active
Customer Systems Web sites Mark Minion AR Active

Mobile apps Mark Minion LB On hold
Customer relationship mgt Mark Minion LB Active
Bookings James Carpenter LB On hold
Consultations Mark Minion SW On Hold

Community grants
Harry Barrington-
Mountford

SW Active

Call centre Mark Minion SDT Active
Lottery James Carpenter SDT Complete

Place and People systems Regulation
Paul Fielding/Patrick 
Arran

TBC On Hold

Revenues Simon Hewings PH Complete
Democracy Patrick Arran SC Complete
Economy James Carpenter MS Active
Place management Suzanne Malcolm LB Active

Totals:

2020-21 2021-22

Planning Procurement

2022-23

Retired

P
age 74



1 
 

CUSTOMER TRANSFORMATION ROADMAP 1, REVISED JUNE 2022 

Workstream Services & Project Jan-Mar 2022 Apr-Jun 2022 Jul-Sep 2022 Oct-Dec  2022 Funding Lead 

Principles Service group and 

customer definition 

Approved & 

operational 

Complete 
  

Invest Customer Services 

Principles Core principles 

baseline 

Approved & 

operational 

Complete 
  

Invest SMT 

Bridging the gap Once and Done 

digital by default 

 
Complete baseline 

of services 

Amend services  Complete Invest to save 

(consolidate) 

Customer Services 

Enabling front 

doors 

360 degree view of 

the customer 

CRM 

procurement 

commenced 

Services aligned 

for migration 

Align to service 

redesign/review  

projects 

Deployed Invest to save (GW) Corporate Services 

Enabling front 

doors 

Our points of 

presence 

Baseline & 

define PoPs 

Front of house 

defined 

Front of house 

model deployed 

Services aligned Invest to save (Property) Customer Services 

Enabling front 

doors 

Contact centre & 

Voice services 

 
Design & approve Deploy Complete Invest to save 

(consolidate) 

Customer Services 

Service redesign Garden Waste 
 

Service redesign Service redesign Implement & 

complete 

Invest to save (transform) Service owner 

Service redesign Property and asset 

mgt 

Service redesign Implement 
 

Complete Invest to save (transform) Service Owner 

Service redesign Plannning 

Operations & 

regulatory services 

 
Services review IT systems and 

service redesign 

IT systems 

procurement 

Invest to save (transform) Service owner 

Service redesign Technical services, 

grounds 

maintenance 

Service redesign Implement Complete 
 

Invest to grow 

(commercial) 

Communities 

P
age 75



2 
 

Workstream Services & Project Jan-Mar 2023 Apr-Jun 2023 Jul-Sep 2023 Oct-Dec  2023 Funding Lead 

Service review Waste management Integration with 

service provider 

Implement Complete 
 

Invest to save (transform) Service owner 

Principles Core principles 

applied to delivery 

partners 

Contracts review 
 

Implement Complete BAU Finance 

Bridging the gap Once and Done 

digital by default 

Customer 

feedback on new 

services 

Amend services as 

required  

 
Complete Invest to save 

(consolidate) 

Customer Services 

Service review Leisure Integration with 

service provider 

Implement Complete 
 

Invest to save (transform) Service owner 

Enabling front 

doors 

Our points of 

presence 

Align to new 

Office Plan and 

mobile councils 

 
Implement Complete Invest to save (Property) Customer Services 

Enabling front 

doors 

Contact centre & 

Voice services 

Design & 

approve new 

voice services 

Implement 
 

Complete Invest to save 

(consolidate) 

Customer Services 

Service review Housing Mobile homes 

Service redesign 

Implement 
 

Complete Invest to save (transform) Service owner 

Service review  Planning Operations 

& regulatory services  

IT systems build 

and service 

redesign 

Implement Complete 
 

Invest to save (transform) Service owner 

Service review Democratic services IT systems 

review 

Service review and 

systems 

procurement 

implement Complete Invest Service owner 

 

P
age 76



3 
 

 

Workstream Services & Project Jan-Mar 2024 Apr-Jun 2024 Jul-Sep 2024 Oct-Dec  2024 Funding Lead 

Enabling front 
doors 

Future state Digital 
Services 

 
Service design for 
2025 

 
Complete Invest to save (transform) Service owner 

Principles Core principles 
applied to delivery 
partners 2 

Contracts review 
2 

 
Implement Complete BAU Finance 

Bridging the gap Once and Done 
digital by default 

Customer 
feedback on new 
services 

Amend services as 
required  

 
Complete Invest to save 

(consolidate) 
Customer Services 

Service review Economic 
development 

Service redesign Implement Complete 
 

Invest to save (transform) Service owner 

Enabling front 
doors 

Our points of 
presence 

Redesign to meet 
new Office Model 

 
Implement Complete Invest to save (Property) Customer Services 

Service review Revenues & Benefits Future service 
model definition 

Service redesign 
 

New model from 
Sept 2025 

Invest to save (transform) Service owner 

Service redesign IT and Digital Future service 
model definition 

Service redesign 
 

New model from 
Sept 2025 

Invest to save (transform) Service owner 

Service review Communications Web site review procurement implement complete Invest Service owner 

 

P
age 77



 
 

Cabinet Report 

 

 

 

Report of Deputy Chief Executive Transformation and Operations 

Author: David Wilde 

Telephone: 07540349135 

E-mail: david.wilde@southandvale.gov.uk  

Wards affected: All 

 

South Cabinet member responsible: Andrea Powell 

Tel: 07882 584120 

E-mail: andrea.powell@southoxon.gov.uk    

Vale Cabinet members responsible: Debby Hallett 

Tel: 07545 241013 

E-mails: debby.hallett@whitehorsedc.gov.uk  

To: CABINET 

Dates:29 September 2022 (South) 30 September 2022 (Vale) 

 

 

Business case for Transforming IT and Systems 

of Planning and Regulatory Services 

Recommendations 

That Cabinet: 
 
(a) Approve the business case and recommended procurement option for the 

replacement of the Planning and Regulatory Services IT systems as an Invest to 
Save initiative  

(b) Delegate the contract approvals to the Deputy Chief Executive, Transformation and 
Operations, in consultation with the Head of Finance, subject to costs being within 
the business case 

 

Purpose of report 

1. To present the Full Business Case for the transformation for the IT and Systems of 
the Councils’ Planning and Regulatory Services (Environmental Protection, Food 
Safety, Community Safety, Waste and Licencing), enabled by the procurement of 
future proofed and fit for purpose IT solutions.  

Page 78

Agenda Item 11

mailto:david.wilde@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:andrea.powell@southoxon.gov.uk
mailto:debby.hallett@whitehorsedc.gov.uk


 
 

Corporate objectives  

2. The move to customer-centred service provision through digital channels, with a 
Customer Relationship Management (CRM) solution at its heart and fit for purpose IT 
systems for service delivery, will support the councils’ carbon reduction ambitions by 
reducing the reliance on paper and avoiding unnecessary travel; whilst engaging with 
residents and businesses digitally. 

3. The future proofed IT systems being deployed through the Technology roadmap will 
enable services to be designed around the customer and not individual processes, 
delivering against the principles set out in the Customer Transformation Strategy. 

4. The consistent application of those core principles to drive and develop customer 
services for the councils will release efficiencies through the use of automation and by 
removing duplication and avoidable contact to take out manual effort, which in turn 
will ensure the councils use customer facing resources more efficiently. 

5. As more efficient organisations, the councils will be able to ensure resources are 
firmly focussed on delivering the councils’ strategic themes and priorities. 

Background 

6. In December 2021 Cabinet agreed the Customer Transformation Strategy and 
Roadmap setting out plans for the complete transformation of the way the councils 
handle customer contact, providing a single point of contact through a centralised 
customer service function, reduce unnecessary contact, increase self- service, and 
provide a greater consistency of customer experience across all our services.  

7. Fundamental to the success of the transformation work will be IT systems that are fit 
for purpose and will need to be flexible and adaptable to meet the future needs of the 
councils. The IT Strategy and Road map agreed by Cabinet in October 2021 outlined 
a clear direction, which will be supported by full business plans, for the ongoing use 
and development of technology. 

8. The IT solutions currently being used by Planning and Regulatory Services are 
fragmented and, in some cases, require a new procurement exercise as their current 
contracts can no longer be extended. They also do not meet the core principles of the 
IT strategy. The solutions are: 

 Ocella Planning and Regulatory services 

 TotalMobile field force 

 Local Oracle databases 

 IDOX Licencing modules 

 Microsoft M365 Directory Services for file stores 

 

 

Page 79



 
 

9. To ensure the Councils invest in technology which will deliver the outcomes expected 
from the Transformation Programme, the full business case (FBC) for the 
replacement of these IT systems is modelled on the service efficiencies they will 
unlock through end-to-end service redesign as part of their implementation. 

10. A review of the IT market has also been completed and included in the FBC, in line 
with the Councils’ Procurement Strategy. 

11. The customer implications of this transformation project will be significant, bringing to 
life the core principles around once and done for service delivery, right first time 
across all contact points and in being digital by default for engaging with us. The 
review of current service delivery has identified considerable scope to streamline and 
automate services as well as redesign them to make more use of wider council 
capabilities (customer services, finance IT systems and digital channels). 

Options 

12. There is not an acceptable “do nothing” option because the councils need IT 
applications to support their business. The current contract for the Ocella IT solution 
requires a procurement exercise and the current provider is not listed on any 
Government Framework Agreements for IT service provision. This contract will expire 
in October 2023. There are 2 options for completing the procurement exercise. 

13.  Option 1 – full public procurement for a new IT solution. This option will allow the 
Councils to invite the open market to propose solutions for the service, but the 
process will be costly in terms of officer time and potential external support and is 
likely to take at least 18 months to reach contract award.  This process also 
introduces an element ofrisk in terms of whether bidders’ solutions have a proven 
track record or will deliver the transformational change required. 

14. Option 2 – Procurement of a fit for purpose IT solution through the GCloud 12 
Framework Agreement. This option fits with the Councils’ Procurement Strategy and 
can be completed within 3 months, thus delivering better value for taxpayers and 
allowing the implementation of the replacement solution within 12 months. The market 
review has identified a solution provider able to meet the business needs of the 
Councils andand the GCloud12 operational rules permit direct awards to suppliers.  
This mitigates the risk of procuring an unproven solution. 

15. Option 2 is the recommended option 

 

Climate and ecological impact implications 

16. The move to customer centred service provision through digital channels will support 
the councils’ carbon reduction ambitions by reducing the reliance on paper and 
postage, avoiding unnecessary travel and increased self-service; this model can also 
be used to engage with residents and businesses digitally through the new online 
systems to encourage positive climate change activities.  

 

Page 80



 
 

Financial implications 

17. Any council decision that has financial implications must be made with the knowledge 
of the councils’ overarching financial position. For South, the position reflected in the 
Council’s medium-term financial plan (MTFP) as reported to Full Council in February 
2022 showed that it is due to receive £2.1 million less in revenue funding than it plans 
to spend in 2022/23. For Vale, a balanced budget was set in 2022/23 but there is 
expected to be a budget gap in future years.  

18. The funding gap at both councils is predicted to increase to over £3 million by 
2026/27. As there remains no certainty on future local government funding, following 
the announcement of a one-year spending review by government, and as the long-
term financial consequences of the Coronavirus pandemic remain unknown, this gap 
could increase further. Every financial decision made needs to be cognisant of the 
need to address the funding gap in future years. 

19. The effort required to deliver the end-to-end service transformations, underpinned by 
fit for future IT systems, which will deliver against the core principles will be 
significant, challenging longstanding operational practices and cultures, and as such 
needs investment. This business case sets out the investment required and expected 
return which will help close the funding gap. 

20. The investment in new IT solutions for these services will deliver a net saving of 
£2.266million over 4 years for both Councils. Details of the financial breakdown is 
contained in Annex A (confidential). These savings will contribute towards bridging 
the current funding gap in the MTFPs. 

Legal implications 

21. There are no specific legal implications arising from this transformation project. 

22. As individual project activities are progressed, legal advice will be sought on terms of 
existing contracts, procurement of new systems and software including approval and 
preparation of contracts, where required.  

Risks 

23. The main risks to delivery of the strategies are: 

 Project activity timelines not aligning with the councils’ outsourced delivery partners 
and their resource capacity. This will be mitigated through commercial agreements 
with current solution providers. 
  

 Customers do not take up the revised service models as digital by default. This will 
be mitigated by including customers in the service design process to ensure it is fit 
for purpose and meets their needs, and by wide-ranging communication of the 
changes the councils are enacting.  Communications will be focussed on explaining 
how the changes will help with the overall achievement of the councils’ strategic 
themes and priorities, not least addressing the climate emergency. 

 

 Efficiencies from streamlining services, increasing self-service and removing 
duplication are not realised. The service review and redesign process will ensure 

Page 81



 
 

efficiencies are identified and delivered. 
 

 Information sharing prevents the creation of a rounded (360 degree) view of 
customers. This will be mitigated using information sharing protocols and the 
application of informed consent models for access to services. 
 

 Services are too heavily committed on delivering existing services to undergo a 
service review and redesign. This will be mitigated by capacity planning and the 
investment needs already built into the business case  

Other implications 

24. The successful implementation of this transformation project will also enable relevant 
services to access and use technology which is designed for their business areas and 
support better alignment with core corporate systems (Finance, CRM, HR and 
Payroll), in turn supporting better decision making for customer centred service 
delivery. 

25. The project will impact some staff roles across the affected services, including those 
who will form the basis of the new Customer Service Centre, and will be the subject of 
staff consultation.  

Conclusion 

26. This business case is the first to apply the core principles agreed in the Customer 
Transformation and IT Strategies and will deliver a fundamental change in the way 
the Councils deliver the services affected, designed with the customer in mind, more 
efficiently and embracing the Digital world in which we operate.  This, in turn, will help 
with the overall delivery of the councils’ strategic themes and priorities. 

27. The investment will deliver a significant return, helping to address current and future 
financial pressures without compromising service quality. 

28. Finally, the recommended procurement route will enable the project to move at pace 
whilst minimising process costs. 

 

Annex A (Confidential): Full Business Case for the transformation of Planning and 

Regulatory Services 

 

Background papers 

 Adopted IT Strategy (Cabinet decision, October 2021) 

 Adopted Customer Transformation Strategy and Roadmap (Cabinet decision, 
December 2021)   

Page 82



Vale of White Horse District Council 

Corporate Performance Report
2022/23 Quarter One 
July 2022

P
age 83

A
genda Item

 12



 2whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

Table of content

Background                3
Strategic context                4
Quarter One 2022/23 Performance Highlights           6

Theme 1:  Providing the homes people need            7
Theme 2:  Tackling the climate emergency           8
Theme 3:  Building healthy communities            10
Theme 4:  Building stable finances             12
Theme 5:  Working in partnership             14
Theme 6:  Working in an open and inclusive way          16

Theme 1: Providing the homes people need - performance updates against reporting measures    18
Theme 2: Tackling the climate emergency - Performance updates against reporting measures   24
Theme 3: Building healthy communities - performance updates against reporting measures    31
Theme 4: Building stable finances - performance updates against reporting measures     39
Theme 5: Working in partnership - performance updates against reporting measures     43
Theme 6: Woking in an open and inclusive way - performance updates against reporting measures   51

P
age 84

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


 3whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

Background

• The Council monitors performance and progress towards achieving the aims and priorities set out in the Vale of White Horse District Council 
Corporate Plan 2020-2024.

• This report provides a strategic overview of the performance for quarter one (01 April to 30 June 2022), focusing on the activity to deliver 
our priorities in the Corporate Plan.

• In addition to providing a performance update and assurance against the delivery of the Council’s six strategic themes in the Corporate 
Plan, this report will also provide any strategic context relevant to the Council’s operations. 

• This report is the fifth iteration, and it is expected that it will evolve in line with the new approach to Performance Management being 
embedded by the Council, as well as from feedback from senior officers and Members.

P
age 85

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf
https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Strategic context 4whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

Strategic context

Quarter 1 of 2022/23 saw the global 
economic situation deteriorate further. 

Soaring prices for energy, food, petrol and 
durable goods have driven inflation across the 
world, stalling the post-pandemic recovery and 
placing individuals, families and businesses 
under increasing financial pressure. Within the 
UK, the rate of inflation reached a forty year 
high of 9.4 per cent in the 12 months to June 
2022 – driven by rising food and fuel prices. 
The Bank of England forecast that inflation 
will continue to rise throughout much of 2022 
(they expect it to peak at around 11.0 per cent 
during October when the impacts of a further 
prospective increase in the Ofgem price cap 
feed through into household bills) before 
gradually falling back.

The high rate of inflation in the UK has meant 
that household finances have been squeezed 
as incomes have failed to keep pace with the 
rising cost of living. Figures from the Office 
for National Statistics (ONS) show that, when 
adjusted for prices, average earnings were 3.4 
per cent lower in April 2022 than a year earlier 
– the biggest drop since modern records 
began in 2001. In addition, those in receipt 
of benefits or a pension have found that the 
increase of 3.1 per cent for this year has been 
rapidly outpaced by the high rate of inflation.

In May, as part of efforts to try to mitigate the 
worst effects of the squeeze on household 
budgets, HM Government announced a 

package of measures designed to provide 
over £15 billion in additional support to assist 
with the rising cost of living. As part of these 
proposals, every household in the UK will get 
an energy bill discount of £400 this October. 
In addition, households in receipt of means 
tested benefits will get a payment of £650 – 
divided into two lump sums – to help with the 
cost of living. There will also be separate one-
off payments of £300 to pensioner households 
and £150 to individuals receiving disability 
benefits. Furthermore, the emergency 
Household Support Fund, which is allocated 
by councils in England, will be extended by 
£500m to £1.5bn. The cost of the measures 
will be partly offset by 25.0 per cent windfall 
tax on oil and gas firms’ profits.

As the cost-of-living crisis has worsened 
throughout the quarter, the Council’s 
Community Hub has offered practical help 
and advice to residents. It has also continued 
to distribute grants through the Household 
Support Fund to those in need of help with the 
purchase of essentials such as food, clothing 
and utilities.

The devastating war in Ukraine continued 
during quarter one. The latest estimates 

from the United Nations High Commissioner 
For Refugees (UNHCR) suggest that around 
a third of the country’s population have been 
forced from their homes since February 
(around seven million people are internally 
displaced, while nearly five million have sought 
refuge in Europe). As part of the Council’s 
ongoing response to this humanitarian crisis, 
it continues to work alongside partners across 
Oxfordshire to help provide ‘wrap-around’ 
care for refugees within the county through 
the Homes for Ukraine scheme (this offers 
the opportunity for individuals in the UK to 
sponsor named guests to come and live with 
them in their home). The Council’s Community 
Hub continues to ensure that support is 
available for both guests and hosts in need of 
assistance.

During quarter one, HM Government published 
its Energy Security Strategy. This sets out how 
the UK will enhance its energy security and 
independence in the long-term. It contains 
proposals to accelerate the deployment of 
renewables such as solar and wind (both 
onshore and offshore), to significantly increase 
the delivery of new nuclear power plants, to 
improve energy efficiency and to realise the 
potential of hydrogen as a source of low-
carbon energy. The importance of sourcing 
alternative, renewable energy sources is a 
major part of our Climate Action Plan (CAP).

P
age 86

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Strategic context 5whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

From quarter one, the CAP is being monitored as part of the Vale’s corporate performance 
management framework. It will be delivered in tandem with the Council’s Corporate Plan 

performance reporting and will give a detailed overview of all actions that may have an impact 
on reducing carbon in the wider district.

HM Government also published a white paper on creating A Fairer Private Rental Sector. 
This sets out their proposals to reform the private rented sector and level up housing quality. 
Providing high-quality, affordable homes across a range of tenures is a key priority for the 
Vale.

Towards the end of quarter one, the number of people testing positive for Covid-19 started to 
increase – the most likely cause being infections caused by variants of the Omicron strain of 
the virus. While this rise in cases did lead to an increase in hospital admissions, it did not lead 
to the reimposition of any of the previous legal restrictions and requirements. However, the 
Council’s Community Hub remains ready and mobilised to move to respond.

On 28 June, the ONS released a first look 
at some of the data arising from the 2021 

Census.

• Since 2011, the population of the Vale 
has increased by 14.8 per cent (from around 
121,000 to 138,900). This is a higher overall 
increase than for England (6.6 per cent) or 
the South East region (7.5 per cent). 

• Of the 309 local authorities in England, 
Vale of White Horse has the 164th largest 
population – it has moved up 14 places in the 
decade since 2011. 

• The Vale is the 11th least densely 
populated of the South East region’s 64 local 
authorities.

• Between 2011 and 2021 there has been 
an increase of 26.4 per cent in the number of 
people aged 65 and over in the Vale. This is 
above the figure for England (20.1 per cent). 
There have also been above the national 
average increases in the number of people 
aged 15 to 64 (11.6 per cent compared to 3.6 
per cent) and those aged under 15 (15.3 per 
cent compared to 5.0 per cent).

P
age 87

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


6whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

Quarter One 2022/23 Performance Highlights

P
age 88

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


The new Joint Design Guide 
(JDG) was agreed by Vale of 
White Horse’s Cabinet during 
quarter one. The JDG 
incorporates new guidance 
on zero and low carbon 
construction.

Providing the homes people need 7whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

Theme 1:  Providing the homes people need 

We will: 

• find ways to provide more genuinely 
affordable housing, including housing 
for social rent, to better provide for the 
needs of the Vale residents

• aim to provide a mix of tenures in 
each development to build sustainable 
homes in balanced and sustainable               
communities

• use our influence on decision makers, 
where the responsibility lies outside of 
Vale.

We will do this by: 

• exploring and considering opportunities 
to bring forward the delivery of homes 
people can afford

• adopting a policy framework that ensures 
those homes could be delivered in a 
way that supports the environment and     
people living healthy lives.

Strategic Lead - Suzanne Malcolm (Deputy Chief Executive / Place)

Key Activities in quarter one 

During Q1, the Vale helped to provide more 
genuinely affordable housing by delivering, 

in partnership with Registered Providers, 74 
affordable housing units.

As part of the Vale’s efforts to explore and 
consider opportunities to bring forward the 
delivery of homes that people can afford, an 
Individual Cabinet Member Decision (ICMD) 
was approved to accept £180,000 of funding 
from the Department of Levelling Up, Housing 
and Communities to support the delivery of 
Dalton Barracks Garden Village. This support 
will enable additional progress to be made 
on the governance, quality, innovation and 
stewardship workstreams.

Good progress continued to be made on the 
development of a new Joint Housing Strategy. 
Workshops were held between members and 
officers, and a first draft of the document has 
been produced.

In addition, following a meeting between 
officers and members, it was agreed that the 
most effective approach for delivering the 

aims of an Affordable Housing Supplementary 
Planning Document – for example, in relation 
to affordability – was to pursue policy changes 
through the Joint Local Plan. It was also 
decided during quarter one that the Vale’s 
existing affordable housing policies should 
be brought together into a single guidance 
document for both developers and registered 
providers. Planning and Housing officers 
are currently carrying out this work and 
aim to publish it on the Council’s website in 
September.

With the aim of adopting a policy framework 
that ensures that homes can be delivered 
in a way that support the environment and 
the living of healthy lives, the Council’s 
Planning Policy team continued to work on the 
development of the Joint Local Plan. Between 
12 May and 23 June, a public consultation 
– known formally as a ‘Regulation 18 Part 1 
Issues Consultation’ – was held. This asked 
for views on a draft vision for the Joint Local 
Plan and included matters relating to the 
environment, healthy lifestyles, infrastructure 
and sustainable growth. The Planning Policy 
team are currently processing the responses 
that were received.

See Theme 1 performance updates 
against all reporting measures on page 18

P
age 89

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Tackling the climate emergency 8whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024 8whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

Theme 2:  Tackling the climate emergency

We will: 

• do everything we can to help tackle the 
Climate Emergency

• reduce council emissions by 75% by 
2025

• become a carbon neutral council by 
2030

• reduce all emissions across the Vale 
District by 75% by 2030

• aspire to be a carbon neutral Vale district 
by 2045.

We will do this by: 

• a Climate Emergency programme,       
focussed on what the council has control 
over, working 

• towards our own targets for our own 
buildings, vehicles, leisure and arts   
centres

• a Climate Emergency programme        
focussed on encouraging the wider     
district community 

• to reduce its carbon footprint in order to 
meet the Climate Emergency targets

• a programme around exercising our 
influence with partners on wider policy, 
working with neighbouring authorities, 
lobbying Government, and identifying 
environmental policy gaps.

Strategic Lead - Suzanne Malcolm (Deputy Chief Executive / Place)

Key Activities in quarter one

See Theme 2 performance updates 
against all reporting measures on page 24

After extensive preparatory work over 
recent months, progress against the 

Council’s Climate Action Plan (CAP) is now 
being monitored as part of the Council’s 
corporate performance management 
framework. The Plan will be delivered in 
tandem with the Council’s Corporate Plan 
performance reporting and will give a detailed 
overview of all actions that may have an 
impact on reducing carbon emissions in our 
district.

The first public consultation on the Joint 
Local Plan took place in May and June. 
Topics raised included how the plan might 
promote sustainable growth and protect the 
environment. In June, the meeting of the Joint 
Local Plan Steering Group focussed on the 
topic of the environment. Members provided 
a steer for policy development regarding 
biodiversity net gain, landscape and the water 
environment.

In quaorter one the Council continued to 
work closely with neighbouring authorities 
on environmental policies. At the meeting 

of the Future Oxfordshire Partnership 
Environment Advisory Group in June, 
members discussed Pathways to Zero 
Carbon Oxfordshire and the Oxfordshire 
Food Strategy, which covers various 
approaches to reducing the carbon footprint 
and ecological impact of our food networks. 
Work also continued with neighbouring 
authorities on environmental policies within 
the Oxfordshire Plan 2050.

After extensive work over previous months, 
in quarter one, 60 electric vehicle (EV) 
charging bays became operational in five 
of the Council’s car parks as part of the 
Oxfordshire-wide “Park and Charge” project. 
Officers also worked with colleagues from 
Oxfordshire County Council to make a joint 
application for further EV Infrastructure 
funding. 

P
age 90

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf
https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Q1 Recycling rates - June figures not available at time of reporting

Tackling the climate emergency 9whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

Emissions from our leisure facilities make up a significant proportion of our carbon footprint. During quarter one, the Vale received the finalised 
decarbonisation assessments and plans for both the Wantage Leisure Centre and the White Horse Leisure Centre. The Council is now awaiting a 
further opportunity to bid into the Public Sector Decarbonisation Scheme in order to support the decarbonisation of the centres. 

Taking action to improve air quality in the district is a key commitment for the Council. During this quarter, the tendering process began to engage 
consultants to develop new Air Quality Plans for the district. The Council also submitted its Annual Air Quality Status Report (2021) to Defra. 
Particulate Matter and Nitrogen Dioxide monitoring in Marcham continued throughout the quarter. Provisional results show no exceedances in 
national air quality objectives.

Communications remained an important aspect of the Council’s work to support and encourage residents and businesses to reduce their carbon 
footprint. In quarter one campaigns included: information about the Council’s Park and Charge project, highlighting Earth Day and ‘no mow May’, 
promoting the Climate Action Fund and informing residents of an Oxfordshire-wide climate change survey. On waste reduction, campaigns included 
promoting the Great British Spring Clean and a recycling campaign around Easter, encouraging composting and the use of Real Nappies and 
promoting our litter mapping project.

P
age 91

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Building healthy communities 10whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

Theme 3:  Building healthy communities

We will: 

• contribute to making people’s lives 
healthier by encouraging the switch 
to more active travel, improving air       
quality where people work and live,    
and providing active opportunities.

We will do this by: 

• building strong communities and        
connections with a sense of place and 
strong community identity

• promoting healthy place shaping and 
active communities for everyone

• safeguarding and supporting our         
vulnerable residents

Strategic Lead - Adrianna Partridge (Deputy Chief Executive / Transformation and Operations)

Key Activities in quarter one

See Theme 3 performance updates 
against all reporting measures on page 31

At the end of quarter one, the Council 
recorded only one rough sleeper – this 

reflects the success of the Vale’s preventative 
approach. 

The number of homeless households at the 
end of June 2022 was nine – a reduction of 
five on the previous quarter. The average 
length of stay in emergency accommodation 
was 43 nights, marginally above the ceiling 
target of 42. This reflects the increasingly 
complex needs of homeless clients. 

During quarter one, the rate of successful 
homelessness prevention was 76.0 per cent 
– this was slightly below the target of 80.0 per 
cent.

As part of the Vale’s commitment to 
safeguarding and supporting the district’s 
vulnerable residents, it continues to actively 
participate in the countywide Homelessness & 
Rough Sleeping Strategy. At this Oxfordshire-
level, quarter one saw the successful launch 
of the county’s innovative alliance approach to 
single homelessness services.

Quarter one also saw the launch – using a 
district-wide local distribution model – of the 
Household Support Fund Extension which 
provides support to residents in need of 
assistance. The Council’s Community Hub 
works closely with both the voluntary and 
community sector to help ensure that this help 
reaches those who require it.

In addition, the Vale continues to support the 
Homes for Ukraine scheme While the pace 
of ongoing accommodation booking slowed, 
other work on matters such as community 
integration, rematching requests etc continued 
apace.

P
age 92

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Building healthy communities 11whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

With the aim of building strong 
communities and connections with a 

sense of place, the Council’s Planning Policy 
Team continued to make progress on the 
Joint Local Plan. Between 12 May and 23 
June, a public consultation was held which 
asked for views on a draft vision for the Joint 
Local Plan. This included consideration of the 
following: “A place where history is still visible, 
where heritage and landscape character are 
safeguarded and valued, and the beauty and 
the distinctive local identity of our towns and 
villages have been enhanced.” The Planning 
Policy team are currently processing the 
responses that were received.

The new Joint Design Guide was agreed by 
Vale of White Horse’s Cabinet in June 2022. It 
contains provisions relating to importance of a 
sense of place and identity in developments.

In addition, during quarter one the Vale 
started their pilot of a simpler approach to 
neighbourhood planning. Three parishes 
within the Vale (West Challow, Kennington 
and Fyfield & Tubney) were selected to trial 
this new method. Following an introductory 
meeting with the pilot groups in May 
(which explored the aims, parameters and 
expectations of the project), the first of a series 
of capacity building workshops (detailing how 
the planning system works and some of the 
key concepts around placemaking) was held 
on 28 June.

In order to promote healthy place shaping 
and active communities for everyone, Vale’s 

Scrutiny Committee considered the draft 
Active Communities Strategy at its June 
meeting. It was well received by members 
and will come before Cabinet during quarter 
two, 2022/23. A draft delivery plan for 
the Active Communities Strategy is also 
being developed. This will identify the key 
interventions that enable people to live active, 
healthier lives.

During quarter one, a procurement exercise 
was held to appoint a consultant to develop 
a Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure 
Plan for Didcot Garden Town and its environs. 
This project is scheduled to be completed 
by December 2022 and will recommend 
improvements to both existing and new 
cycling/walking routes for commuting and 
leisure.

Oxfordshire County Council’s Public Health 
Team, in conjunction with the districts, 
redeployed air quality sensors to primary 
school locations across the county. These 
devices will not only help to provide baseline 
data but will also monitor any changes 
in air quality resulting from any potential 
interventions. In the Vale, the air quality sensor 
is located at St. Nicholas Primary School, 
Abingdon.

The Vale supported the launch of the You 
Move programme (designed to help families 
on low incomes engage with physical activity) 

in conjunction with other local authorities 
in Oxfordshire. The Council also continued 
to promote the Move Together scheme and 
its own wellbeing activities. In addition, the 
Women’s Cycle Tour event visited the district. 
The Vale used this opportunity to not only 
generate positive engagement with its partners 
and communities, but also promote a range of 
cycling and other wellbeing activities.

The Council also started to map the various 
cultural and physical activities being 
undertaken in the Vale. This information will 
be used to update a database listing all of the 
current locally run classes and events.

During quarter one, the Active Communities 
team ran a GP support service pilot in 
Wantage. As a result of its success, the 
Council will look to promote its expansion later 
this year.

P
age 93

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Building stable finances 12whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

Theme 4:  Building stable finances

We will: 

• manage the council’s resources            
responsibly and make effective use of 
the council’s assets

• do our best to build financial resilience 
to protect the council against future         
uncertainties

• work across the public sector to            
influence and maximise funding for local 
government, in order to continue to 
invest and provide the services residents 
and businesses need.

We will do this by: 

• exploring and actively considering all 
avenues to deliver financial stability, 
including maximising income available to 
the council

• making effective use of the                
council’s assets acting in a manner that 
ensures the long-term financial viability 
for the benefit of our residents and the           
environment.

Strategic Lead - Simon Hewings (Head of Finance)

Key Activities in quarter one

See Theme 4 performance updates 
against all reporting measures on page 39

With the aim of managing the Council’s 
resources responsibly and to make 

effective use of its assets, the Vale’s Asset 
Management Group (established during 
quarter three 2021/22) continues to meet on 
a quarterly basis to progress implementation 
of the Strategic Property Review. The aim 
of the Group is to assess the Council’s land 
ownerships in a holistic manner and consider 
opportunities for their development, usage or 
disposal. Any outcomes from these meetings 
are progressed as business as usual.

Arrangements were also made in quarter one 
to move the Grounds Maintenance depot from 
its current location at Kingston Bagpuise to 
Council land at Crowmarsh and the White 
Horse Leisure Centre. In addition, Cabinet 
reports evaluating the cost of purchasing 
vehicles for the service – as opposed to 
leasing – have been prepared. As part of 
this work, Vale have engaged with the Earth 
Trust to survey the Council’s needs and make 
recommendations on the use of alternative 
fuels etc.

As part of the Vale’s ongoing project to 
improve the performance of the Council’s 
finance systems, progress continued to be 
made on utilising Unit 4 to deliver budget 
setting. A demonstration of progress has been 
shown to both the Head of Finance and the 
Strategic Finance Manager. In addition, the 
deployment of “Workspaces” – designed to 
help improve the day-to-day efficiency of users 
by allowing them to access all the information 
and functionality they need with one click 
through a “dashboard” style interface – has 
also proceeded, with a presentation provided 
to the Finance Portfolio Holder ahead of its 
rollout to Cabinet members.

With the intention of building financial 
resilience to protect the Council against future 
uncertainties, the Strategic Property Team 
continued to lease vacant properties, progress 
lease renewals and review rents during 
quarter one 2022/23. Progress was also 
made on work regarding potential housing 
development sites – and their promotion - via 
the Housing and Economic Land Availability 
Assessment.

P
age 94

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Building stable finances 13whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

In order to help deliver on the Vale’s ambition to work across the public sector to influence and maximise funding for local government, work has 
continued during quarter one on embedding the External Funding Lead within the organisation. Progress has also been made on introducing the 

necessary governance structures and documentation to ensure that any future funding bids align are deliverable and align with the Vale’s goals. 

P
age 95

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Working in partnership 14whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

Theme 5:  Working in partnership

We will: 

• work in partnership with other councils, 
authorities and businesses, non-
profit organisations, community and               
residents’ groups, to achieve our aims 
and objectives effectively, efficiently and 
fairly

• provide support to residents and 
organisations to effect and drive change 
in the community

• provide all the support we can to    
businesses in the Vale to help them   
succeed.

We will do this by: 

• working in partnership to influence and 
shape regional and national agendas 
to maximise opportunities for our 
communities and businesses 

• working with and supporting our         
residents, businesses and communities 
to effect and enable change.

Strategic Lead - Suzanne Malcolm (Deputy Chief Executive / Place) 
Strategic Lead - Adrianna Partridge (Deputy Chief Executive / Transformation and Operations)

Key Activities in quarter one

See Theme 5 performance updates 
against all reporting measures on page 43

To help realise the Council’s commitment 
to provide support to businesses in order 

to help them succeed, the Virtual High Street 
Initiative was officially launched in Wantage 
during quarter one. This Initiative will enable 
the consolidation of Vale based independent 
retailers on a single e-commerce platform. A 
total of 51 traders are currently established on 
the portal, with over 1,450 products available 
to order through the site.

In addition, the Economic Development team 
ran four in-person digital business skills events 
between April and June 2022:
1. Advertising on Facebook and Instagram
2. Selling on Facebook and Instagram
3. Creating and sending newsletters using 
Mailchimp
4. Using LinkedIn to generate Business

They also ran four online Digital Skills 
workshops for businesses looking to reach 
new customer bases.

As part of the Vale’s efforts to support 
residents and organisations to effect and 

drive change in the community, the Council 
started its pilot of a simpler approach to 
neighbourhood planning in three parishes 
(West Challow, Kennington and Fyfield & 
Tubney) within the district during quarter one. 
This new method is designed to help provide 
communities with an additional tool to effect 
and enable change and is a reaffirmation 
of the Vale’s commitment to neighbourhood 
planning. Following an introductory meeting 
with the pilot groups in May (which explored 
the aims, parameters and expectations of 
the project), the first of a series of capacity 
building workshops (detailing how the planning 
system works and some of the key concepts 
around placemaking) was held on 28 June.

P
age 96

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Working in partnership 15whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

The Council have also continued to promote 
and register new causes to the White 

Horse Community Lottery Scheme – one 
“good cause” was approved during quarter 
one. Throughout the quarter, 12,042 lottery 
tickets were sold generating an annual 
estimated income of £30,295 for the voluntary 
sector.

In addition, officers have continued, where 
differing views exist, to advise Town and 
Parish Councils of their recommendations on 
planning applications. They have helped to 
explain why decisions are being made and this 
in turn has improved relationships between the 
Vale and these organisations.

With the intention of progressing the Vale’s 
goal of working in partnership to influence 
and shape regional and national agendas, 
the Council continued to respond to external 
consultations (two during quarter one) with 
the intention of helping to guide and mould 
both regional and national policy in a way 
that reflects the Vale’s ambitions. Work 
also progressed throughout the quarter on 
assessing the impact of the Council’s previous 
submissions.

The Economic Development team have also 
carried out extensive work in preparing a bid 
for funding from the UK Shared Prosperity 
Fund. A draft investment plan for the initial 
three years of the scheme has been produced 
and is scheduled to be finalised in quarter two.

P
age 97

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Working in an open and inclusive way 16whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

Theme 6:  Working in an open and inclusive way

We will: 

• work openly and transparently, promoting 
a world in which all can participate 
equally

• listen to feedback from local residents, 
communities, businesses, partners and 
our own officers

• ensure our work particularly aims 
to include those groups that have 
historically been 

• marginalised or those that have been 
hard to reach

• ensure we are accountable and that 
our decisions are open to appropriate 
scrutiny, and we will admit when we get 
things wrong.

We will do this by: 

• improving our use of technology to 
increase understanding and access 
to what we do, how we work and the 
decisions we make

• increasing meaningful engagement and 
communication with everyone

• strengthening our governance framework 
and address our policy gaps, improving 
transparency.

Strategic Lead - Adrianna Partridge (Deputy Chief Executive / Transformation and Operations)

Key Activities in quarter one

See Theme 6 performance updates 
against all reporting measures on page 51

In order to facilitate the Council’s commitment 
to working openly and transparently, 

substantial progress was made in relation 
to the procurement of a new Customer 
Relationship Management (CRM) system 
during quarter one. This work is almost 
complete, subject to an Individual Cabinet 
Member Decision (ICMD) approving the 
budget to implement the preferred option. It 
is hoped that the system will help improve 
communications – and relationships – 
between the Council and its customers.

Furthermore, during quarter one, the 
performance management report for quarter 
four 2021/22 was published on the Vale’s 
website. This is intended to increase the 
public’s understanding of what the Council 
does, how it works and how decisions are 
made.

As part of the Vale’s ambition to improve its 
use of technology to increase understanding 
and access to what the Council does, it 
continued to livestream all public meetings 
during quarter one. This not only helped to 

ensure a greater degree of accessibility for 
residents, but also allowed them an insight into 
our decision-making processes. Officers are 
currently working on business continuity plans 
to ensure that this continues when the Council 
vacates the offices at Milton Park. To help 
facilitate the future livestreaming of meetings, 
a dedicated Teams room is being installed at 
Abbey House.

In addition, the Comms team, in collaboration 
with Planning Policy, were able to produce an 
innovative, interactive website for the first Joint 
Local Plan (JLP) consultation. This allowed 
users to explore the details of the Plan across 
infographics, images and maps that could be 
moved and manipulated. In addition, Smart 
Survey was also embedded within the website 
to allow people to respond as they explored 
the themes of the JLP. This approach received 
widespread praise from the public, councillors 
and other local authorities.

P
age 98

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Working in an open and inclusive way 17whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

During quarter one, the communications team integrated its social media accounts to the Hootsuite platform. This has helped to increase 
efficiency and productivity, as officers no longer have to work through each account’s native site. In addition, it allows for all of the analytics to 

be gathered in one place which will make it easier to compare and optimise performance in the future.

Progress was also made on upgrading the system that delivers online E-forms and the Binzone app. These improvements will make it more 
resilient and provide a better platform – the updated software will provide opportunities to improve E-forms and make them more ‘mobile-friendly’.

With the aim of increasing meaningful engagement with everyone, a report on the Vale’s consultation and engagement approach was considered 
by the Scrutiny Committee during the quarter. The feedback and suggestions arising from members is being worked into the Community 
Engagement team’s future plans.

Discussions began between the Community Engagement and Planning Policy teams on increasing the active involvement of young people in 
the next stage of the Joint Local Plan. Moreover, the Vale continued to gather baseline data on how many young people the Council is engaging 
with. This information will be used to help increase the reach of future consultations.

Quarter one also saw the Vale prepare a communications and engagement Plan for the Council’s Diversity and Inclusion Strategy. It is designed 
to raise awareness of the Strategy amongst all of the district’s residents and encourage their participation in the ongoing public consultation on 
the document. Of particular importance is the feedback from minority groups on the accessibility of our services.

As part of the Vale’s commitment to strengthening the Council’s governance framework, work continued on the development of the Articles of 
Constitution (having been approved by the Constitution Review Group). Progress is scheduled to continue throughout the summer, with a report 
being taken to Full Council in quarter two.

Vale of White Horse quarter one independent cabinet member decisions

Date Description

07/04/2022 Didcot Local Development Order - to approve the draft order for consultation

28/04/2022 Joint Local Plan - to launch the consultation on issues and supporting documents

05/05/2022 Procurement of merchant banking services - to award a contract

23/05/2022 Discretionary fuel payments scheme - to approve the scheme

20/06/2022 Dalton Barracks Garden Village project funding

21/06/2022 Taxi tariff - to approve the consultation of the review of the tariff

P
age 99

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Theme 1 performance updates 18whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

Theme 1: Providing the homes people need - performance updates against reporting measures  

Corp Plan ID Stated Aim/Project 
description Reporting Measure Cabinet 

Lead 
Officer Lead 
Title Q1 Performance Update

PROGRAMME 1

Explore and consider 
opportunities to bring forward 
the delivery of homes people 
can afford

Narrative report of newly 
identified opportunities to 
bring forward/expedite  the 
delivery of affordable homes

Cllr Judy 
Roberts 

Head of 
Housing and 
Environment

The Council is seeking to build upon the success of delivering 
two affordable housing projects using commuted S.106 sums. 
Bidding is currently open for registered providers and community 
land trusts to submit applications for grant funding to deliver new 
affordable housing schemes.

PHPN1.1

Explore a council-owned 
holding company/vehicle, to 
focus on delivering a wide 
range of regeneration and 
community benefits including 
housing , community 
facilities, land maintenance 
and health

Narrative update on the 
potential opportunities/
challenges around the 
creation of a holding 
company/SPV (special 
purpose vehicle)

Cllr Judy 
Roberts 

Master 
Planning 
Lead

During Q1 2022/23, the Council continued to discuss with 
the Defence Infrastructure Organisation their plans for Dalton 
Barracks. 
 
The Vale also liaised with the County Council regarding the 
Oxfordshire Mobility Model and Strategic Transport issues. 
 
In addition, conversations continued to be held with Berkeley 
Homes over their plans for a joint venture company at Ock Valley 
Business Park.  
 
On 18 June, a public consultation event for the Central Abingdon 
Regeneration Framework was held. This marked the beginning of 
a four week public engagement exercise on the project/proposals. 

PHPN1.2 

Explore how the council can 
provide low-cost sustainable 
housing. Include working 
with developers, registered 
providers, community trusts, 
as well as new partnerships. 
Include council owned 
housing. Include a definition 
of affordability relative to 
ability to pay, not to market 
value, and social rent 
definitions

Narrative report on provision 
of low cost housing, focusing 
on partnership working, 
including an update on the 
shifting metric of affordability 
based on relative ability to pay 
rather than market value and 
social rent definitions

Cllr Judy 
Roberts 

Head of 
Housing and 
Environment

Following a meeting in May between lead members and officers, 
it was agreed that the most effective approach for delivering the 
aims of an Affordable Housing Supplementary Planning Document 
– for example, in relation to affordability – was to pursue policy 
changes through the Joint Local Plan.  
 
It was also decided during Q1 2022/23 that the Vale’s existing 
affordable housing policies should be brought together into a 
single guidance document for both developers and registered 
providers. Planning and Housing officers are currently carrying 
out this work and aim to publish it on the Council’s website in 
September. 
 
During Q1, the Council, in partnership with Registered Providers, 
delivered 74 affordable homes. 

P
age 100

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Theme 1 performance updates 19whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

Theme 1: Providing the homes people need - performance updates against reporting measures  

Corp Plan ID Stated Aim/Project 
description Reporting Measure Cabinet 

Lead 
Officer Lead 
Title Q1 Performance Update

PHPN1.3 Review our affordable 
housing planning policies and 
ensure they are providing 
what’s needed in the Vale

Narrative report on review of 
planning policies 

Cllr Judy 
Roberts 

Head of 
Housing and 
Environment

During Q1 2022/23, good progress continued to be made on the 
development of a new Joint Housing Strategy. Workshops were 
held between members and officers, and a first draft has now been 
produced. 
 
The appointment of a new Housing Delivery Manager will help to 
accelerate this work going forwards.

PHPN1.4 Review our strategy for 
spending s106 sums paid 
in lieu of onsite affordable 
housing and identify how 
earmarked funds, including 
retained S106 monies, can 
be best utilised to deliver 
affordable homes

Narrative report on s106 
spend, focusing on the stated 
aim and any updates to the 
existing strategy 
 
Additional quantitative 
elements - s106  spend/units 
provided from spend

Cllr Judy 
Roberts 

Head of 
Housing and 
Environment

Bidding is currently open for registered providers and community 
land trusts to submit applications for grant funding to deliver new 
affordable housing schemes. Officers are actively promoting 
submissions and, when appointed, the new position of Housing 
Delivery Manager will help to implement new procedures to 
facilitate the delivery of projects.

PHPN1.5 Explore how mobile homes 
might be better used as 
affordable homes, reviewing 
sites and policies to ensure 
good use of available space

Narrative update on utilisation 
of mobile homes/mobile home 
sites or opportunities for 
creating such sites

Cllr Judy 
Roberts 

Head of 
Development 
and 
Corporate 
Landlord

During Q1 2022/23, progress was made on updating the Pebble 
Hill site plan, constraints and costings. In addition, a tree survey 
was procured. 
 
A project plan has now been established with the expected 
delivery of additional mobile home berths scheduled for Autumn 
2023. 

PHPN1.6 Use Garden Villages and 
Towns designation as a 
mechanism to introduce 
innovative housing to meet 
our needs for high quality, low 
energy, zero-carbon homes

Narrative report on garden 
village and town designation 
utilisation and any projects 
which fall within this 
designation. Also to include 
initiatives which will result 
in low energy, zero carbon 
homes

Cllr Judy 
Roberts 

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

On 20 June 2022, an Individual Cabinet Member Decision 
(ICMD) was approved to accept £180,000 of funding from the 
Department of Levelling Up, Housing and Communities to support 
the delivery of Dalton Barracks Garden Village. This support will 
enable additional progress to be made on the governance, quality, 
innovation and stewardship workstreams.  

P
age 101

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Theme 1 performance updates 20whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

Theme 1: Providing the homes people need - performance updates against reporting measures  

Corp Plan ID Stated Aim/Project 
description Reporting Measure Cabinet 

Lead 
Officer Lead 
Title Q1 Performance Update

PROGRAMME 2 Adopt a policy framework that 
ensures those homes could 
be delivered in a way that 
supports the environment 
and people living healthy 
lives

Narrative report against the 
Programme aim

Cllr Judy 
Roberts 

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

During Q1 2022/23, the Council’s Planning Policy team has 
continued to work on the development of the Joint Local Plan. 
Between 12 May and 23 June, a public consultation – known 
formally as a ‘Regulation 18 Part 1 Issues Consultation’ – was 
held. This asked for views on a draft vision for the Joint Local 
Plan and included matters relating to the environment and healthy 
lifestyles.  
 
The Planning Policy team are currently processing the responses 
that were received.

PHPN2.1 Develop a s106 obligations 
strategy to inform 
negotiations between 
planners and developers 

Cllr Judy 
Roberts 

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

No progress to report Q1 2022/23 - Project completed. 

PHPN2.2 Update the CIL spending 
strategy and associated 
procedures to accelerate the 
delivery of local infrastructural 
improvements for our 
communities both in line with 
our corporate objectives and, 
where appropriate, to support 
current spending on existing 
infrastructure

Narrative update on CIL 
spend to support the delivery 
of local infrastructure  
 
Total CIL spend + CIL spend 
breakdown

Cllr Judy 
Roberts

Head of 
Finance

During April 2022, £580,130 was paid to town and parish councils 
that had seen CIL liable developments in their areas during the 
previous six months.  
 
Since the introduction of CIL in 2017, £1,880,352 has been made 
available to town and parish councils for use on local projects to 
support development. 

PHPN2.3 Consider ways we can 
encourage lower-carbon 
construction in Vale

Narrative update to include 
any activity supporting lower-
carbon construction in the 
Vale

Cllr Judy 
Roberts 

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

The new Joint Design Guide (JDG) was agreed by Vale of 
White Horse’s Cabinet in June 2022. The JDG incorporates new 
guidance on zero and low carbon construction. 
 
In addition, the Future Oxfordshire Partnership received an update 
on the Pathways to Zero Carbon Oxfordshire routemap during Q1. 
Workshops to inform this project are scheduled for later in the year 
– one of these will focus on retrofit and low carbon construction 
methods. 

P
age 102

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Theme 1 performance updates 21whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

Theme 1: Providing the homes people need - performance updates against reporting measures  

Corp Plan ID Stated Aim/Project 
description Reporting Measure Cabinet 

Lead 
Officer Lead 
Title Q1 Performance Update

PHPN2.4 Develop an affordable 
housing SPD. Evidence of 
housing needs, housing mix, 
self-build, rural exception 
sites. Include definition of 
‘affordable’

Narrative update on the 
development of an affordable 
housing SPD, additionally 
include information on 
planning permissions granted 
with affordable housing 
numbers

Cllr Debby 
Hallett

Head of 
Housing and 
Environment

Following a meeting in May between lead members and officers, 
it was agreed that the most effective approach for delivering the 
aims of an Affordable Housing Supplementary Planning Document 
was to pursue policy changes through the Joint Local Plan.  
 
It was also decided during Q1 2022/23 that the Vale’s existing 
affordable housing policies should be brought together into a 
single guidance document for both developers and registered 
providers. Planning and Housing officers are currently carrying 
out this work and aim to publish it on the Council’s website in 
September.  
 
During Q1, the Council, in partnership with Registered Providers, 
delivered 74 affordable housing units. 

PHPN2.5 Develop a Land Use 
strategy to inform and guide 
OxPlan2050 and Vale Local 
Plan with proposed need for 
housing, retail, employment, 
leisure, open spaces

Narrative update on 
progression against stated 
aim of PHPN 2.6 in the 
corporate plan

Cllr Judy 
Roberts 

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

During Q1 2022/23, the Council’s Planning Policy team continued 
to work on the development of the Joint Local Plan. Between 12 
May and 23 June, a public consultation – known formally as a 
‘Regulation 18 Part 1 Issues Consultation’ – was held. This asked 
for views on a draft vision for the Joint Local Plan. The Planning 
Policy team are currently processing the responses that were 
received. 
 
Work also continued to progress on the Oxfordshire Plan 2050 
throughout the quarter.

PHPN2.6 Update the Local 
Development Plan to 
reflect the Oxfordshire 
Infrastructure Strategy 
(OxIS) and connecting our 
strategic housing sites with 
employment land

Narrative update on 
progression against stated 
aim of PHPN 2.7 in the 
corporate plan

Cllr Judy 
Roberts 

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

During Q1 2022/23, the Council’s Planning Policy team continued 
to work on the development of the Joint Local Plan. Between 12 
May and 23 June, a public consultation – known formally as a 
‘Regulation 18 Part 1 Issues Consultation’ – was held. This asked 
for views on a draft vision for the Joint Local Plan and included 
matters relating to infrastructure. The Planning Policy team are 
currently processing the responses that were received. 
 
Work also continued to progress on the Oxfordshire Infrastructure 
Strategy throughout the quarter. 

P
age 103

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Theme 1 performance updates 22whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

Theme 1: Providing the homes people need - performance updates against reporting measures  

Corp Plan ID Stated Aim/Project 
description Reporting Measure Cabinet 

Lead 
Officer Lead 
Title Q1 Performance Update

PHPN2.7 Update Vale’s Local Plan and 
OxPlan2050 with modern 
environmental policies in 
support of government’s and 
Vale’s goals

Narrative update on 
progression against stated 
aim of PHPN 2.8 in the 
corporate plan

Cllr Debby 
Hallett

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

During Q1 2022/23, the Council’s Planning Policy team has 
continued to work on the development of the Joint Local Plan. 
Between 12 May and 23 June, a public consultation – known 
formally as a ‘Regulation 18 Part 1 Issues Consultation’ – was 
held. This asked for views on a draft vision for the Joint Local 
Plan and included matters relating to sustainable growth and the 
environment. The Planning Policy team are currently processing 
the responses that were received. 
 
In June, the meeting of the Joint Local Plan Steering Group 
focussed on the topic of the environment. Members helped to 
provide a steer for policy development in regards to biodiversity 
net gain, landscape and the water environment. 
 
Work also continued to progress on the Oxfordshire Plan 2050 
throughout the quarter. 

PHPN2.8 Develop a Housing Policy: 
that outlines the types of 
housing we are going to 
provide, in what mix of design 
and for what demographic 
and tenure, to inform our 
Local Plan and future work. 
Include affordable housing 
aspirations, consideration 
of an aging population, and 
environmental policies for 
housing

Narrative update on housing 
policy and adherence
 
Include quantitative measures 
for housing mix, tenure, 
and affordable and shared 
ownership

Cllr Judy 
Roberts 

Head of 
Housing and 
Environment

During Q1 2022/23, good progress continued to be made on the 
development of a new Joint Housing Strategy. Workshops were 
held between members and officers, and a first draft has now been 
produced. 
 
The appointment of a new Housing Delivery Manager will help to 
accelerate this work going forwards. 
 
The quantitative measures regarding housing mix, tenure and 
affordability will be determined as the development of the strategy 
progresses. 

P
age 104

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Theme 1 performance updates 23whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

Theme 1: Providing the homes people need - performance updates against reporting measures  

Corp Plan ID Stated Aim/Project 
description Reporting Measure Cabinet 

Lead 
Officer Lead 
Title Q1 Performance Update

PHPN2.9 Work with partners to 
produce an Active Travel 
Network map of current and 
required coverage across the 
Vale to include commercial 
and community buses, cycle 
paths and storage facilities, 
pavements and footpaths, 
green and blue infrastructure, 
and local taxi firms. 
Encourage systems that 
increase use of the Active 
Travel Network

Narrative update on progress 
toward completion of map, 
once map completed, this 
should transition to an annual 
review of the accuracy of map 

Cllr Judy 
Roberts 

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

During Q1 2022/23, Oxfordshire County Council tendered for 
a consultant to develop a Strategic Active Travel Network. An 
appointment is due to be made by the end of August 2022. 

P
age 105

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Theme 2 performance updates 24whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

Theme 2: Tackling the climate emergency - Performance updates against reporting measures 

Corp Plan ID Stated Aim/Project 
description Reporting Measure Cabinet 

Lead 
Officer Lead 
Title Q1 Performance Update

PROGRAMME 1 A climate emergency 
programme, focussed on 
what the council has control 
over, working towards our 
own targets for our own 
buildings, vehicles, leisure 
and arts centres

A narrative summary 
comprised of all new activity 
to reduce the carbon footprint 
of all Council assets on a 
quarterly basis

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

During Q1 2022/23, the Vale received the finalised 
decarbonisation assessments and plans for both the Wantage 
Leisure Centre and the White Horse Leisure Centre. The 
Council also received preliminary indications of when phase 
3b of the Public Sector Decarbonisation Scheme will open for 
applications. 

TCE1.1 Develop a Climate 
Emergency Strategy for the 
Council, setting out how we 
will reach Zero Carbon for all 
Vale assets by 2030. Identify 
energy saving opportunities 
in council-owned buildings 
and fleets

A narrative report of activity 
underway to design the plan 
to achieve a zero carbon 
position for all Vale assets by 
2030

Cllr Sally 
Povolotsky 

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

Climate Action Plan (CAP) monitoring commenced during 
Q1 2022/23. It will be delivered in tandem with the Council’s 
Corporate Plan performance reporting and will give a detailed 
overview of progress on all the climate actions set out in the 
adopted CAP.

TCE1.2 Complete the CEAC Year 
One Climate Action Plan and 
plan for future years

Narrative report on progress Cllr Sally 
Povolotsky 

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

Climate Action Plan (CAP) monitoring commenced during 
Q1 2022/23. It will be delivered in tandem with the Council’s 
Corporate Plan performance reporting and will give a detailed 
overview of progress on all the climate actions set out in the 
adopted CAP. 
 
No meetings of the CEAC were held in Q1 2022/23. Both the 
Chair of the Committee and the Cabinet Member for Climate 
and Environment have, however, changed. 

TCE1.3 Include in Councils Open 
Space Strategy opportunities 
to increase biodiversity, 
increase tree cover, and 
(other things we want to do 
on Council's open spaces)

Narrative report on specific 
opportunities which have 
arisen for the council to 
improve open spaces. Also 
include any additional policy 
developments

Cllr Judy 
Roberts 

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

The Vale received no new applications relating to the Tree 
Planting on Council Owned Land Policy during Q1 2022/23. 
(The Council have, though, been exploring other opportunities 
to plant more trees across the district. These include a “Tiny 
Forest” project and a potential strategic partnership). 
 
In Q1 2022/23, the Vale did, however, receive a high volume of 
applications that focused on improvements to open spaces and 
increasing biodiversity into the Climate Action Fund.

P
age 106

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Theme 2 performance updates 25whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

Theme 2: Tackling the climate emergency - Performance updates against reporting measures 

Corp Plan ID Stated Aim/Project 
description Reporting Measure Cabinet 

Lead 
Officer Lead 
Title Q1 Performance Update

PROGRAMME 2 A climate emergency 
programme focussed on 
encouraging the wider district 
community to reduce its 
carbon footprint in order to 
meet the Climate Emergency 
targets

A narrative update of the 
work of the comms team in 
promoting measures/initiatives 
which will help the community 
to reduce it's carbon footprint

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

During Q1 2022/23, the Vale ran several successful comms 
campaigns and initiatives designed to increase awareness of 
the Climate Emergency and to help the community to reduce its 
carbon footprint. These included: 

a recycling campaign around Easter
information about the Council’s Park and Charge project
highlighting Earth Day
details about “no mow May”
the promotion of the Climate Action Fund
informing residents of an Oxfordshire wide climate change 
survey

TCE2.1 Complete those tasks in Year 
one Climate Action Plan that 
have to do with reducing 
carbon in the wider district

Narrative report on progress Cllr Sally 
Povolotsky 

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

Climate Action Plan (CAP) monitoring commenced during 
Q1 2022/23. It will be delivered in tandem with the Council’s 
Corporate Plan performance reporting and will give a detailed 
overview of all actions that may have an impact on reducing 
carbon in the wider district.  

TCE2.2 Introduce policies for 
zero carbon construction 
requirements

Narrative update on progress 
toward design guide 
implementation, transitioning 
into review of relevant 
information/developments in 
this area

Cllr Sally 
Povolotsky 

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

The new Joint Design Guide (JDG) was agreed by Vale of 
White Horse’s Cabinet in June 2022. The JDG incorporates 
new guidance on zero and low carbon construction. 
 
In addition, the Future Oxfordshire Partnership received an 
update on the Pathways to Zero Carbon Oxfordshire routemap 
during Q1. Workshops to inform this project are scheduled for 
later in the year – one of these will focus on retrofit and low 
carbon construction methods. 

P
age 107

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Theme 2 performance updates 26whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

Theme 2: Tackling the climate emergency - Performance updates against reporting measures 

Corp Plan ID Stated Aim/Project 
description Reporting Measure Cabinet 

Lead 
Officer Lead 
Title Q1 Performance Update

TCE2.3 Introduce sustainable growth 
and environmental policies to 
our Local Plan

Narrative update on 
the progress towards 
development of new local 
plan, specifically referring to 
details in TCE2.3/4

Cllr Sally 
Povolotsky 

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

During Q1 2022/23, the Council’s Planning Policy team has 
continued to work on the development of the Joint Local Plan. 
Between 12 May and 23 June, a public consultation – known 
formally as a ‘Regulation 18 Part 1 Issues Consultation’ – was 
held. This asked for views on a draft vision for the Joint Local 
Plan and included matters relating to sustainable growth and 
the environment. The Planning Policy team are currently 
processing the responses that were received. 
 
In June, the meeting of the Joint Local Plan Steering Group 
focussed on the topic of the environment. Members helped to 
provide a steer for policy development in regards to biodiversity 
net gain, landscape and the water environment.

TCE2.4 Ensure our Local Plan 
contains polices to make new 
buildings carbon zero to build 
and to live/work in

Narrative update on 
the progress towards 
development of new local 
plan, specifically referring to 
details in TCE2.3/4

Cllr Debby 
Hallett

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

During Q1 2022/23, the Council’s Planning Policy team has 
continued to work on the development of the Joint Local Plan. 
Between 12 May and 23 June, a public consultation – known 
formally as a ‘Regulation 18 Part 1 Issues Consultation’ – was 
held. This asked for views on a draft vision for the Joint Local 
Plan and included matters relating to sustainable construction. 
The Planning Policy team are currently processing the 
responses that were received. 
 
At the Oxfordshire Plan level, work also progressed on 
developing a policy approach on zero carbon for the county. 

TCE2.5 Develop a year two plan 
with CEAC for meeting our 
Climate emergency goals

High level narrative on 
progress towards approval of 
two year plan

Cllr Sally 
Povolotsky 

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

From Q1 2022/23, the Climate Action Plan (CAP) is being 
monitored as part of the Council’s corporate performance 
management framework. It will be delivered in tandem with the 
Council’s Corporate Plan performance reporting and will give 
a detailed overview of all actions that may have an impact on 
reducing carbon in the wider district.

P
age 108

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Theme 2 performance updates 27whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

Theme 2: Tackling the climate emergency - Performance updates against reporting measures 

Corp Plan ID Stated Aim/Project 
description Reporting Measure Cabinet 

Lead 
Officer Lead 
Title Q1 Performance Update

TCE2.6 Improve how we measure air 
quality. Explore particulate 
measurement in our sensitive 
areas. Explore ways to 
publish AQ measurements 
in live time, so people can 
make decisions on whether 
it's healthy outside for them 
today

Narrative containing updates/
changes to AQ monitoring 
techniques, an update on 
work with partners to monitor 
AQ and details of published 
AQ measures

Cllr Sally 
Povolotsky 

Head of 
Housing and 
Environment

Particulate Matter (PM) and Nitrogen Dioxide (NO2) monitoring 
in Marcham continued throughout Q1 2022/23. Provisional 
results (to date) show no exceedances in national air quality 
objectives for NO2, PM10 and PM2.5. (NB: This provisional 
data will need to be corrected and ratified at the end of the 
calendar year). 
 
The Council submitted its Annual Air Quality Status Report 
(2021) to Defra during Q1. Feedback on this is expected later in 
the year.  
 
Real Time Air Quality Data for sites within Vale of White Horse 
is available at https://www.airqualityengland.co.uk

TCE2.7 Update the Air Quality Action 
Plans for our Air Quality 
Management Areas

Until funding confirmed for 
development of new AQAP's, 
narrative update on any 
significant deviation from last 
relevant AQAP. Once funding 
confirmed, this can report on 
the development of the new 
AQAP.

Cllr Sally 
Povolotsky 

Head of 
Housing and 
Environment

During Q1 2022/23, tender documents to engage consultants to 
develop new Air Quality Plans were published. The closing date 
for returns is in July, after which submissions will be evaluated 
and a consultant appointed.  

TCE2.8 Explore setting up a Habitat 
Bank to deliver biodiversity 
offsetting requirements and 
facilitate tree planting

Narrative update as to 
progress of potential pilot and 
other relevant initiatives

Cllr Sally 
Povolotsky 

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

During Q1 2022/23, the Habitat Banking Pilot Scheme identified 
a potential developer who is keen to work with the Berkshire, 
Buckinghamshire and Oxfordshire Wildlife Trust on delivering 
their Biodiversity Net Gain requirements. This potential 
relationship will be subject to further discussions in Q2. 
 
The overall Habitat Banking Pilot Scheme still, however, 
remains dependent on the publication of HM Government’s 
regulations and guidance on Biodiversity Net Gain. 

P
age 109

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Theme 2 performance updates 28whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

Theme 2: Tackling the climate emergency - Performance updates against reporting measures 

Corp Plan ID Stated Aim/Project 
description Reporting Measure Cabinet 

Lead 
Officer Lead 
Title Q1 Performance Update

PROGRAMME 3 A programme around 
exercising our influence with 
partners on wider policy, 
working with neighbouring 
authorities, lobbying 
Government and identifying 
environmental policy gaps

General Narrative update Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

During Q1 2022/23, the Vale, through its membership of the 
Future Oxfordshire Partnership Environment Advisory Group, 
continued to work with neighbouring authorities in relation to 
climate and environmental matters. At the Group’s meeting in 
June, members discussed issues regarding Pathways to Zero 
Carbon Oxfordshire and the Oxfordshire Food Strategy. They 
were also presented with a paper on adaptation. 

TCE3.1 Complete the CEAC Year 
One Action Plan and plan for 
future years

Narrative report on progress Cllr Sally 
Povolotsky 

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

From Q1 2022/23, the Climate Action Plan (CAP) is being 
monitored as part of the Council’s corporate performance 
management framework. It will be delivered in tandem with the 
Council’s Corporate Plan performance reporting and will give 
a detailed overview of all actions that may have an impact on 
reducing carbon in the wider district.

TCE3.2 Work with partners to define 
a waste reduction scheme: 
including ways to reduce 
bulky waste headed to 
landfill and reduce recycling 
contamination

Narrative report to outline 
steps to influence partners 
and our actions to reduce 
overall waste

Cllr Sally 
Povolotsky 

Head of 
Housing and 
Environment

The April 2022 recycling rate was 66.25%, the landfill rate was 
0.21% and the contamination rate was 9.64%.

The May 2022 recycling rate was 62.69%, the landfill rate was 
0.21% and the contamination rate was 7.56%.

The figures for June have yet to be finalised.

During Q1 2022/23, the Vale ran several comms campaigns. 
These included:
promoting the use of Real Nappies
the Great British Spring Clean
a litter mapping project
encouraging composting

TCE3.3 Develop a tree-planting 
strategy and work with 
partners to plant more trees 
across the district

Narrative update to include 
development of the tree policy 
and subsequent activity

Cllr Sally 
Povolotsky 

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

The Vale received no new applications relating to the Tree 
Planting on Council Owned Land Policy during Q1 2022/23. 
The Council have, however, been exploring other opportunities 
to plant more trees across the district. These include a “Tiny 
Forest” project and a potential strategic partnership. 

P
age 110

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Theme 2 performance updates 29whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

Theme 2: Tackling the climate emergency - Performance updates against reporting measures 

Corp Plan ID Stated Aim/Project 
description Reporting Measure Cabinet 

Lead 
Officer Lead 
Title Q1 Performance Update

TCE3.4 Develop a Biodiversity Net 
Gain Targeting Strategy 
and contribute to a Nature 
Recovery Network for 
Oxfordshire

Narrative update on related 
work, including but not limited 
to the work to support the 
Oxfordshire Plan.

Cllr Sally 
Povolotsky 

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

"During Q1 2022/23, Natural England appointed a new Senior 
Advisor for the Local Nature Recovery Strategy (LNRS) in 
Oxfordshire. They will initially focus upon working with partners 
on preparatory work for the production of the Strategy – this 
will begin when HM Government releases the supplementary 
regulations and guidance (this is not expected before the end of 
Q2 2022/23).  
 
The LNRS will include a Nature Recovery Network which 
will form the main focus for the targeting of Biodiversity Net 
Gain funding. All of Oxfordshire’s local authorities (along with 
many other stakeholders) will be involved as partners in the 
production of the Strategy. 

TCE3.5 Work with partners to provide 
electric charging points in 
Vale car parks and at our 
buildings, and increase 
charging infrastructure across 
Oxfordshire

"A narrative update to include 
work to promote and develop 
EV infrastructure across the 
district. 
 
Quantitative element - 
breakdown of existing/planned 
EV charging points"

Cllr Sally 
Povolotsky 

Head of 
Development 
and Corporate 
Landlord

During Q1 2022/23, 60 electric vehicle (EV) charging bays 
became operational in five of the Council’s car parks as part of 
the Oxfordshire wide “Park and Charge” project. 
 
Officers also worked with colleagues from Oxfordshire County 
Council to make a joint application for further Local Electric 
Vehicle Infrastructure (LEVI) funding. We are currently awaiting 
the outcome.

TCE3.6 Take an active role in the 
Oxford-Cambridge arc to 
influence the inclusion of 
sustainable growth and 
environmental policies

A narrative update on the 
work of the Oxford-Cambridge 
arc and our influencing activity

Cllr Emily 
Smith 

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

No progress to report in Q1 2022/23 – HM Government’s work 
on the Arc appears to have paused. 

TCE3.7 Take an active role in 
the Growth Deal and the 
Oxfordshire Plan 2050 to 
influence the inclusion of 
sustainable growth and 
environmental policies

Narrative report on work to 
support the Oxfordshire Plan 
in accordance with TEC3.7

Cllr Emily 
Smith 

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

During Q1 2022/23, the Vale continued to work in partnership 
with neighbouring local authorities on progressing the next 
stage of the Oxfordshire Plan 2050 and raised the need to 
ensure the climate emergency and the Oxfordshire Vision 
previously agreed by all partner councils remained central to 
the Oxfordshire Plan. Members and officers provided input on 
both the quantity of development and environmental policies.  
 
In Q1, Cllr Smith chaired, and Cllr Hallett participated in 
meetings of the Oxfordshire Plan Advisory Group.

P
age 111

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Theme 2 performance updates 30whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

Theme 2: Tackling the climate emergency - Performance updates against reporting measures 

Corp Plan ID Stated Aim/Project 
description Reporting Measure Cabinet 

Lead 
Officer Lead 
Title Q1 Performance Update

TCE3.8 Work with local partners 
and Government to 
encourage retrofitting houses 
with sustainable energy 
schemes; help residents take 
advantage of schemes that 
come along to help with costs

Narrative report on work 
influencing work, comms 
activity and direct engagement 
with residents.

Cllr Sally 
Povolotsky 

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

During Q1 2022/23, the Future Oxfordshire Partnership 
received an update on the Pathways to Zero Carbon 
Oxfordshire routemap during Q1. The Vale has been invited to 
attend workshops – scheduled for later in the year – that will 
inform this project. One of these will focus on retrofit and low 
carbon construction methods. This will afford the Council and its 
partners the opportunity to establish a common set of actions to 
help address this shared challenge.   

P
age 112

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Theme 3 performance updates 31whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

Theme 3: Building healthy communities - performance updates against reporting measures 

Corp Plan ID Stated Aim/Project 
description Reporting Measure Cabinet 

Lead 
Officer Lead 
Title Q1 Performance Update

PROGRAMME 1 Building strong communities 
and connections, with a 
sense of place and strong 
community identity

Narrative update Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

The new Joint Design Guide was agreed by Vale of White 
Horse’s Cabinet in June 2022. It contains provisions relating to 
importance of a sense of place and identity in developments. 
 
In addition, during Q1 2022/23 the Council’s Planning Policy 
Team continued to make progress on the Joint Local Plan. 
Between 12 May and 23 June, a public consultation was held 
which asked for views on a draft vision for the Joint Local Plan. 
This included consideration of the following: “A place where 
history is still visible, where heritage and landscape character 
are safeguarded and valued, and the beauty and the distinctive 
local identity of our towns and villages have been enhanced."" 
The Planning Policy team are currently processing the 
responses that were received.

BHC1.1 Review the use of 
Community buildings and 
other facilities owned or 
managed by the council to 
maximise usage, income 
for the council and ensure 
communities have spaces in 
which to come together.

Narrative update as to the 
progress/outcomes from the 
Strategic Property Review 

Cllr Helen 
Pighills 

Head of 
Development 
and Corporate 
Landlord

During Q1 2022/23, the District Centre on Great Western Park 
continued to see good growth in community use bookings.  
 
Work also continued on reviewing the usage of community 
buildings to determine their best future operational models.  

BHC1.2 Establish a Public Arts policy Narrative update on the 
progress towards developing 
a public arts policy

Cllr Helen 
Pighills 

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

No progress to report Q1 2022/23. 

P
age 113

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Theme 3 performance updates 32whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

Theme 3: Building healthy communities - performance updates against reporting measures 

Corp Plan ID Stated Aim/Project 
description Reporting Measure Cabinet 

Lead 
Officer Lead 
Title Q1 Performance Update

BHC1.3 Maintain and develop 
the council’s Community 
Enablement function to 
respond to changing needs 
because of Covid-19

Narrative update on relevant 
areas of the Council response 
to Covid 19 as the needs/
requirements change 

Cllr Helen 
Pighills 

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

The Community Enablement team maintained close 
connections with colleagues in the Community Hub throughout 
the quarter. They also circulated relevant information to support 
the voluntary sector in its recovery form the impact of Covid-19 
either directly or through the team’s newsletter. 
 
In addition, the Community Hub continued to work closely with 
voluntary and community sector to distribute the Household 
Support Grant to those in need of assistance and support. 

BHC1.4 Work with others to promote 
Active Travel and support the 
development of Local Cycling 
and Walking Infrastructure 
plans to help shape new 
developments that link 
homes to work, recreation 
and social spaces within 
communities

Narrative report on the 
work with partners to 
promote active travel and 
encouragement of cycling and 
walking infrastructure 
 
Quantitative measure of 
amount of new footpaths/cycle 
paths approved since last 
report/YTD etc.

Cllr Judy 
Roberts 

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

During Q1 2022/23, a procurement exercise has been held to 
appoint a consultant to develop a Local Cycling and Walking 
Infrastructure Plan for Didcot Garden Town and its environs. 
This project is scheduled to be completed by December 2022 
and will recommend improvements to both existing and new 
cycling/walking routes for the purposes of commuting and 
leisure. 
 
The draft Active Communities Strategy was considered by 
Vale’s Scrutiny Committee in June 2022. It was well received 
by members and will come before Cabinet during Q2 2022/23. 
One of the key themes of the Strategy is to: 'create healthier 
communities through walking and cycling'. 
 
Plans have also been made for a summer activity programme. 
This includes safe cycling courses – run in partnership with 
a local cycling club – designed to help children aged 6-8 to 
become more proficient and confident. (Future learn to ride 
programmes will extend to other age groups).  

P
age 114

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Theme 3 performance updates 33whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

Theme 3: Building healthy communities - performance updates against reporting measures 

Corp Plan ID Stated Aim/Project 
description Reporting Measure Cabinet 

Lead 
Officer Lead 
Title Q1 Performance Update

BHC1.5 Develop planning policies to 
ensure careful consideration 
of the effect of air pollution on 
the lives of people who will 
live there

Narrative update to include 
information relevant to 
BHC1.5, 
 
Quantitative measure -  the 
number of neighbourhood 
plans and the stage they are 
current at

Cllr Debby 
Hallett

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

During Q1 2022/23, the Council’s Planning Policy team has 
continued to work on the development of the Joint Local Plan. 
Between 12 May and 23 June, a public consultation – known 
formally as a ‘Regulation 18 Part 1 Issues Consultation’ – was 
held. This asked for views on a draft vision for the Joint Local 
Plan and included matters relating to air quality. The Planning 
Policy team are currently processing the responses that were 
received. 
 
As of 30 June 2022, there are 15 made Neighbourhood Plans 
in the district (one of which is currently under review). There 
are nine plans in progress, three of which have completed 
pre-submission consultations. Of the 15 made Neighbourhood 
Plans, North Hinksey, Drayton and West Hanney have policies 
dealing with air quality considerations. Those for Cumnor and 
Chilton address the topic through supporting text or community 
action plans. 
 
In Q1 2022/23, the Vale started their pilot of a simpler approach 
to neighbourhood planning. Three parishes within the Vale 
(West Challow, Kennington and Fyfield & Tubney) were 
selected to trial this new method. Following an introductory 
meeting with the pilot groups in May (which explored the 
aims, parameters and expectations of the project), the first 
of a series of capacity building workshops (detailing how the 
planning system works and some of the key concepts around 
placemaking) was held on 28 June.

P
age 115

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Theme 3 performance updates 34whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

Theme 3: Building healthy communities - performance updates against reporting measures 

Corp Plan ID Stated Aim/Project 
description Reporting Measure Cabinet 

Lead 
Officer Lead 
Title Q1 Performance Update

BHC1.6 Update the Air Quality 
Management Action Plans 
for the Vale’s air pollution 
hotspots; Work with 
Oxfordshire County Council 
to improve how we measure 
and report air pollution and 
how we will work with schools 
and community groups to 
raise awareness of our clean 
air campaigns 

Narrative update on activity 
related to BHC 1.6

Cllr Sally 
Povolotsky 

Head of 
Housing and 
Environment

During Q1 2022/23, tender documents to engage consultants to 
develop new Air Quality Plans were published. The closing date 
for returns is in July, after which submissions will be evaluated 
and a consultant appointed. 
 
The Council also submitted its Annual Air Quality Status Report 
(2021) to Defra Feedback on this is expected later in the year. 
 
In addition, OCC’s Public Health Team, in conjunction with 
the districts, redeployed air quality sensors to primary school 
locations across the county. These devices will not only help to 
provide baseline data but will also monitor any changes in air 
quality resulting from any potential interventions. In the Vale, 
the air quality sensor is located at St Nicholas Primary School, 
Abingdon.    
 
The Vale also ran a number of comms campaigns during Q1 
2022/23 related to improving air quality. These included:
promoting Walk to Work Day
highlighting Clean Air Day
marking Earth Day

PROGRAMME 2 Promoting healthy place 
shaping and active 
communities, for everyone

Narrative update Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

During Q1 2022/23, the Council started to map the various 
cultural and physical activities being undertaken in the Vale. 
This information will be used to update a database listing all of 
the current locally run classes and events.  
 
Participants in the Move Together programme have been 
signposted to both existing (and new) physical activities located 
within their vicinity. 
 
Between April and June, 2,357 people participated in activities 
run by the Vale.  

P
age 116

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Theme 3 performance updates 35whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

Theme 3: Building healthy communities - performance updates against reporting measures 

Corp Plan ID Stated Aim/Project 
description Reporting Measure Cabinet 

Lead 
Officer Lead 
Title Q1 Performance Update

BHC2.1 Produce an Active 
communities strategy; setting 
out how the council will 
work with our communities 
and partners and enable 
everyone to participate in 
physical activities

Narrative update on progress 
against strategy development 
and work with partners to 
encourage involvement in 
physical activities

Cllr Helen 
Pighills 

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

The draft Active Communities Strategy was considered by 
Vale’s Scrutiny Committee in June 2022. It was well received by 
members and will come before Cabinet during Q2 2022/23.  
 
In addition, a draft delivery plan for the Active Communities 
Strategy is also being developed. This will identify the key 
interventions that enable people to live active, healthier lives.

BHC2.2 Work with Active Oxfordshire 
to target get active projects 
in our most deprived 
communities 

Narrative update on proposals 
form Active Oxfordshire 

Cllr Helen 
Pighills 

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

Activators – who will help to deliver the You Move project – 
have been in post since 30 May. The aim of the scheme is to 
help families on low incomes engage with physical activity. In 
their first month, the activators have signed up 129 participants 
within the district. Expressions of Interest for funding from the 
Together Fund have also been received from several clubs 
looking to support the You Move project. 
 
In addition, a programme of events is being offered throughout 
the summer holidays – including free activities and food 
provision – at two leisure centres within the Vale.  

BHC2.3 Promote use of the Council’s 
public green spaces for 
exercise and activity.  

Narrative update on the work 
to promote green spaces for 
exercise and activity

Cllr Helen 
Pighills 

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

During Q1 2022/23, new orienteering routes have been charted 
at Harcourt Hill and Shrivenham. This brings the total number of 
routes mapped in the Vale to seven. 
 
In addition, outdoor table tennis tables have been installed in 
Kennington, Shrivenham and Kingston Bagpuise with further 
fittings scheduled over the coming months (in Wootton, 
Fernham, East Hanney and Cumnor). Events to promote the 
use of existing tables have also been included as part of the 
Vale’s summer programme of activities.  
 
Meetings have also taken place with Cherwell District Council 
and Oxfordshire County Council to gain insight into the 
development of signage for animal trails. 

BHC2.4 Identify councils owned land 
for community gardening and 
allotments projects

Narrative update on the work/
outcomes from the Strategic 
Property Review

Cllr Helen 
Pighills 

Head of 
Development 
and Corporate 
Landlord

No progress to report in Q1 2022/23. 

P
age 117

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Theme 3 performance updates 36whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

Theme 3: Building healthy communities - performance updates against reporting measures 

Corp Plan ID Stated Aim/Project 
description Reporting Measure Cabinet 

Lead 
Officer Lead 
Title Q1 Performance Update

BHC2.5 Active engagement with 
the Oxfordshire Health 
Improvement Board and 
Health Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee to ensure the Vale 
has strong representation in 
countywide health forums

Narrative update on work 
with the Oxfordshire Health 
Improvement Board/Health 
overview and Scrutiny 
Committee

Cllr Helen 
Pighills 

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

The Oxfordshire Joint Health and Overview Scrutiny Committee 
met in May and June 2022. At these events, the Committee 
received updates on:

GP Patient Survey
Access to Services – Primary Care
Healthwatch Report
Patient Survey on online services
Maternity Services Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire, Berkshire 
West Integrated Care Board (BOB ICB) Strategy for Working 
with People and Communities
Oxford University Hospital NHS FT Quality Account
Emotional Wellbeing of Children
Overview of Integrated Care Programme
Co-Opted Members of the Health Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee
Health and Care Act Briefing from the Centre for Governance 
and Scrutiny and its Translation for Health Overview and 
Scrutiny in Oxfordshire 
 
The Health Improvement Board met on 19 May 2022 and 
received updates on:

Health Protection Update
Screening and Immunisation Performance and Recovery
Healthwatch
Performance Deep Dive into Health Place Shaping Indicators
Active Oxfordshire – Physical Activity Strategy in Oxfordshire

PROGRAMME 3 Safeguarding and supporting 
our vulnerable residents

Narrative report on support 
provided by the VCS and 
potentially the number of 
properties approved with 
special adaptations (drawn 
from AMR data, available 
annually)

Cllr Helen 
Pighills 

Head of 
Legal and 
Democratic

During Q1 2022/23, 13 safeguarding concerns were raised with 
the Council – the majority of these were for poor mental health. 
Seven of these resulted in referral to Oxfordshire Safeguarding 
Teams. 
 
Eight closure orders were issued during Q1 (a closure order 
acts to safeguard access to properties where vulnerable 
tenants are being exploited). This was an increase on the 
previous quarter. 

P
age 118

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Theme 3 performance updates 37whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

Theme 3: Building healthy communities - performance updates against reporting measures 

Corp Plan ID Stated Aim/Project 
description Reporting Measure Cabinet 

Lead 
Officer Lead 
Title Q1 Performance Update

BHC3.1 Work as part of the South 
and Vale Community 
Safety Partnership on the 
agreed priorities: tackling 
Domestic abuse; exploitation 
of vulnerable people and 
children (including modern 
slavery, county lines); and 
reducing knife crime, harm 
and vulnerability caused by 
drugs and alcohol

Narrative report on work 
with partners, to include 
relevant published statistics 
as quantitative measure for 
information

Cllr Helen 
Pighills 

Head of 
Legal and 
Democratic

The data from the domestic abuse service for Quarter 1 
2022/23 will be available at the beginning of Q2 2022/23. 
 
During Q4 2021/22, the countywide service received 1,441 
calls to their helpline, an increase on the previous quarter. Of 
these, 404 were new contacts, 88 of whom came from South 
and Vale. 
 
Across Oxfordshire, 64 new clients were referred for outreach – 
of which 20 from South and Vale were provided with support. 
 
In Q1 2022/23, there were 20 referrals to the South and Vale 
domestic abuse sanctuary scheme. This was a decrease on Q4 
2021/22 (31) and on the same quarter last year (25). 

BHC3.2 Develop a new framework 
on vulnerability, responding 
to changes in needs arising 
from the Covid-19 pandemic 

Narrative update on related 
work

Cllr Helen 
Pighills 

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

During Q1 2022/23, the Household Support Fund Extension 
was launched using a district-wide local distribution model 
devised by the Council. Progress also continued to be made on 
the wellbeing strategy.  
 
The Council continued to support the Homes for Ukraine 
scheme during Q1. While the pace of ongoing accommodation 
booking slowed, other work on matters such as community 
integration, rematching requests etc continued apace.  
 
Throughout the quarter, the Vale also collaborated with 
system partners on the development of the Oxfordshire Food 
Strategy. This aims to ensure that residents can access healthy, 
affordable and local food. 
 
Work is also underway to ensure that the Community Hub can 
continue to support residents going forwards – in line with the 
Oxfordshire Recovery and Renewal Framework.

BHC3.3 Review and Revise the Joint 
Taxi Licensing Policy

Narrative update on the JTLP Cllr Helen 
Pighills 

Head of 
Legal and 
Democratic

No progress to report Q1 2022/23 - the work to review, revise 
and embed the new Joint Taxi Licensing Policy was completed 
during Q2 2021/22.

P
age 119

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Theme 3 performance updates 38whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

Theme 3: Building healthy communities - performance updates against reporting measures 

Corp Plan ID Stated Aim/Project 
description Reporting Measure Cabinet 

Lead 
Officer Lead 
Title Q1 Performance Update

BHC3.4 Take a key role in countywide 
homelessness prevention 
and provision for young 
people, those with mental 
health conditions and review 
of adult homelessness 
pathway

Narrative update on 
influencing/partnership 
activity, new initiatives. 
 
Quantitative update on 
successful homelessness 
cases + other homelessness 
stats, TA stats including 
average length of stay etc. 

Cllr Helen 
Pighills 

Head of 
Housing and 
Environment

The Vale recorded only one rough sleeper at the end of Q1 
2022/23. The very low levels of rough sleeping in the district 
reflects the success of the Council’s preventative approach. 
 
The number of homeless households in temporary 
accommodation (TA) on 30 June 2022 was nine – a reduction 
of five on the previous quarter. The average length of stay in 
emergency accommodation was 43 nights, marginally above 
the ceiling target of 42. This reflects the increasingly complex 
needs of homeless clients. 
 
During Q1 2021/22, the rate of successful homelessness 
prevention was 76.0 per cent. This was slightly below the target 
of 80.0 per cent. 
 
The Vale also continues to actively participate in the countywide 
Homelessness & Rough Sleeping Strategy (and in fact currently 
chairs the countywide Homelessness Steering Group). At this 
Oxfordshire-level, Q1 saw the successful launch of the county’s 
innovative alliance approach to single homelessness services.

P
age 120

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Theme 4 performance updates 39whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

Theme 4: Building stable finances - performance updates against reporting measures 

Corp Plan ID Stated Aim/Project 
description Reporting Measure Cabinet 

Lead 
Officer Lead 
Title Q1 Performance Update

PROGRAMME 1 Explore and actively consider 
all avenues to deliver 
financial stability, including 
maximising income available 
to the council

Narrative update on initiatives 
to deliver financial stability 
and maximise income across 
the Council

Cllr Andrew 
Crawford

Head of 
Finance

No progress to report in Q1 2022/23.

BSF1.1 Introduce an Investment 
Strategy and associated 
Investment Policy which 
gives the Council greater 
ability to invest in a wider 
range of assets to maximise 
its return on capital and 
therefore improve its income

Narrative update on the 
introduction of an introduction 
of the investment strategy and 
subsequent decision-making 
around investing

Cllr Andrew 
Crawford

Head of 
Finance

No progress to report in Q1 2022/23. 

BSF1.2 Commit resources to identify 
more third-party income, 
including government and 
other grants, to help pay for 
our services

Narrative update as to current 
initiatives to increase external 
funding for Council activities, 
with details of additional 
resources committed to 
support these activities

Cllr Andrew 
Crawford

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

During Q1 2022/23, work has continued to embed the External 
Funding Lead within the organisation. Progress has also been 
made on introducing the necessary governance structures and 
documentation to ensure that any future funding bids align are 
deliverable and align with the Vale’s goals.  
 
Officers worked with colleagues from Oxfordshire County 
Council to make a joint application for further Local Electric 
Vehicle Infrastructure (LEVI) funding. We are currently awaiting 
the outcome. 
 
Work also continued on ensuring that the Council is prepared 
for phase 3b of the Public Sector Decarbonisation Scheme.

BSF1.3 Identify opportunities to 
generate additional income 
from our services and assets 
and review these annually 
as part of the budget setting 
process

Narrative describing activity/
referring to programme 1 
narrative

Cllr Andrew 
Crawford

Head of 
Finance

No progress to report in Q1 2022/23. 

P
age 121

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Theme 4 performance updates 40whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

Theme 4: Building stable finances - performance updates against reporting measures 

Corp Plan ID Stated Aim/Project 
description Reporting Measure Cabinet 

Lead 
Officer Lead 
Title Q1 Performance Update

BSF1.4 Review the schedule 
of existing contracts to 
identifying opportunities for 
rationalisation and savings

Narrative update initially 
detailing BAU activity to 
support this aim, until specific 
project is kicked off at which 
point reporting would be 
based on the project activity

Cllr Andrew 
Crawford

Head of 
Finance

No progress to report Q1 2022/23. This action is identified in 
the procurement plan for 2022/23. 

BSF1.5 Upgrade the council’s finance 
IT systems to improve 
functionality and support in-
year budget monitoring

Narrative report on the 
implementation of new 
systems, and then a yearly 
light-touch review 

Cllr Andrew 
Crawford

Head of 
Finance

During Q1 2022/23, work has continued on utilising Unit 4 to 
deliver budget setting. A demonstration of progress has been 
shown to both the Head of Finance and the Strategic Finance 
Manager. 
 
In addition, the deployment of “Workspaces” has also 
proceeded, with a presentation provided to the Finance 
Portfolio Holder ahead of its rollout to Cabinet members. 

BSF1.6 Lobby for the ability to set 
our Council Tax at a level that 
can sustain council services 
while seeking opportunities to 
reduce council tax for those 
on the lowest incomes

Narrative report covering 
external influencing/lobbying 
work (and work with partners) 
and additionally, relevant 
information pertaining to 
Council Tax decisions within 
the Council

Cllr Andrew 
Crawford

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

No progress to report in Q1 2022/23. 

BSF1.7 Lobby for a fairer distribution 
of government funding and 
more devolution of funding to 
councils to sustain essential 
local services 

Narrative report detailing 
lobbying activity over the 
period and any successes 
occurring as a result

Cllr Andrew 
Crawford

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

No progress to report in Q1 2022/23. 

P
age 122

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Theme 4 performance updates 41whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

Theme 4: Building stable finances - performance updates against reporting measures 

Corp Plan ID Stated Aim/Project 
description Reporting Measure Cabinet 

Lead 
Officer Lead 
Title Q1 Performance Update

PROGRAMME 2 Make effective use of the 
council’s assets acting in 
a manner that ensures the 
long-term financial viability for 
the benefit of our residents 
and the environment

Narrative report on the 
progress of the Strategic 
Property review and other 
relevant initiatives

Cllr Andrew 
Crawford

Head of 
Development 
and Corporate 
Landlord

During Q1 2022/23, the Strategic Property Team continued to 
lease vacant properties, progress lease renewals and review 
rents. 
 
Progress was also made on work regarding potential housing 
development sites – and their promotion - via the Housing and 
Economic Land Availability Assessment. 
 
In addition, the Asset Management Group (established during 
Q3 2021/22) continues to meet on a quarterly basis to progress 
implementation of the Strategic Property Review and to 
consider assets in line with the council's corporate priorities. 

BSF2.1 Develop a comprehensive 
and ethical Procurement 
Policy that reflects our 
corporate goals and aims

Narrative update reporting on 
completion of activity and an 
annual review of success

Cllr Andrew 
Crawford

Head of 
Finance

No progress to report Q1 2022/23.

BSF2.2 Conduct a Strategic 
Property Review to identify 
opportunities to enhance, 
redevelop, transfer the 
councils assets to maximise 
income and/or benefit to the 
district

Narrative report on the 
progress of the SPR 

Cllr Andrew 
Crawford

Head of 
Development 
and Corporate 
Landlord

"No progress to report Q1 2022/23 – the Strategic Property 
Review was completed in Q3 2021/22. 
 
The Asset Management Group (established during Q3 2021/22) 
meets on a quarterly basis to progress implementation of 
the Review and to consider assets in line with the council's 
corporate priorities. Any outcomes from these meetings are 
progressed as business as usual. 

BSF2.3 Complete an asset 
management plan to provide 
a comprehensive policy to 
inform how assets may be 
most efficiently maintained

Narrative report on progress 
of this within the SPR

Cllr Andrew 
Crawford

Head of 
Development 
and Corporate 
Landlord

No progress to report in Q1 2022/23. 

BSF2.4 Undertake a full review of all 
leases and licences to ensure 
council income is collected 
when due and maximised

Narrative report on progress 
of this within the SPR

Cllr Andrew 
Crawford

Head of 
Development 
and Corporate 
Landlord

No progress to report Q1 2022/23 - the review was completed 
during Q1 2021/22.

P
age 123

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Theme 4 performance updates 42whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

Theme 4: Building stable finances - performance updates against reporting measures 

Corp Plan ID Stated Aim/Project 
description Reporting Measure Cabinet 

Lead 
Officer Lead 
Title Q1 Performance Update

BSF2.5 Undertake a detailed review 
of the financial position of 
the Beacon in Wantage and 
determine what changes to 
its operations can be made to 
improve its viability

Narrative update on the 
review of financial position of 
the Beacon

Cllr Andrew 
Crawford

Head of 
Development 
and Corporate 
Landlord

During Q1 2022/23, the Beacon continued to operate under 
an interim operating model. Formal building and operational 
reviews are currently being commissioned. 

BSF2.6 Insource our grounds 
maintenance and public 
conveniences contracts to 
save funds and increase 
flexibility over how our 
public spaces are used and 
managed

Narrative update on the 
activities of the new insourced 
team and the initiatives being 
undertaken

Cllr Andrew 
Crawford

Head of 
Development 
and Corporate 
Landlord

During Q1 2022/23, officers carried out a formal review of the 
job descriptions of grounds maintenance staff with the aim 
of bringing them in line with other council posts. Once the 
outcome of the review is known, the Council will continue to 
assess the terms and conditions of staff under TUPE. 
 
Arrangements were made in Q1 to move the depot from 
its current location at Kingston Bagpuise to council land at 
Crowmarsh and the White Horse Leisure Centre. Officers are 
also exploring the potential for establishing a long-term depot at 
Great Western Park. 
 
Cabinet reports evaluating the cost of purchasing vehicles for 
the Grounds Maintenance service – as opposed to leasing – 
have been prepared. As part of this work, the Council have 
engaged with the Earth Trust to survey our needs and make 
recommendations on the use of alternative fuels etc.  
 
Negotiations are also underway with the Grounds Maintenance 
manager to amend the terms and conditions for vehicle use. 

P
age 124

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Theme 5 performance updates 43whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

Theme 5: Working in partnership - performance updates against reporting measures 

Corp Plan ID Stated Aim/Project 
description Reporting Measure Cabinet 

Lead 
Officer Lead 
Title Q1 Performance Update

PROGRAMME 1 Work in partnership to 
influence and shape regional 
and national agendas to 
maximise opportunities 
for our communities and 
businesses

Narrative report on work 
with partners across the 
organisation which will 
maximise opportunities for 
communities and businesses

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

Updates below on action taken to maximise opportunities for 
communities and business during Quarter 1 2022/23.

WIP1.1 Create a partnerships 
protocol. Map our current 
partnerships and assess 
the effectiveness of each. 
clarify which local, regional, 
and national partnerships 
Vale needs to have an 
active presence in and focus 
resource accordingly. 

Narrative update on the 
position of this work and 
an annual review after it's 
completion

Cllr Bethia 
Thomas 

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

No progress to report Q1 2022/23 – this work was completed 
during Q4 2021/22. It will now be subject to an annual review.

WIP1.2 Develop an enhanced 
consultations strategy 
and process to ensure we 
respond to consultations and 
proactively lobby national 
government and other bodies 
on matters that impact our 
corporate priorities

Narrative update on proactive 
work to lobby govt and key 
organisations, update on key 
consultations responded to 
within the period.  
 
Quantitative -- Number of 
consultations replied to.

Cllr Neil 
Fawcett

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

During Q1 2022/23, the Vale responded to two external 
consultations.

Defra Consultations – Review of Local Air Quality Management 
Policy Guidance
Consultation on Designation of National Highways as a “Relevant 
Public Authority”

In addition, work continued on assessing the impact of the 
Council’s submissions. This is designed to ensure that our 
responses are consistent and lead to demonstrable change in 
policy/decisions.

WIP1.3 Create a framework that sets 
out how we will engage with 
developers, other councils, 
and members to maximise 
opportunities for our priorities 
to shape development

Narrative update on the work 
of planning and engagement 
activity 

Cllr Judy 
Roberts 

Master 
Planning Lead

During Q1 2022/23, several meetings have been held with 
developers, promoters and landowners. Officers have also 
continued to meet with members, interested stakeholders, 
Oxfordshire County Council and Homes England. These events 
are part of the Vale’s framework of coordinated activity in this area.

P
age 125

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Theme 5 performance updates 44whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

Theme 5: Working in partnership - performance updates against reporting measures 

Corp Plan ID Stated Aim/Project 
description Reporting Measure Cabinet 

Lead 
Officer Lead 
Title Q1 Performance Update

WIP1.4 Work with businesses 
to undertake economic 
development review 
to ensure that council 
is providing support 
to SMEs, homebased 
businesses, supporting skills 
development, and ensuring 
that businesses are playing a 
role in place making 

A narrative report of activity 
to undertake an economic 
development review and 
details of how the Council 
is supporting SME's at this 
time.  
 
Quantitative information from 
CRM detailing number of 
businesses engaged with

Cllr Neil 
Fawcett

Head of 
Development 
and Corporate 
Landlord

During Q1 2022/23, the reconciliation work for the Additional 
Restrictions Grant Fund commenced. Over the entirety of scheme, 
the Vale distributed grants totalling £5,264,788. 
 
Also, during Q1 2022/23 nine enquiries were logged on Tractivity. 
Ongoing grant enquiries (non-covid related) made up the majority 
of most complex asks. 

P
age 126

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Theme 5 performance updates 45whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

Theme 5: Working in partnership - performance updates against reporting measures 

Corp Plan ID Stated Aim/Project 
description Reporting Measure Cabinet 

Lead 
Officer Lead 
Title Q1 Performance Update

WIP1.5 Strengthen any existing 
network of local business 
groups to increase 
awareness of the council’s 
ED programmes and 
communication throughout 
the district

Detail engagement with small 
business newsletter, number 
of recipients, clickthrough

Cllr Neil 
Fawcett

Head of 
Development 
and Corporate 
Landlord

By the end of Q1 2022/23, there were 2,468 subscribers to South 
and Vale’s economic development newsletter – an increase of 19 
over the previous reporting period. There was 1,641 clickthroughs 
from these – and the average open rate was 54.2 per cent (much 
higher than the industry average). 
 
From April and June, there were 2,792 users of the South and Vale 
Business Support Website – of these 2,702 were new visitors. 
Between them they generated 7,324 page views. 
 
The Business Support Twitter feed had 1,473 followers by the 
end of Q1 2022/23. Activity undertaken during the quarter created 
12,996 impressions, 408 engagements, 15 new followers and 
1,444 profile visits.  
 
At the end of Q1 2022/23, South and Vale Business Support’s 
Facebook page had 146 likes, with quarterly activity creating 5,312 
impressions and 144 engagements. 
 
The Economic Development team ran four in-person digital 
business skills events with a total of 199 attendees: 
• Advertising on Facebook and Instagram 
• Selling on Facebook and Instagram 
• Creating and sending newsletters using Mailchimp
• Using LinkedIn to generate Business 

They also rant four online Digital Skills workshops for businesses 
looking to reach new customer bases.  These events were 
well attended and provided an opportunity to encourage local 
companies to join the Council’s Virtual Hight Street Initiative.

In addition, they also holsted a ‘Make a difference’ business 
workshop (with Oxfordshire Greentech and Jennings Business 
Parks) on 10 May.  There were 41 registered attendees.

The Council also sent out 13 Start Your Own Business Guides and 
seven Greening the Web Guides during the quarter.

P
age 127

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Theme 5 performance updates 46whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

Theme 5: Working in partnership - performance updates against reporting measures 

Corp Plan ID Stated Aim/Project 
description Reporting Measure Cabinet 

Lead 
Officer Lead 
Title Q1 Performance Update

WIP1.6 Input into countywide 
and Arc-wide economic 
recovery plans to maximise 
understanding of the local 
impact of Covid-19 and 
to help shape the support 
available to our local 
economy

Narrative update on activity 
supporting WIP 1.5

Cllr Neil 
Fawcett

Head of 
Development 
and Corporate 
Landlord

During Q1 2022/23, officers from the Council continued to 
contribute to the Economic Recovery Task Group. 
 
The Economic Development team also carried out extensive work 
in preparing a bid for funding from the UK Shared Prosperity Fund. 
A draft investment plan for the initial three years of the scheme 
has been produced and is scheduled to be finalised in Q2. 

WIP1.7 Work with Oxfordshire 
County Council to introduce 
civil parking enforcement for 
the Vale

Narrative update on progress 
in this area, if impacts are 
seen in other areas as a 
result of this activity, those 
impacts should be included 
(PnD parking income for 
example)

Cllr Neil 
Fawcett

Head of 
Development 
and Corporate 
Landlord

Civil parking enforcement – undertaken by Oxfordshire County 
Council contractors – is in place in the district. 
 
A report detailing the outcomes of a consultation on a new car 
park order has been drafted. It will be considered by the Cabinet in 
July.P

age 128

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Theme 5 performance updates 47whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

Theme 5: Working in partnership - performance updates against reporting measures 

Corp Plan ID Stated Aim/Project 
description Reporting Measure Cabinet 

Lead 
Officer Lead 
Title Q1 Performance Update

PROGRAMME 2 Work with and support our 
residents, businesses and 
communities to effect and 
enable change 

Narrative update on work 
with Parish Councils, 
particularly relating to the 
transfer of management of 
assets. Update on other 
activity that directly supports 
residents and business 
effecting  change 
 
Quantitative elements - 
number of neighbourhood 
plans adopted, number 
of community initiatives 
undertaken, breakdown of 
assets where management 
has been transferred

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

During Q1 2022/23, the Vale started their pilot of a simpler 
approach to neighbourhood planning. Three parishes within the 
Vale (West Challow, Kennington and Fyfield & Tubney) were 
selected to trial this new method. Following an introductory 
meeting with the pilot groups in May (which explored the aims, 
parameters and expectations of the project), the first of a series of 
capacity building workshops (detailing how the planning system 
works and some of the key concepts around placemaking) was 
held on 28 June. 
 
As of 30 June 2022, there are 15 made Neighbourhood Plans in 
the district (one of which is currently under review). There are nine 
plans in progress, three of which have completed pre-submission 
consultations. 
 
In April, Marcham Parish Council applied to designate the parish 
as a neighbourhood area. If successful, they will be able to 
exercise neighbourhood planning rights and access both funding 
and technical support. 
 
The Council liaised with Community First Oxfordshire during Q1 
2022/23, to cover their options from Community Led Plans to 
Neighbourhood Planning. 
 
Officers were invited by Ardington and Lockinge Parish Council to 
attend their annual meeting. 

P
age 129

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Theme 5 performance updates 48whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

Theme 5: Working in partnership - performance updates against reporting measures 

Corp Plan ID Stated Aim/Project 
description Reporting Measure Cabinet 

Lead 
Officer Lead 
Title Q1 Performance Update

WIP2.1 Support new business 
start-ups and support 
schemes for businesses 
and residents through post 
Covid-19 economic recovery 
initiatives, by implementing 
the “Opening Up High Streets 
Safely Fund” and associated 
schemes 

Narrative update on support 
schemes for businesses and 
residents. Updates on any 
relevant schemes should be 
included

Cllr Neil 
Fawcett

Head of 
Development 
and Corporate 
Landlord

During Q1 2022/23, the Virtual High Street Initiative was officially 
launched in Wantage and was met with enthusiasm by local 
traders. This Initiative will enable the consolidation of Vale based 
independent retailers on a single e-commerce platform. A total of 
51 traders are established on the portal, with over 1,450 products 
available to order through the site.  
 
There is a staged rollout of the Initiative to individual towns, with 
Abingdon, Faringdon and Botley due to follow Wantage in the next 
two quarters. Ahead of these scheduled launches, there has been 
strong interest from local businesses in signing up for the scheme. 
 
In addition, officers from the Economic Development team visited 
the new Business and Intellectual Property Centre at Oxford 
County Library in Q1. The Centre represents a substantial new 
asset for businesses in the area, with access to over £5m worth of 
resources available free of charge. It has been heavily promoted 
to companies in the Vale. 

WIP2.2 Find ways to elevate the 
understanding of and 
promote Neighbourhood 
Plans in planning 
decisions with a review of 
development appraisal and 
communications with all 
parties prior to an application 
coming to committee 

Narrative update on activity 
to support and promote 
Neighbourhood plan 
adoption. 
 
Quantitative measure - 
number of Neighbourhood 
plans adopted 

Cllr Bethia 
Thomas 

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

Internal planning communications confirm new neighbourhood 
plans and the significant weight they carry when determining 
planning applications. All relevant parish councils are informed 
of the council’s decision to make Neighbourhood Plans and 
webpages are updated accordingly. 
 
As of 30 June 2022, there are 15 made Neighbourhood Plans in 
the district (one of which is currently under review). There are nine 
plans in progress, three of which have completed pre-submission 
consultations.

P
age 130

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Theme 5 performance updates 49whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

Theme 5: Working in partnership - performance updates against reporting measures 

Corp Plan ID Stated Aim/Project 
description Reporting Measure Cabinet 

Lead 
Officer Lead 
Title Q1 Performance Update

WIP2.3 Review the planning 
committee process to identify 
ways to maximise public 
understanding, engagement 
and participation as well as 
supporting member input into 
the committee meetings with 
opportunities for training and 
development

Narrative update on activities 
to review and promote the 
activities and understanding 
of the planning committee.  
 
Quantitative elements - 
Online engagement figures 
relating to the planning 
portal/planning sections of 
the website.

Cllr Bethia 
Thomas 

Head of 
Planning

During Q1 2022/23, the Vale maintained the processes that 
had been developed around the Planning Committee over the 
last year. This meant that the Weekly Chair Briefing sessions 
continued – including debriefs on the meetings of the Committee. 
 
In addition, the Chair and the Deputy Chair, along with the 
Development Manager, have regularly reviewed all call-in requests 
to determine which should be referred to the Planning Committee. 
They have also decided which Committee items require a site visit. 
 
The Chair and Deputy Chair continue to receive the Planning 
Committee decision monitoring report, which in conjunction with 
the Weekly Chair Briefings, help to inform any requirements for 
member training sessions. 
 
The Vale have proceeded with the Town and Parish Council 
Surgeries during Q1 2022/23 with one meeting being held 
between April and June. Uptake, however, has not been as 
much as was expected – based on the pilot project. A further 
reminder has, therefore, been sent to all town and parish councils. 
Nevertheless, the feedback that has been received from those 
who have taken part in these events has been positive. 
 
Officers also continue, where differing views exist, to advise 
town and parish councils of their recommendations on planning 
applications. This helps to explain why decisions are being made 
and improves partnership working between the Vale and these 
organisations.   
 
Three Planning Committee meetings were held between April and 
June 2022.  
• 20/04/2022 – this had 112 views. 
• 11/05/2022 – this had 103 views  
• 20/06/2022 - this had 40 views 

P
age 131

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Theme 5 performance updates 50whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

Theme 5: Working in partnership - performance updates against reporting measures 

Corp Plan ID Stated Aim/Project 
description Reporting Measure Cabinet 

Lead 
Officer Lead 
Title Q1 Performance Update

WIP2.4 Review developer 
contribution collection and 
spend policy and improve 
ward member and parish 
council involvement with 
a clear timetable that is 
triggered by officers, with 
improved communication 
from the council 

A narrative update on 
activities relating to the 
spend of CIL 
 
Quantitative element - 
Breakdown of CIL spend by 
type/amount/area

Cllr Judy 
Roberts 

Head of 
Finance

During April 2022, £580,130 was paid to town and parish councils 
that had seen CIL liable developments in their areas during the 
previous six months.  
 
Since the introduction of CIL in 2017, £1,880,352 has been made 
available to town and parish councils for use on local projects to 
support development.  
 
The Vale’s new capital programme came into effect at the start of 
the quarter. Within this programme, £2,259,000 of CIL funding is 
allocated for 2022/23.

WIP2.5 Refresh our community 
grants scheme and introduce 
a Community Lottery to raise 
funds for groups to develop 
in line with our corporate 
objectives 

Narrative report on activity 
relating to new community 
grants, information relating 
to the implementation of the 
Community Lottery, and once 
implemented performance 
metrics

Cllr Bethia 
Thomas 

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

During Q1 2022/23, the Council continued to promote the White 
Horse Community Lottery Scheme. One new “good cause” was 
approved between April and June. 
 
Throughout the quarter, 12,042 lottery tickets were sold generating 
an annual estimated income of £30,295 for the voluntary sector.

P
age 132

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Theme 6 performance updates 51whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

Theme 6: Woking in an open and inclusive way - performance updates against reporting measures 

Corp Plan ID Stated Aim/Project 
description Reporting Measure Cabinet 

Lead 
Officer Lead 
Title Q1 Performance Update

PROGRAMME 1 Improve our use of 
technology to increase 
understanding and access 
to what we do, how we work 
and the decisions we make.

Narrative update on 
any work relating 
to  technological 
implementation/adaptation 
and processes making 
greater use of existing 
technology to bring about 
efficiency or increase 
accessibility.

Cllr Bethia 
Thomas

Deputy Chief 
Executive - 
Transformation 
and Operations

During Q1 2022/23, substantial progress was made in 
relation to the procurement of a new Customer Relationship 
Management (CRM) system. This work is almost complete, 
subject to an Individual Cabinet Member Decision (ICMD) 
approving the budget to implement the preferred option. It is 
hoped that the system will help improve communications – and 
relationships – between the Council and its customers.  
 
Separately, the Communications team, in collaboration with 
Planning Policy, were able to produce an innovative, interactive 
website for the first Joint Local Plan (JLP) consultation. 
This allowed users to explore the details of the Plan across 
infographics, images and maps that could be moved and 
manipulated. In addition, Smart Survey was also embedded 
within the website to allow people to respond as they explored 
the themes of the JLP. This approach received widespread 
praise from the public, councillors and other local authorities.  

WIOI1.1 Provide and maintain a new 
Vale website with increased 
accessibility to services 
and information, on multiple 
devices

Quantitative report on 
website usage

Cllr Bethia 
Thomas

Deputy Chief 
Executive - 
Transformation 
and Operations

During Q1 2022/23, the Communications team – in response to 
the issues previously identified with Google Analytics – decided 
to invest in an analytics platform that does not require any 
cookies. This new platform went live on 14 April and, therefore, 
the statistics below do not fully reflect the website usage for the 
quarter. 
 
Web Usage Figures: Q1 (Partial) 
188k visitors 
513k page views 
2m03s average visit duration 
 
In addition, progress was made on upgrading the system that 
delivers online E-forms and the Binzone app. These will make 
it more resilient and provide a better platform – the updated 
software will provide opportunities to improve E-forms and 
make them more 'mobile-friendly'.

P
age 133

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Theme 6 performance updates 52whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

Theme 6: Woking in an open and inclusive way - performance updates against reporting measures 

Corp Plan ID Stated Aim/Project 
description Reporting Measure Cabinet 

Lead 
Officer Lead 
Title Q1 Performance Update

WIOI1.2 Develop our use of social 
media platforms to reach and 
engage with more residents 
and local businesses 

Narrative report on new 
social media initiatives 
 
Quantitative report on social 
media engagement

Cllr Bethia 
Thomas

Deputy Chief 
Executive - 
Transformation 
and Operations

During Q1 2022/2, the Communications team integrated its 
social media accounts to the Hootsuite platform. This has 
helped to increase efficiency and productivity, as officers no 
longer have to work through each account’s native site. In 
addition, it allows for all of the analytics to be gathered in 
one place which will make it easier to compare and optimise 
performance in the future. 
 
Given the move to Hootsuite – and its use of different 
algorithms etc – it is unlikely that the stats from Q1 2022/23 are 
directly comparable to those from previous quarters.  
 
Facebook 
• Posts: 239 
• Reach: 481,000 
• New fans: 299 
Total fans: 5,790 
 
Instagram 
• Posts: 137 
• Reach: 5,600 
• New followers: 26 
Total followers 530 
 
Twitter 
• Tweets: 242 
• Impressions: 109,000 
• New followers: 64 
Total followers: 9,174

WIOI1.3 Introduce live streaming and 
recordings of public meetings 
to increase accessibility 
and understanding of the 
democratic process

Number/Percentage of public 
meetings streamed live 
 
Number/percentage of public 
meetings available to watch 
online

Cllr Debby 
Hallett

Head of Legal 
and Democratic

All meetings continue to be livestreamed. Officers are 
currently working on business continuity plans to ensure that 
this continues when the Council vacates the offices at Milton 
Park. To help facilitate the future livestreaming of meetings, a 
dedicated Teams room is being installed at Abbey House. 
 
During Q1 2022/23, 100% of public meetings were broadcast. 

P
age 134

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Theme 6 performance updates 53whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

Theme 6: Woking in an open and inclusive way - performance updates against reporting measures 

Corp Plan ID Stated Aim/Project 
description Reporting Measure Cabinet 

Lead 
Officer Lead 
Title Q1 Performance Update

WIOI1.4 Review the current use of 
online surveys assessing 
their take up over time, 
and by subject, as well as 
reviewing survey design 

Narrative update on survey 
utilisation/progress towards 
this review/details of any 
particularly successful 
surveys

Cllr Bethia 
Thomas

Deputy Chief 
Executive - 
Transformation 
and Operations

During Q1 2022/23, the Vale ran an innovative Joint Local Plan 
consultation. Due to the pioneering nature of the engagement 
exercise it is difficult to ascertain exactly how many responses 
were received, but officers do know that it was in excess of 487 
– which is a very high level for such an activity. The feedback 
received from the consultation is still being assessed and 
analysed. 
 
In addition to the Local Plan, the Council completed two other 
smaller local consultations in Q1. It also launched a further 13 
consultations that are still currently open. 
 
A report on the Vale’s consultation and engagement approach 
was considered by the Scrutiny Committee during the quarter. 
The feedback and suggestions arising from members is being 
worked into the Community Engagement team’s future plans. 
 
Officers have also been designing a consultation and 
engagement process for the Council’s Diversity and Inclusion 
Strategy.

P
age 135

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Theme 6 performance updates 54whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

Theme 6: Woking in an open and inclusive way - performance updates against reporting measures 

Corp Plan ID Stated Aim/Project 
description Reporting Measure Cabinet 

Lead 
Officer Lead 
Title Q1 Performance Update

PROGRAMME 2 Increase meaningful 
engagement and 
communication with everyone

Narrative update on 
successful communication 
initiatives

Deputy Chief 
Executive - 
Transformation 
and Operations

Following the agreement (during Q4 2021/22) of an overarching 
Communications and Engagement Strategy, Q1 saw the Vale 
prepare a launch plan for this document. The first step of this 
work will involve communicating with staff about their roles and 
responsibilities in helping to deliver the Strategy. Its launch will 
be timed to complement the Council’s recently unveiled Style 
Guide (which itself, is a key item in the Strategy’s action plan). 
 
Progress was also made during Q1 2022/23 on an engagement 
plan to support the Council’s draft Diversity and Inclusion 
Strategy.  
 
In Q1, the Vale ran 45 campaigns. 23 of these highlighted/
publicised events and council news, 15 promoted behavioural 
change and seven promoted diversity and inclusion. 
 
Between April and June 2022, the Vale also issued 29 press 
releases, produced three town and parish and residents’ 
newsletters and sent out six InFocus newsletters to share 
important information with our communities.

WIOI2.1 Ensure the creation of 
community liaison groups 
form part of all early stages 
of development planning, 
to understand local 
infrastructure needs and 
support community cohesion  

Narrative update on the 
creation and utilisation of 
community liaison groups 
and the development of the 
policy 
 
Quantitative measure - 
number of community liaison 
groups 

Cllr Bethia 
Thomas

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

During Q1 2022/23, the Council’s Planning Policy team has 
continued to work on the development of the Joint Local Plan. 
Between 12 May and 23 June, a public consultation – known 
formally as a ‘Regulation 18 Part 1 Issues Consultation’ – was 
held. This asked for views on a draft vision for the Joint Local 
Plan and opportunities to address this vision. As part of this 
exercise, the team reached out to stakeholder contacts and 
community groups. 
 
In addition, and in collaboration with Comms, the Planning 
Policy team trialled new ways of making the local plan engaging 
and easy to view on digital devices. They also continued to 
make hard copies available to residents in libraries. 
 
The Planning Policy team are currently processing the 
responses that were received. 

P
age 136

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Theme 6 performance updates 55whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

Theme 6: Woking in an open and inclusive way - performance updates against reporting measures 

Corp Plan ID Stated Aim/Project 
description Reporting Measure Cabinet 

Lead 
Officer Lead 
Title Q1 Performance Update

WIOI2.2 Refresh Town and Parish 
Forums so they are more 
interactive and useful for 
communities and develop 
the Connecting Communities 
Policy

Narrative update on Town 
and Parish Forums and 
the development of the 
connected communities 
policy

Cllr Bethia 
Thomas

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

No progress to report Q1 2022/2023 – the Connecting 
Communities Plan has been superseded by the Community 
Wellbeing Strategy (which is currently being drafted).

WIOI2.3 Work with communities, 
schools and other local 
organisations on shared 
campaigns and initiatives that 
help further our corporate 
objectives 

Narrative update on comms 
and engagement activities 
which interface with 
communities, schools and 
other local organisations

Cllr Bethia 
Thomas

Deputy Chief 
Executive - 
Transformation 
and Operations

During Q1 2022/23, the Vale undertook a considerable amount 
of work to promote healthy communities within the district. It 
supported the launch of the You Move programme (designed 
to help families on low incomes engage with physical activity) 
in conjunction with other local authorities in Oxfordshire. The 
Council also continued to promote the Move Together scheme 
and its own wellbeing activities. 
 
In addition, the Vale’s Active Communities team ran a GP 
support service pilot in Wantage. As a result of its success, the 
Council will look to promote its expansion later this year. 
 
In Q1 2022/23, the Women’s Cycle Tour event visited the 
district. The Vale used this opportunity to not only generate 
positive engagement with its partners and communities, but 
also promote a range of cycling and other wellbeing activities.  
 
As part of the Platinum Jubilee celebrations, the Council – 
throughout the quarter – encouraged people to take part in The 
Queen’s Green Canopy to plant trees. 
 
The Vale joined up with several local organisations (including 
Citizens Advice and the Earth Trust) to support Volunteers’ 
week. They also continued to promote the Council’s Community 
Lottery and its role in helping “good causes” across the district. 
 
The Council provided updates to members and staff on its role 
in helping Ukrainian refugees.  

P
age 137

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Theme 6 performance updates 56whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

Theme 6: Woking in an open and inclusive way - performance updates against reporting measures 

Corp Plan ID Stated Aim/Project 
description Reporting Measure Cabinet 

Lead 
Officer Lead 
Title Q1 Performance Update

WIOI2.4 Reinstating residents surveys 
in a refreshed form - deliver 
effective ways for the public 
to have their say, to reach 
more people, mechanisms 
for feedback, more timely 
dialogue, educate and 
provide subject matter 
information to facilitate 
opinions being more informed

Narrative update to be 
provided on the progress of 
this work

Cllr Bethia 
Thomas

Deputy Chief 
Executive - 
Transformation 
and Operations

Q1 2022/23 saw the Vale prepare a communications and 
engagement plan for the Council’s Diversity and Inclusion 
Strategy. It is designed to raise awareness of the Strategy 
amongst all of our residents and encourage their participation in 
the ongoing public consultation on the document. Of particular 
importance is the feedback from minority groups on the 
accessibility of our services.    

WIOI2.5 Explore initiatives to increase 
voter registration and turnout 
levels at elections, especially 
amongst young people

Narrative update on 
individual initiatives and 
opportunities to encourage 
voter registration

Cllr Debby 
Hallett

Deputy Chief 
Executive - 
Transformation 
and Operations

No progress to report in Q1 2022/23. 

WIOI2.6 Ensure council’s 
consultations engage 
specifically with young people 
and other under-represented 
groups

A narrative report with input 
from the engagement/
comms teams and the 
equalities officer on activity 
to encourage these groups

Cllr Bethia 
Thomas

Deputy Chief 
Executive - 
Transformation 
and Operations

During Q1 2022/23, the Vale continued to gather baseline data 
on how many young people the Council is engaging with. This 
information will be used to help increase the reach of future 
consultations. 
 
Discussions also began between the Community Engagement 
and Planning Policy teams on increasing the active involvement 
of young people in the next stage of the Joint Local Plan. It was 
agreed that there should be direct engagement with children 
and teenagers in local colleges and schools. 
 
In addition, the Vale carried out a direct engagement survey 
with teenagers about the impact that child sexual exploitation 
(CSE) can have on a young person’s life. The results from this 
have helped to inform and shape the work of the Community 
Safety Partnership in this area (specifically keeping young 
people informed about the dangers of CSE). 

PROGRAMME 3 Strengthen our governance 
framework and address 
our policy gaps, improving 
transparency

Narrative update on policies/
strategies currently in 
development/awaiting 
approval/recently approved.

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

The governance arrangements for the Joint Local Plan were 
updated in May 2022.  
 
During Q1 2022/23, the Dalton Barracks Supplementary 
Planning Document and Joint Design Guide were adopted.  

P
age 138

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Theme 6 performance updates 57whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

Theme 6: Woking in an open and inclusive way - performance updates against reporting measures 

Corp Plan ID Stated Aim/Project 
description Reporting Measure Cabinet 

Lead 
Officer Lead 
Title Q1 Performance Update

WIOI3.1 Work to adopt new CIPFA 
financial management code 
to enhance our financial 
governance

Narrative update detailing 
the elements of the 
code which have been 
implemented, which are 
underway and which are yet 
to be started

Cllr Andrew 
Crawford

Head of 
Finance

No progress to report Q1 2022/23.

WIOI3.2 Council reporting and 
decision-making templates to 
include impact on the climate 
emergency

Narrative update on 
significant decisions which 
have key environmental 
considerations, additionally 
any updates to key policies 
which have an focus on the 
climate emergency

Cllr Debby 
Hallett 

Head of Legal 
and Democratic

The action is complete. All council reporting and decision-
making templates have been updated to include climate change 
considerations.

WIOI3.3 Review the councils 
constitution and scheme of 
delegation annually 

Narrative update with the 
outcome of the review

Cllr Debby 
Hallett

Head of Legal 
and Democratic

During Q1 2022/23, work continued on the development of 
the Articles of Constitution (having been approved by the 
Constitution Review Group). Progress is scheduled to continue 
throughout the summer, with a report being taken to Full 
Council in Quarter 2.  

WIOI3.4 Increase and improve 
publicly available information 
– e.g.- code of conduct 
complaints (decision 
noted) FOIs (responses), 
corporate complaints (data)
Improve accessibility of 
corporate information through 
publishing on our website

Narrative update on relevant 
reviews/newly available 
information/website 
improvements and metrics 
 
Quantitative - FOI/
Complaints data

Cllr Debby 
Hallett

Deputy Chief 
Executive - 
Transformation 
and Operations

During Quarter 1 2022/23, the performance management report 
for Q4 2021/22 was published on the Vale’s website. This is 
intended to increase the public’s understanding of what the 
council does, how it works and how decisions are made. 
 
Freedom of Information (FOI) and Environmental Information 
Regulations (EIR) contact with the council remains high. In 
Q1 2022/23, Vale received 400 FOI/EIRs. 93% of these were 
responded to within the target time of 20 working days – this is 
in line with the ICO’s target. 
 
The Council received 29 stage one complaints, 9 stage two 
complaints and 0 Local Government Ombudsman complaints 
between April and June 2022.

P
age 139

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Climate Action Plan

PERFORMANCE      
REPORT

2022/23 
Quarter ONE

July 2022

P
age 140

A
genda Item

 13



Introduction               3
Quarter context              4
Quarter One 2022/23 Performance Highlights         6

THEME 1  Our ways of working           7
THEME 2  Our service delivery           8
THEME 3  Our people             9
THEME 4  Our land             10
THEME 5  Our buildings             11
THEME 6  Our communities            12
THEME 7  Our partners             13

Theme 1: Our ways of working - Performance updates against reporting measures   14
Theme 2: Our service delivery - performance updates against reporting measures    23
Theme 3: Our people - performance updates against reporting measures      28
Theme 4: Our land - performance updates against reporting measures      31
Theme 5: Our buildings - performance updates against reporting measures     33
Theme 6: Our communities - performance updates against reporting measures     36
Theme 7: Our partners - performance updates against reporting measures      41

Table of Contents

P
age 141



      3whitehorse.gov.uk/climateaction

Introduction
The Vale of White Horse District Council Climate Action Plan (CAP) 2022-24 sets out to demonstrate and 
deliver the council’s commitment to the Corporate Plan objective of Tackling the Climate Emergency and target 
of becoming a carbon neutral council by 2030, with a 75 per cent emissions reduction by 2025. 

Progress on the actions and outputs in the CAP will be reported quarterly, in line with the council’s Corporate 
Performance Management Framework. This report is the first iteration, and it is expected that it will evolve in 
line with the approach to Performance Management being embedded by the council, as well as from feedback 
from senior officers and Members. 

This report provides a strategic overview of the climate action performance across the council for quarter one 2022/23 (01 April to 
31 June 2022) and should be reviewed in context with the council’s quarterly Corporate Plan Priorities Strategic Performance 
Report. The council’s greenhouse gas emissions are also reported and published annually.

The CAP is one piece of a much larger picture, consisting of national, regional and local initiatives and plans all of which influence 
our priorities. The CAP was designed to be a live document, where quarterly progress reporting may result in the reprioritisation or 
refocusing of actions by Cabinet where necessary.

P
age 142

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2022/02/Vale-Climate-Action-plan-2022-2024.pdf
https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2022/02/Vale-Climate-Action-plan-2022-2024.pdf
https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/vale-of-white-horse-district-council/about-the-council/corporate-plan/
https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/vale-of-white-horse-district-council/about-the-council/corporate-plan/


      4 whitehorse.gov.uk/climateaction

Quarter context
Latest climate change science 

The IPCC has finalised the second part of the Sixth Assessment Report, Climate Change 2022: Impacts, 
Adaptation and Vulnerability. The report describes how climate change is already affecting the world’s 

human and natural systems and details which climate adaptation approaches are most effective and 
feasible, as well as which groups of people and ecosystems are most vulnerable. The report highlights the 
role of local government in designing and planning urban and rural settlements and infrastructure, and in 
working in partnership with communities and wider society, as critical for resilience to climate change. 

The Climate Change Committee’s 2022 Progress Report to Parliament highlighted that progress is lagging 
behind the UK’s net zero ambitions. One of the priority recommendations of this report was to set out how 
the Government’s Net Zero Strategy will be delivered, including clarifying the roles and responsibilities 
across central and local government. 

National government legislation 

The Environment Act received its royal assent in November 2021 and covers a broad range of issues across the four priority areas of air quality, 
biodiversity, water and waste. The implications of the Act will have significant impacts in certain areas of the council’s service delivery. Before 

the Act comes into force the Government must publish a number of pieces of supplementary legislation and guidance which will provide the detail 
that is needed to allow effective implementation. However, the publication of this supplementary legislation and guidance has been subject to 
significant delays, and it is now unlikely that this information will be available until quarter three. These delays will impact on the delivery of some 
actions in the CAP, particularly those related to waste reduction and air quality. 

The Levelling Up and Regeneration Bill reached Committee stage in June 2022 and proposes significant changes to the planning system. An 
update to the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) is also expected later this year which will contain detail on energy and climate change. 
The current NPPF holds local planning authorities back from delivering net-zero ready new homes, which means that new homes are still being 
delivered which will need retrofitting later. The timing and content of the Levelling Up and Regeneration Bill and the updated NPPF will impact how 
ambitious the council can be with the actions relating the new Joint Local Plan. 

P
age 143

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2022/02/Vale-Climate-Action-plan-2022-2024.pdf


      5 whitehorse.gov.uk/climateaction

At the Council 

During quarter one we have been building capacity within the Climate and Biodiversity Team with the 
appointment of a new Senior Climate Action Officer to support the delivery of the CAP across South 

Oxfordshire and the Vale and to allow us to respond to a fast-moving funding landscape with help from 
the new External Funding Lead. The Team will work across all council service areas to support service 
teams to deliver their actions as well as taking direct responsibility for delivering some of the actions 
from the CAP. 

South Oxfordshire District Council and the Vale of White Horse District Council are working together to produce a new Joint 
Local Plan for 2041. The Joint Local Plan will provide a guide to the kinds of new housing and jobs that are needed and 
where they should go as well as setting out the policies that will be needed to help us to achieve our climate targets. During 
quarter one the early stages of the plan were subject to a public consultation which sought views on the issues that should be 
addressed within the new Joint Local Plan. The outcomes of the various stages of the public consultation and the examination 
are key to allowing us to attain our corporate climate targets.  P

age 144

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2022/02/Vale-Climate-Action-plan-2022-2024.pdf


 

Quarter One 2022/23 Performance Highlights

P
age 145



See Theme 1 
performance 
updates against 
all reporting 
measures on 
page 14

      7whitehorse.gov.uk/climateactionOur ways of working

KEY ACTIVITIESQUARTER ONE

THEME 1  Our ways of working
GOAL  

To make climate action 
inherent in all the council’s 
work by designing and 
updating our policies, 
strategies and
governance with the climate 
emergency at their core The council continued to push to integrate climate action into day-to-day activities across 

the different teams and services. This report is the first output of the new system of 
performance management of the CAP allowing us to track our progress towards the delivery of 
the actions within the plan. 

Various internal documents and report templates have been reviewed to ensure climate 
implications are considered. The Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) strategy was updated 
to allow CIL funds to be used on projects that support our corporate climate and biodiversity 
objectives. Progress on developing the Joint Local Plan has continued and a consultation on 
the draft vision, which included matters relating to sustainable construction, was held from 12 
May to 23 June 2022. All of the council meetings are now held virtually when permitted and 
were livestreamed to reduce travel to meetings.

P
age 146

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2022/02/Vale-Climate-Action-plan-2022-2024.pdf


GOAL  
To plan and deliver services 
to our residents in ways that 
reduce carbon emissions 
and prepare our district for
future ways of living

      8whitehorse.gov.uk/climateactionOur service delivery

KEY ACTIVITIESQUARTER ONE

GOAL  THEME 2  Our service delivery

To reach the council’s target of being a carbon neutral council by 2025, we are reviewing 
all the services that the council delivers. This includes the waste collection service which 

accounts for just over 40% of our greenhouse gas emissions, and in quarter one we ran an 
initial trial of an electric waste vehicle. Although this trail demonstrated that the vehicle used is 
not suitable for our rural district, it did provide valuable information that will help in specifying 
new waste contracts in the coming years. To try and reduce the emissions from the council’s 
fleet we are also working with the Energy Saving Trust on an Ultra-Low Emission Fleet Review 
to assess the opportunity to replace vehicles owned and leased by the council with electric 
vehicles.

In quarter one the Joint Design Guide was adopted which includes lots of new information and 
guidance on climate and sustainability, aiming to encourage those planning new developments 
to reduce the carbon footprint of the proposals and to incorporate as many energy efficiency 
measures as possible.

See Theme 2 
performance 
updates against 
all reporting 
measures on
page 23

P
age 147

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2022/02/Vale-Climate-Action-plan-2022-2024.pdf


See Theme 3 
performance 
updates against 
all reporting 
measures on 
page 28

      9whitehorse.gov.uk/climateactionOur people

KEY ACTIVITIESQUARTER ONE

GOAL 

To create a culture of climate 
action amongst staff and 
councillors in the workplace 

THEME 3  Our people

In order to enable and encourage staff and councillors to embed climate action in their day-to-
day work, in quarter one we have been developing an online training module on the CAP and 

carbon literacy. We are also working to build the skills and capacity needed to submit bids for 
climate-related funds and work has commenced to introduce the governance and documentation 
needed when making a bid to ensure it aligns with the council’s goals and is deliverable. The 
council has submitted a bid in partnership with Oxfordshire County Council and other district 
councils into the Local Electric Vehicle Infrastructure (LEVI) scheme, which follows on from the 
success of the Park and Charge project.

P
age 148

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2022/02/Vale-Climate-Action-plan-2022-2024.pdf


See Theme 4 
performance 
updates against 
all reporting 
measures on 
page 31

      10whitehorse.gov.uk/climateactionOur land

KEY ACTIVITIESQUARTER ONE

THEME 4  Our land
GOAL  
To approach our land
management with 
sustainable and 
climate-friendly 
best practices

Progress has been made in quarter one towards enhancing biodiversity on council owned 
land through No Mow May, which was trialled on sites in Abingdon, Faringdon and Wantage. 

The initial trial period has now been extended to the end of the growing season in quarter three, 
when the success of the trail will be evaluated.

The council’s website has been updated to offer more guidance for communities undertaking 
their own tree and hedgerow planting projects and communications were sent out to encourage 
community groups to plant trees for the Queen’s Green Canopy. 

The Park and Charge scheme was fully delivered, with 62 electric vehicle charging bays 
now operational in five car parks in the district. Potential locations for a solar farm were also 
reviewed. 

P
age 149

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2022/02/Vale-Climate-Action-plan-2022-2024.pdf


See Theme 5
performance 
updates against 
all reporting 
measures on
page 33

      11whitehorse.gov.uk/climateactionOur buildings

KEY ACTIVITIESQUARTER ONE

THEME 5  Our buildingsGOAL  
To decarbonise our 
buildings and their 
operations to ensure they 
are fit for the future

To progress the council’s aim to ensure our buildings are fit for the future, work to complete 
energy efficiency and site decarbonisation assessments for all council properties continued. 

Assessments were undertaken in quarter one at Faringdon, Wantage and White Horse leisure 
centres and a tender was prepared for the survey work for all outstanding council premises.

Additionally preparatory work has continued, for relocating the council’s current office base 
from 135 Milton Park to Abbey House, Abingdon which has included plans for reviewing the 
operating needs of the building and managing energy consumption.

P
age 150

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2022/02/Vale-Climate-Action-plan-2022-2024.pdf


See Theme 6 
performance 
updates against 
all reporting 
measures on 
page 36

      12whitehorse.gov.uk/climateactionOur communities

KEY ACTIVITIESQUARTER ONE

THEME 6  Our communitiesGOAL  
To guide and support the 
district’s businesses, 
voluntary sector and 
communities to take action 
on the climate
emergency In line with the council’s aims to work with communities, businesses, the voluntary sector 

and residents to address the climate emergency, this quarter we have continued to deliver 
our strategic climate communications plan, sharing appropriate information on a variety of 
climate issues. For example, we promoted campaigns including the Great British Spring 
Clean, Earth Day, Walk to Work Day and Clean Air Day. Officers have also had an active role 
in the Oxfordshire wide councils’ climate comms project, which aims to provide consistent and 
coordinated messaging across Oxfordshire, on a monthly key climate theme. This project will 
deliver a new, interactive, climate action website to support climate lifestyle changes and offer 
advice on aspects such as reducing energy use in your home and retrofitting. The new website 
will launch in quarter two. 

The district has many strong pre-existing climate and biodiversity focused networks and 
groups and this quarter officers continued to connect with these, with a view to developing 
and strengthening these relationships further as the year continues. Communities were also 
supported to include climate measures and to develop policies on addressing the challenges of 
climate change, in their neighbourhood plans. 

P
age 151

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2022/02/Vale-Climate-Action-plan-2022-2024.pdf


See Theme 7 
performance 
updates against 
all reporting 
measures on 
page 41

      13whitehorse.gov.uk/climateactionOur partners

KEY ACTIVITIESQUARTER ONE

THEME 7  Our partnersGOAL  
To work in partnership to 
reduce carbon emissions 
across the district and 
support county-wide 
initiatives, making a 
greater impact together The CAP aims to build on the council’s partnership work as key to achieving our climate 

emergency targets. This quarter, the council continued to engage in the development of 
the Oxfordshire Plan 2050, including work to ensure that climate considerations are central to 
the emerging Plan. Officers have also been supporting OxLEP to develop an event aimed at 
helping businesses to tackle climate change titled ‘What would need to happen to get every 
business in Oxfordshire to cut their carbon emissions by half by 2030?’. This event will be led 
by OxLEP in quarter two. 

Following the launch of the Climate Action Fund in quarter four of 2021/22, this quarter saw 
the close of this round of funding and a total of 21 applications were received from different 
organisations seeking to actively tackle climate change and/or enhance biodiversity, alongside 
increasing local communities’ awareness and knowledge of the climate emergency. Applications 
were assessed this quarter and thirteen projects were recommended for funding. These 
successful projects will be used to provide examples of good practice to inspire others across 
the district.

P
age 152

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2022/02/Vale-Climate-Action-plan-2022-2024.pdf


Theme 1: Our ways of working - Performance updates against reporting measures

CAP ID Actions Reporting Measure Delivery 
Timescale

Cabinet 
Lead Officer Lead Performance Update

RAG rate 
progress 
against 
each 
measure

Comments on AMBER or 
RED ratings

WOW1 Update the 
Corporate Delivery 
Framework 
to include 
considerations for 
climate impact and 
carbon emissions 

Report on the 
climate impact and 
carbon emission 
considerations 
included in the 
Corporate Delivery 
Framework providing 
examples

Short 
Term (1 
year)

Cabinet 
Member for 
Corporate 
Services and 
Transformation

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

In Q1, the gateway one form (GW1), within 
the corporate delivery framework, was 
amended to encourage consultation with 
the Climate Action Team to support with 
assessment of climate and biodiversity 
implications of all projects across the 
council. Further work to increase awareness 
of these implications is planned for Q2 and 
will include updating the guidance and 
advice contained within the CDF.

WOW2 Implement internal 
governance to 
progress and monitor 
the Climate Action 
Plan

Update on the 
internal governance 
including its structure 
and approach to 
progressing and 
monitoring the 
Climate Action Plan

Short 
Term (1 
year)

Cabinet 
Member for 
Corporate 
Services and 
Transformation

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

Q1 2022/23 signified the commencement 
of the first reporting period for the Climate 
Action Plan (CAP). A methodology for 
performance management of the CAP was 
implemented this quarter, in alignment 
with the Corporate Plan performance 
management approach. Quarterly reports 
will be published that specifically give a 
strategic overview of climate activity and 
performance across the Council, including 
a RAG rating of progress, relevant narrative 
and statistical data where appropriate. The 
performance report will be reviewed by 
the Climate and Ecological Emergencies 
Advisory Committee, Scrutiny and Cabinet 
to increase visibility, ensure accountability 
and monitor delivery of the Plan’s progress. 
Ensuring we are on track to meet the 
Council’s carbon neutral targets, through 
delivery of the actions set out in the CAP. 

      14Theme 1 performance updates whitehorse.gov.uk/climateaction

P
age 153

https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/2/2022/02/South-Climate-Action-plan-2022-2024.pdf


Theme 1: Our ways of working - Performance updates against reporting measures

CAP ID Actions Reporting Measure Delivery 
Timescale

Cabinet 
Lead Officer Lead Performance Update

RAG rate 
progress 
against 
each 
measure

Comments on AMBER or 
RED ratings

WOW3 Publish an internal 
toolkit with guidance 
for staff on how to 
assess the climate 
implications of 
projects and 
proposals

Update on the 
content of the toolkit 
and examples of 
projects and proposal 
that have used 
learning from the 
toolkit for the climate 
implications section 
of reports

Short 
Term (1 
year)

Cabinet 
Member for 
Corporate 
Services and 
Transformation

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes 

During Q1, the Climate Action Team 
consulted with service areas across the 
Council to offer advice and guidance on 
climate and biodiversity implications and 
considerations, as part of internal decision 
making documentation and and the 
Corporate Delivery Framework. Work to 
further this through creation of  an internal 
toolkit available to officers will develop in 
Q2/Q3. 

WOW4 Develop and 
implement measures 
for monitoring 
procurement 
contracts based on 
carbon emissions 
and climate action

Update on monitoring 
of procurement 
contracts based on 
carbon emissions 
and climate action, 
providing examples of 
relevant contracts

Medium 
Term (2 
years)

Cabinet 
Member for 
Finance and 
Corporate 
Assets

Head of 
Finance

During Q1, discussions were held 
with multiple companies on contract 
management opportunities for an online 
reporting and monitoring tool, to enable full 
contract management which will include 
climate action elements.

WOW5 Update the contract 
evaluation quality 
scoring procedure 
to include carbon 
reduction criteria

Report on how the 
contract evaluation 
quality scoring criteria 
has been updated 
to include carbon 
reduction criteria, 
providing examples 
of relevant awarded 
contracts

Short 
Term (1 
year)

Cabinet 
Member for 
Finance and 
Corporate 
Assets

Head of 
Finance

During Q1, action to address climate change 
continued to be discussed with teams when 
preparing the tender documentation. Work 
also continued on drafting a set of questions 
focused on climate action, to be used as 
guidance.

Live tenders that 
include climate action 
criteira have not 
been completed as 
yet. Examples will 
be included in Q2 
performance update

WOW6 Deliver staff training 
on the Procurement 
Strategy which 
includes 
understanding of 
carbon reduction 
objectives and 
criterion

Percentage of staff 
who completed 
the procurement 
training quarterly / 
report on how the 
training has impacted 
procurement 
contracts, providing 
relevant examples

Short 
Term (1 
year)

Cabinet 
Member for 
Corporate 
Services and 
Transformation

Head of 
Finance

During Q1, work continued on preparing 
training on revised procurement 
procedures. This training will include 
Procurement Strategy, carbon emissions 
and action. It is due to be delivered in Q2 
(September) to managers and in Q3 to 
officers. 

      15Theme 1 performance updates whitehorse.gov.uk/climateaction

P
age 154

https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/2/2022/02/South-Climate-Action-plan-2022-2024.pdf


Theme 1: Our ways of working - Performance updates against reporting measures

CAP ID Actions Reporting Measure Delivery 
Timescale

Cabinet 
Lead Officer Lead Performance Update

RAG rate 
progress 
against 
each 
measure

Comments on AMBER or 
RED ratings

WOW7 Conduct a review 
of all report writing 
templates, adding a 
climate implications 
section where 
missing 

Percentage of report 
writing templates 
that include a climate 
implications section 
/ Narrative on the 
updates to report 
writing templates

Short 
Term (1 
year)

Leader of the 
Council

Head of Legal 
and Democratic

At Q1, 100% of report templates have a 
climate implications section. However, 
it is recognised that there is work to be 
done around assessing climate impact for 
decision making purposes. Work to develop 
a screening toolkit and impact assessment 
form will be initiated.

WOW8 Divest direct 
investments from 
environmentally 
harmful activities 
where possible, 
whilst protecting the 
security of tax-payer 
funds

Narrative update 
on the introduction 
of the investment 
strategy and 
subsequent decision-
making around 
investing

Short 
Term (1 
year)

Cabinet 
Member for 
Finance and 
Corporate 
Assets

Head of 
Finance

At Q1, the council has no direct investment 
in environmentally harmful activities. Work 
has continued on developing a process 
to review the environmental, social, and 
governance (ESG) risk score, of current and 
potential counterparties, which will cover 
assessment of climate implications as part 
of assessment criteria for future investment.

WOW9 Incorporate a 
policy statement on 
environment/social/
governance factors 
in the financial 
implications section 
of reports 

Update on the 
statement included 
in Council templates 
under financial 
implications 

Short 
Term (1 
year)

Cabinet 
Member for 
Finance and 
Corporate 
Assets

Head of 
Finance

No progress to report Q1 2022/2023

WOW10 Engage with the 
council's investment 
portfolio to ask for 
and review their 
carbon reduction 
plans as part of 
decision making 
for the treasury 
management 
strategy

Number of 
investment portfolios 
reviewed for their 
carbon reduction 
plans / narrative 
on any changes in 
investments based on 
investment portfolio 
carbon reduction 
plans / percentage 
of Council portfolio 
in Paris Agreement 
aligned companies

Short 
Term (1 
year)

Cabinet 
Member for 
Finance and 
Corporate 
Assets

Head of 
Finance

No progress to report Q1 2022/2023

      16Theme 1 performance updates whitehorse.gov.uk/climateaction

P
age 155

https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/2/2022/02/South-Climate-Action-plan-2022-2024.pdf


Theme 1: Our ways of working - Performance updates against reporting measures

CAP ID Actions Reporting Measure Delivery 
Timescale

Cabinet 
Lead Officer Lead Performance Update

RAG rate 
progress 
against 
each 
measure

Comments on AMBER or 
RED ratings

WOW11 Review internal audit 
processes and where 
appropriate include 
risk considerations 
for the climate 
emergency

Report on how 
the internal audit 
processes have been 
updated to include 
carbon emission 
considerations

Short 
Term (1 
year)

Cabinet 
Member for 
Finance and 
Corporate 
Assets

Head of 
Finance

During Q1 2022/23 the audit scoping 
document has been updated to include an 
assessment of climate change risks, which is 
used on every individual audit.

WOW12 Refine criteria 
for community 
infrastructure 
levy (CIL) funding 
to maximise 
opportunities for 
including carbon 
reduction measures 
in projects and 
supporting climate 
action projects 

"Narrative update on 
CIL spend to support 
the delivery of local 
infrastructure 
 
Quantitative elements 
- Total CIL spend and 
spend break down"

Medium 
Term (2 
years)

Cabinet 
Member 
Development 
and 
Infrastructure

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes 
/ Head of 
Finance

The CIL Spending Strategy was updated 
and changes came into effect in April 2021. 
The changes enable the council to use 
its CIL funds to the fullest extent of the 
regulations, on projects either identified 
in the council's infrastructure delivery 
plan (IDP) or on infrastructure projects 
that support the council's corporate 
priorities, including climate change.  Any 
infrastructure projects delivered by the 
council are required to consider climate and 
biodiversity implications. 
 
As part of the 2022/23 capital programme, 
CIL funding has been allocated to the 
following climate/biodiversity projects: 
 
Tree Planting: £50,000 (plus £50,000 per 
year up to and including 2026/27) 
 
Vale Parks and Open Spaces: £50,000 
(plus £50,000 per year up to and including 
2026/27) 
 
Letcome Brook: £5,000 (plus £5,000 per 
year up to and including 2026/27)

      17Theme 1 performance updates whitehorse.gov.uk/climateaction

P
age 156

https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/2/2022/02/South-Climate-Action-plan-2022-2024.pdf


Theme 1: Our ways of working - Performance updates against reporting measures

CAP ID Actions Reporting Measure Delivery 
Timescale

Cabinet 
Lead Officer Lead Performance Update

RAG rate 
progress 
against 
each 
measure

Comments on AMBER or 
RED ratings

WOW13 Promote community 
infrastructure levy 
(CIL) criteria to 
all relevant staff 
to ensure they 
maximise carbon 
emission reductions 
in all CIL projects

Percentage of 
CIL projects that 
include carbon 
emission reduction 
considerations/ 
relevant project 
proposals, providing 
examples

Medium 
Term (2 
years)

Cabinet 
Member 
Development 
and 
Infrastructure

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes 
/ Head of 
Finance

Each year, projects with potential to be 
funded from CIL are identified so that they 
can be considered together as part of the 
budget setting process.  The Climate Action 
Team will be asked to provide some wording 
to include in the annual request for projects 
to remind officers that all projects must look 
to minimise carbon emissions.  All projects 
must also cover the climate and biodiversity 
implications in decision making documents 
in order for the projects to be considered 
for approval.  The Climate Action Team 
will also be encouraged to bring forward 
projects that directly contribute to the 
reduction in carbon emissions where these 
are in line with the CIL spending regulations. 
The percentage of CIL projects that include 
carbon emission reduction considerations 
will be reported on an annual basis in Q4.  

WOW14 Include more 
ambitious climate 
criteria in the 
conditions of our 
affordable housing 
grant funding

Updates on changes 
to the climate criteria 
of the affordable 
housing grant 
funding and how this 
has impacted new 
affordable housing 
developments, 
providing examples

Medium 
Term (2 
years)

Cabinet 
Member 
Development 
and 
Infrastructure

Head of 
Housing and 
Environment

During Q1, work to review the criteria for 
S106 affordable housing grant funding 
continued and this is ongoing. The review 
will include more specific climate measures, 
including clarity whether a project can be 
rejected for funding due to environmental 
criteria. The recruitment of a new Housing 
Delivery Manager will support progression 
of this action, following an assessment of 
the new Housing Delivery team.

The council is in the 
process of reviewing 
specific requirements 
with regards to climate 
measures in regards 
to affordable housing 
grant funding and 
the recruitment of a 
new Housing Delivery 
Manager will help 
progress this work, 
including setting 
timescales

      18Theme 1 performance updates whitehorse.gov.uk/climateaction

P
age 157

https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/2/2022/02/South-Climate-Action-plan-2022-2024.pdf


Theme 1: Our ways of working - Performance updates against reporting measures

CAP ID Actions Reporting Measure Delivery 
Timescale

Cabinet 
Lead Officer Lead Performance Update

RAG rate 
progress 
against 
each 
measure

Comments on AMBER or 
RED ratings

WOW15 Include policies 
in the Joint Local 
Plan that will help 
deliver zero carbon 
development and 
encourage more 
sustainable choices

Narrative update on 
sustainable and net 
zero planning policies 
being developed 
and included in the 
emerging JLP

Long 
Term (2 
years 
plus to 
deliver)

Cabinet 
Member 
Corporate 
Services and 
Transformation

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

In Q1 the Joint Local Plan consultation was 
held (from 12 May - 23 June 2022) which 
asked for views on the draft vision for the 
Local Plan and opportunities to deliver 
that vision, including matters relating to 
sustainable construction. 

WOW16 Produce an options 
paper for setting 
up a carbon 
offsetting scheme for 
developers as part of 
the new Joint Local 
Plan

Report on options 
paper development 
and suggested ways 
forward

Long 
Term (2 
years 
plus to 
deliver)

Cabinet 
Member 
Development 
and 
Infrastructure

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

No progress to report Q1 2022/2023  Currently at early 
stage of work on 
scoping and vision 
for Joint Local Plan 
(consultation held May-
June 2022) Later work 
will consider detailed 
policy development and 
could explore merits 
of a carbon offsetting 
scheme

      19Theme 1 performance updates whitehorse.gov.uk/climateaction

P
age 158

https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/2/2022/02/South-Climate-Action-plan-2022-2024.pdf


Theme 1: Our ways of working - Performance updates against reporting measures

CAP ID Actions Reporting Measure Delivery 
Timescale

Cabinet 
Lead Officer Lead Performance Update

RAG rate 
progress 
against 
each 
measure

Comments on AMBER or 
RED ratings

WOW17 Produce an options 
paper for pool 
electric vehicles 
for use by council 
staff to reduce 
emissions from 
business mileage, 
implementing if 
approved 

Update on the 
development of 
options paper for 
piloting pool electric 
vehicles, including on 
the carbon emission 
savings and decision 
making progress

Medium 
Term (2 
years)

Cabinet 
Member for 
Corporate 
Services and 
Transformation

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

In Q1 62 electric vehicle (EV) charging 
points have been implemented as part 
of the ‘Park and Charge project’ across 
five car parks per council.  As of July 2022 
uptake of the EV bays is low as expected 
and officers will monitor the uptake and 
usage of the EV charging bays over the 
next year as it is hoped and planned to 
grow.  In the meantime, to maximize use 
of the EV bays, officers are exploring the 
potential for commercial  EV hire clubs to 
benefit from this low usage of the EV bays 
and include council EV charging points as 
part of hire clubs network for recharging 
and parking of their EVs.  If staff resource is 
available, officers will also explore the use 
of EV hire companies for the benefit of staff 
who require vehicles for travel purposes 
whilst on council business. In particular, 
the new EV Park and Charge bays in the 
Cattlemarket car park in Abingdon could 
be trialled as a pilot EV hire scheme for 
council staff working at Abbey House (and 
potentially the public out of hours).  Staff 
are due to relocate to Abbey House in 
September 2022 and if successful, a similar 
approach could be implemented at the new 
HQ office site opposite the train station at 
Didcot Gateway. The Energy Saving Trust are 
carrying out a review of staff mileage. Their 
report will assess the emissions savings, 
and any potential financial savings, if some 
journeys in officer’s own vehicles were to 
be replaced with electric pool vehicles. The 
results from this study will feed into the 
proposed pilot scheme.

      20Theme 1 performance updates whitehorse.gov.uk/climateaction

P
age 159

https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/2/2022/02/South-Climate-Action-plan-2022-2024.pdf


Theme 1: Our ways of working - Performance updates against reporting measures

CAP ID Actions Reporting Measure Delivery 
Timescale

Cabinet 
Lead Officer Lead Performance Update

RAG rate 
progress 
against 
each 
measure

Comments on AMBER or 
RED ratings

WOW18 Develop and 
implement 
an internal 
communications plan 
to keep staff updated 
on climate action 
work, including 
useful advice and 
guidance on how to 
incorporate climate 
action into projects 
and programmes

Data on the 
number of internal 
communications 
campaigns on climate 
action work and a 
narrative update 
on the type of 
information shared 
and any feedback 
from staff on the use 
of the information

Short 
Term (1 
year)

Cabinet 
Member 
Community 
Engagement

Head of 
Corporate 
Services 

During Q1, a Climate Comms Forward 
Plan has been developed and is discussed 
fortnightly with Climate Action Officers 
to keep it up to date as a live document, 
this includes internal and external 
communications. Staff have been informed 
about Climate Action Plan and the Climate 
Action Oxfordshire website in Q1.   

WOW19 Move to a digital by 
default approach 
for virtual meetings 
where possible 
given the current 
conditions around 
decision making in 
Local Government 

Percentage of virtual 
meetings taken place, 
benchmark to include 
CEAC, Scrutiny, 
Cabinet and Council 
meetings

Short 
Term (1 
year)

Leader of the 
Council

Head of Legal 
and Democratic

The council continues to hold meetings 
remotely where permissible within the 
confines of the legislation and all of these 
meetings are livestreamed.  Any meetings 
of bodies carrying out an advisory function 
or where a formal decision is not being 
made is held virtually, and additionally these 
meetings are livestreamed.  Arrangements 
for meetings to be broadcast when the 
council moves to new offfices in Q2 are 
being made.  At present, we believe that 
we can livestream all meetings apart from 
council meetings. At Q1, 100% of Council 
meetings are now on-line and are available 
for a period of 12 months.

WOW20 Improve our use of 
existing technology 
to move to digital by 
default working 

Update on the use 
of technology for 
meetings; data on 
percentage of MFD 
printing 

Short 
Term (1 
year)

Cabinet 
Member for 
Corporate 
Services and 
Transformation

Head of 
Corporate 
Services

100% of committee meetings continue to 
be held using MS Teams enabling hybrid 
meetings and live streaming for online 
consumption. Use of MS Team Rooms to 
improve hybrid meeting experience is being 
explored for Abbey House large meeting 
room.

      21Theme 1 performance updates whitehorse.gov.uk/climateaction

P
age 160

https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/2/2022/02/South-Climate-Action-plan-2022-2024.pdf


Theme 1: Our ways of working - Performance updates against reporting measures

CAP ID Actions Reporting Measure Delivery 
Timescale

Cabinet 
Lead Officer Lead Performance Update

RAG rate 
progress 
against 
each 
measure

Comments on AMBER or 
RED ratings

WOW21 Develop and 
implement an anti-
idling policy for staff 
and contractors on 
council business, 
to ensure engines 
are turned off when 
appropriate

Update on the 
development of the 
policy and examples 
of anti-idling 
implementation from 
staff and contractors

Medium 
Term (2 
years)

Cabinet 
Member 
for Climate 
Emergency and 
Environment

Head of 
Corporate 
Service

No progress to report Q1 2022/2023

      22Theme 1 performance updates whitehorse.gov.uk/climateaction

P
age 161

https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/2/2022/02/South-Climate-Action-plan-2022-2024.pdf


Theme 2: Our service delivery - performance updates against reporting measures 

CAP ID Actions Reporting Measure Delivery 
Timescale

Cabinet 
Lead Officer Lead Performance Update

RAG rate 
progress 
against 
each 
measure

Comments on AMBER or 
RED ratings

SD1 a) Prepare new waste 
management approach 
to align with provisions 
of the Environment Bill 

Narrative report 
to outline steps to 
influence partners 
and our actions to 
reduce overall waste                                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                                                      
                      

Long 
Term (2 
years plus 
to deliver)

Cabinet 
Member 
Climate 
Emergency 
and 
Environment

Head of 
Housing and 
Environment

No progress to report Q1 2022/2023.  
No details from Defra on the results of 
consultations that have taken place on the 
Environment Act. 

Delay from Defra on the 
various elements of the 
Environment Bill and how 
it will impact on the new 
waste service

SD2 b) Specify new waste 
management contract 
with route optimisation, 
collection frequency and 
vehicle size to minimise 
carbon emissions

Narrative report 
to outline steps to 
influence partners 
and our actions to 
reduce overall waste                                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                                                      
                         

Long 
Term (2 
years plus 
to deliver)

Cabinet 
Member 
Climate 
Emergency 
and 
Environment

Head of 
Housing and 
Environment

No progress to report Q1 2022/2023. The 
new waste management contract is not 
required until 2024.

      23Theme 2 performance updates whitehorse.gov.uk/climateaction

P
age 162

https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/2/2022/02/South-Climate-Action-plan-2022-2024.pdf


Theme 2: Our service delivery - performance updates against reporting measures 

CAP ID Actions Reporting Measure Delivery 
Timescale

Cabinet 
Lead Officer Lead Performance Update

RAG rate 
progress 
against 
each 
measure

Comments on AMBER or 
RED ratings

SD3 c) Trial electric refuse 
vehicles and other 
relevant vehicle 
options, to identify 
the most suitable 
vehicles for reducing 
carbon emissions whilst 
maintaining service 
delivery 

Narrative report 
to outline steps to 
influence partners 
and our actions to 
reduce overall waste                                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                                                      
                         

Long 
Term (2 
years plus 
to deliver)

Cabinet 
Member 
Climate 
Emergency 
and 
Environment

Head of 
Housing and 
Environment

An initial electric waste vehicle trial has 
taken place. The vehicle was trialled across 
the district in a mixture of rural and urban 
areas. The conclusion of the trial during 
Q1 was that current vehicles available are 
not suitable for waste collection in our 
district due to a number of factors. The 
vehicle was unable to complete a waste 
collection round if it was doing more than 
one load of collected material (a current 
waste collection vehicle will do two to 
three loads). Additionally, the trial electric 
waste vehicle completed 60 to 70 per cent 
of the collection round on one charge and 
due to the current depot infrastructure, 
the vehicle could not charge mid shift 
due to time constraints. Positive feedback 
from drivers was received regarding 
the low noise level of the electric waste 
vehicle, however, concern was also raised 
regarding safety risks of other road users 
potentially not being able to hear the 
vehicle. The trial took place at intervals 
over a two-month period.

SD4 d) Replace end of life 
waste collection vehicles 
with electric fleet where 
range available allows

Narrative report 
to outline steps to 
influence partners 
and our actions to 
reduce overall waste                                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                                                      
                         

Long 
Term (2 
years plus 
to deliver)

Cabinet 
Member 
Climate 
Emergency 
and 
Environment

Head of 
Housing and 
Environment

No progress to report Q1 2022/2023. 
Current waste collection vehicles will not 
be replaced until 2024.

      24Theme 2 performance updates whitehorse.gov.uk/climateaction

P
age 163

https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/2/2022/02/South-Climate-Action-plan-2022-2024.pdf


Theme 2: Our service delivery - performance updates against reporting measures 

CAP ID Actions Reporting Measure Delivery 
Timescale

Cabinet 
Lead Officer Lead Performance Update

RAG rate 
progress 
against 
each 
measure

Comments on AMBER or 
RED ratings

SD5 Explore opportunities 
for a new waste depot 
including research 
into renewable energy 
supplies

Update on proposals 
for a new waste 
depot, including 
potential carbon 
reduction figures 

Long 
Term (2 
years plus 
to deliver)

Cabinet 
Member 
Climate 
Emergency 
and 
Environment

Head of 
Housing and 
Environment

During Q1, work to explore opportunities 
for a new waste depot continued. A 
possible site has been identified and a 
meeting took place with the owner. A 
Non-Disclosure Agreement (NDA) has 
been produced at the request of the site 
owner, so that negotiations can progress 
without prejudice to either party prior to a 
formal agreement being entered into. The 
NDS is in the process of being signed by 
both parties.

SD6 Develop a business 
case and implement a 
delivery plan for council 
vehicles to be zero 
emission by 2025, where 
available on the market

Data on potential 
carbon reduction 
savings from 
switching vehicles 
to zero emission; 
narrative report 
on business case 
development and 
delivery plan for 
doing so, including 
market options for 
EVs

Short 
Term (1 
year)

Cabinet 
Member for 
Finance and 
Corporate 
Assets

Head of 
Development 
and 
Corporatre 
Landlord

In Q1 the councils worked in partnership 
with the Energy Saving Trust on an 
Ultra Low Emission Fleet Review. This 
project is assessing the opportunities 
to replace vehicles owned and leased 
by the councils with electric vehicles. A 
report will be published at the end of the 
project which will cover predicted carbon 
emissions savings, costs, and timescales 
for equivalent vehicles to come to market. 
The report will be completed in Q2.

SD7 Install electric vehicle 
(EV) charge points in 
council depot and other 
locations as necessary 
to meet needs of council 
fleet 

Data on the number 
of EV charge points 
installed for use 
by council fleet; 
narrative update on 
the location of the 
EV charge points and 
how they meet the 
needs of the council 
fleet

Medium 
Term (2 
years)

Cabinet 
Member for 
Finance and 
Corporate 
Assets

Head of 
Development 
and Corporate 
Landlord

No EV charge points have been installed 
for use by the council fleet. During Q1 no 
council EV vehicles were purchased.  We 
have commissioned a report by the Energy 
Saving Trust to make recommendations on 
best types of vehicle procurement across 
councils. 

The "council fleet" does 
not include electric 
vehicles currently

      25Theme 2 performance updates whitehorse.gov.uk/climateaction

P
age 164

https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/2/2022/02/South-Climate-Action-plan-2022-2024.pdf


Theme 2: Our service delivery - performance updates against reporting measures 

CAP ID Actions Reporting Measure Delivery 
Timescale

Cabinet 
Lead Officer Lead Performance Update

RAG rate 
progress 
against 
each 
measure

Comments on AMBER or 
RED ratings

SD8 Feedback on planning 
applications to 
include signposting to 
information sources 
to improve the energy 
efficiency of proposals 

Data on the 
percentage of 
applications that 
include sign posting 
to energy efficiency 
advice 

Short 
Term (1 
year)

Cabinet 
Member 
Community 
Engagement

Head of 
Planning

There is currently no method for collecting 
data on the percentage of applications 
that include sign posting to energy 
efficiency advice. The recently adopted 
Joint Design Guide (adopted in Vale of 
White Horse on 24 June 2023) includes 
a climate change section with website 
links to guide and assist customers 
and users on information resources on 
incorporating energy efficiency measures 
into development proposals. 

SD9 Update the council 
planning and 
development webpages 
to signpost to advice 
on energy efficiency 
considerations for 
inclusion in planning 
applications

Update on the energy 
efficiency information 
provided on the 
council webpages; 
data on the number 
of clicks on the links

Short 
Term (1 
year)

Cabinet 
Member 
Community 
Engagement

Head of 
Planning

During Q1 the Joint Design Guide was 
adopted (June 2022). This is a web-based 
document which includes information and 
advice on energy efficiency considerations 
for inclusion in planning applications. 

SD10 Work with our town and 
parish councils who are 
developing projects that 
reduce carbon emissions 
locally by providing 
advice on planning 
permissions needed for 
their projects to be a 
success

Report on support 
provided to town 
and parish councils 
on their carbon 
reduction projects; 
data on number of 
carbon emissions 
reduction projects 
submitted by town 
and parish councils

Short 
Term (1 
year)

Cabinet 
Member 
Community 
Engagement

Head of 
Planning

Town and Parish Engagement sessions are 
held monthly where representatives from 
the Town and Parish Councils can meeting 
with officers (a Service Manager and Team 
Leader) to discuss planning matters. This is 
the forum through which Town and Parish 
projects can be discussed and advice 
around planning-related carbon emissions 
offered. 

      26Theme 2 performance updates whitehorse.gov.uk/climateaction

P
age 165

https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/2/2022/02/South-Climate-Action-plan-2022-2024.pdf


Theme 2: Our service delivery - performance updates against reporting measures 

CAP ID Actions Reporting Measure Delivery 
Timescale

Cabinet 
Lead Officer Lead Performance Update

RAG rate 
progress 
against 
each 
measure

Comments on AMBER or 
RED ratings

SD11 Support the 
implementation of the 
air quality action plan 
across the district

Narrative containing 
updates/changes 
to AQ monitoring 
techniques, an update 
on work with partners 
to monitor AQ and 
details of published 
AQ measures

Long 
Term (2 
years plus 
to deliver)

Cabinet 
Member 
Climate 
Emergency 
and 
Environment

Head of 
Housing and 
Environment

During Q1, tender documents to engage 
air quality consultants to produce a 
new air quality action plan have been 
published. The closing date for return 
is in Q2. Following tender returns, 
work will commence on evaluation and 
appointment.  

      27Theme 2 performance updates whitehorse.gov.uk/climateaction

P
age 166

https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/2/2022/02/South-Climate-Action-plan-2022-2024.pdf


Theme 3: Our people - performance updates against reporting measures 

CAP ID Actions Reporting Measure Delivery 
Timescale

Cabinet 
Lead Officer Lead Performance Update

RAG rate 
progress 
against 
each 
measure

Comments on AMBER 
or RED ratings

P1

Provide all-staff and 
councillor training on 
the council's climate 
action plan and carbon 
literacy

Data on percentage 
of staff that have 
taken the climate 
action plan training; 
narrative on how staff 
have integrated the 
training into their 
work, using case 
studies 

Short 
Term (1 
year)

Cabinet 
Member for 
Corporate 
Services and 
Transformation

Head of 
Corporate 
Services 

During Q1, work continued on reviewing 
and scoping content for an internal, 
online training module for all-staff and 
councillors. This module will include 
information on understanding climate 
change, the impact of climate change, the 
international and national picture, the 
Vale of White Horse District Council story 
so far and how addressing climate change 
is a role for everyone.

P2

Provide enhanced 
specialist training on 
latest carbon reduction 
or climate action 
approaches to relevant 
staff and councillors

Data on percentage 
of specialist training 
delivered to staff; 
narrative on how staff 
identify the training 
they need and how 
they have used the 
training in their work 

Medium 
Term (2 
years)

Cabinet 
Member for 
Corporate 
Services and 
Transformation

Head of 
Corporate 
Services / Head 
of Policy and 
Programmes

No progress to report Q1 2022/23. To 
follow after implementation of CAP Action 
P1. 

      28Theme 3 performance updates whitehorse.gov.uk/climateaction

P
age 167

https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/2/2022/02/South-Climate-Action-plan-2022-2024.pdf


Theme 3: Our people - performance updates against reporting measures 

CAP ID Actions Reporting Measure Delivery 
Timescale

Cabinet 
Lead Officer Lead Performance Update

RAG rate 
progress 
against 
each 
measure

Comments on AMBER 
or RED ratings

P3

Ensure there is 
relevant skill and 
capacity to support 
grant application 
writing and bidding 
for climate related 
funds, maximising the 
opportunities to include 
carbon emissions 
reductions and energy 
efficiency in all projects

Dedicated bid writing 
resource secured; 
Data on the number 
of applications to 
grants and funds 
that relate to climate 
action and carbon 
emission reduction; 
narrative report 
on grant writing 
skills and training 
that has taken 
place to maximise 
opportunities on bid 
writing

Long 
Term (2 
years plus 
to deliver)

Cabinet 
Member for 
Corporate 
Services and 
Transformation

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

During Q1 2022/23, in order to ensure 
there is relevant skill and capacity to 
support grant application writing and 
bidding for climate related funds, the 
External Funding Lead has continued to 
embed in the organisation and work has 
commenced to introduce the governance 
and documentation needed when making 
a bid to ensure it aligns with the Council's 
goals and is deliverable. The Council has 
also submitted a bid in partnership with 
Oxfordshire County Council and other 
district councils into the Local Electric 
Vehicle Infrastructure (LEVI) scheme 
which follows on from the success of 
the Park and Charge project. We are 
expecting a result in Q2, if successful this 
will provide the necessary infrastructure 
to facilitate a rapid shift to EV in the 
district which will significantly decrease 
carbon emissions from vehicles. Work 
has also continued on ensuring we are 
prepared for phase 3b of the Public Sector 
Decarbonisation Scheme.

P4

Implement a green 
travel plan for all 
staff and councillors, 
including a digital by 
default approach where 
possible to reduce travel

Data on staff mileage 
once this plan is 
implemented and 
narrative report on 
the changes to staff 
travel as a result of 
the plan

Medium 
Term (2 
years)

Cabinet 
Member for 
Corporate 
Services and 
Transformation

Head of 
Corporate 
Services 

No progress to report Q1 2022/23  

The plan will now 
cover new temporary 
office location at 
Abbey House. Ideas 
will be scoped out in 
Q2 

      29Theme 3 performance updates whitehorse.gov.uk/climateaction

P
age 168

https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/2/2022/02/South-Climate-Action-plan-2022-2024.pdf


Theme 3: Our people - performance updates against reporting measures 

CAP ID Actions Reporting Measure Delivery 
Timescale

Cabinet 
Lead Officer Lead Performance Update

RAG rate 
progress 
against 
each 
measure

Comments on AMBER 
or RED ratings

P5

Set up green champions 
network for interested 
staff to support climate 
work 

Report on outcomes 
of green champion 
network meetings, 
including case studies 
of green champions 
to highlight key areas 
of work and impact of 
the champions

Short 
Term (1 
year)

Cabinet 
Member for 
Corporate 
Services and 
Transformation

Head of 
Corporate 
Services 

No progress to report Q1 2022/23. 

P6

Incorporate climate 
action opportunities 
within council 
volunteering scheme for 
staff

Data on the number 
of climate action 
opportunities within 
council volunteering 
scheme and data 
on the number of 
take up of these 
opportunities; case 
studies from staff 
on how they have 
engaged with this 
opportunity

Medium 
Term (2 
years)

Cabinet 
Member for 
Corporate 
Services and 
Transformation

Head of 
Corporate 
Services

No progress to report Q1 2022/2023. 

      30Theme 3 performance updates whitehorse.gov.uk/climateaction

P
age 169

https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/2/2022/02/South-Climate-Action-plan-2022-2024.pdf


Theme 4: Our land - performance updates against reporting measures 

CAP ID Actions Reporting Measure Delivery 
Timescale

Cabinet 
Lead Officer Lead Performance Update

RAG rate 
progress 
against 
each 
measure

Comments on AMBER or 
RED ratings

L1 Following the grounds 
maintenance operational 
review, update grounds 
maintenance operations 
to enhance biodiversity 
and tree cover including 
considering the need for 
mowing, opportunities 
to allow for wilding, 
and reducing the 
use of pesticides and 
herbicides where 
possible

Report sharing 
the updates to the 
grounds maintenance 
operations that 
address the climate 
emergency and 
how they support 
biodiversity 

Short 
Term (1 
year)

Cabinet 
Member 
Finance and 
Corporate 
Assets

Head of 
Development 
and Corporate 
Landlord

No progress to report in Q1 2022/2023 
towards the grounds maintenance review 
due to an ongoing internal evaluation. 
However, progress has been made towards 
enhancing biodiversity on council owned 
land through No Mow May, which was 
trialled on sites including Abingdon, 
Faringdon and Wantage.   The trail has been 
extended to the end of the season in Q3 
when the visual impact, ecological growth, 
and informal feedback will be assessed. 

 Limited progress to date

L2 Identify sites for new 
tree planting and 
wilding opportunities 
on Our land or 
through partnership 
opportunities on 
privately owned land to 
support natural carbon 
capture

Report on 
identification of sites 
for new tree planting 
opportunities, 
including plans to 
plant trees on these 
sites

Medium 
Term (2 
years)

Cabinet 
Member for 
Finance and 
Corporate 
Assets

Head of 
Development 
and Corporate 
Landlord

In Q1, work has continued to ensure the 
suitability of sites identified for a Tiny Forest 
in Abingdon for delivery in Q3 - Q4. The 
council’s website was updated to offer more 
guidance for communities undertaking their 
own tree and hedgerow planting projects.  
Communications were sent out in Q1 to 
encourage community groups to plant trees 
for the Queen’s Green Canopy, following 
the first 2021/22 planting season, where 
1400 trees were planted by communities 
to celebrate the Jubilee. No tree planting 
applications have received in Q1 2022/2023, 
but we would expect this to increase in Q2 
and Q3.

No tree planting 
applications received in 
Q1 2022/2023. Strategic 
Property team are 
working with the Climate 
team undertaking due 
diligence on identified 
sites for tiny forests to 
ensure no blockers

      31Theme 4 performance updates whitehorse.gov.uk/climateaction

P
age 170

https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/2/2022/02/South-Climate-Action-plan-2022-2024.pdf


Theme 4: Our land - performance updates against reporting measures 

CAP ID Actions Reporting Measure Delivery 
Timescale

Cabinet 
Lead Officer Lead Performance Update

RAG rate 
progress 
against 
each 
measure

Comments on AMBER or 
RED ratings

L3 Prepare a business 
case and, if approved, 
implement a local 
renewable energy 
project, such as a 
solar farm, to address 
unavoidable council 
emissions

Data on the amount 
of renewable energy 
produced and 
emissions offset; 
Narrative update 
on the progression 
of plans for this 
project and how the 
renewable energy 
produced neutralises 
council emissions

Long 
Term (2 
years 
plus to 
deliver)

Cabinet 
Member for 
Finance and 
Corporate 
Assets

Head of 
Development 
and Corporate 
Landlord

In Q1, the Strategic Property team worked 
with the Climate Action team looking at 
potential locations for a solar farm. Officers 
also looked at business cases for use of 
energy from photo voltaics at sewage 
treatment plants.  

Any possible project still 
at inception stage

L4 Deliver the Park 
and Charge scheme, 
installing EV charge 
points in our car parks, 
in partnership with 
Oxfordshire County 
Council 

Data on the number 
of EV charge points 
installed in council 
car parks; narrative 
update on the 
partnership approach 
for delivering this 
project

Short 
Term (1 
year)

Cabinet 
Member for 
Finance and 
Corporate 
Assets

Head of 
Development 
and Corporate 
Landlord

In Q1 the project was completed. 62 EV 
charging bays are now operational in five 
Vale car parks in Abingdon, Wantage and 
Faringdon as part of the Park and Charge 
project.

L5 Develop an options 
paper for installing 
public EV charging 
points on additional 
council premises, 
including funding 
sources available

Update on the 
business case 
development for 
installing public EV 
charging points; data 
on energy use of the 
points, including how 
much charge they 
provide to EVs 

Medium 
Term (2 
years)

Cabinet 
Member for 
Finance and 
Corporate 
Assets

Head of 
Development 
and Corporate 
Landlord

No progress to report Q1 2022/2023. Officers, in partnership 
with Oxfordshire County 
Council, have applied for 
LEVI funding (local electric 
vehicle infrastructure) 
which if successful, would 
increase the number of 
EV charging points at 
further locations (staff 
resource dependant).  
Whilst a bid for funding 
has been made, there is 
not currently a business 
case or an options paper 
drafted

      32Theme 4 performance updates whitehorse.gov.uk/climateaction

P
age 171

https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/2/2022/02/South-Climate-Action-plan-2022-2024.pdf


Theme 5: Our buildings - performance updates against reporting measures 

CAP ID Actions Reporting Measure Delivery 
Timescale

Cabinet 
Lead Officer Lead Performance Update

RAG rate 
progress 
against 
each 
measure

Comments on AMBER 
or RED ratings

B1 a) Complete energy 
efficiency and site 
decarbonisation 
assessments for all 
leisure centres

Data on the energy 
efficiency of all 
leisure centres; 
narrative report on 
site decarbonisation 
assessments, with 
projections for how 
the sites will be 
decarbonised 

Medium 
Term (2 
years)

Cabinet 
Member for 
Finance and 
Corporate 
Assets

Head of 
Development 
and Corporate 
Landlord

In Q1, work to prepare funding bids for 
the decarbonisation of Wantage and 
White Horse Leisure Centres began. The 
installation of a low carbon heating system 
is underway at Faringdon Leisure Centre

In progress but not 
completed

B1 b) Following site 
assessments of leisure 
centres, prepare 
for external funding 
opportunities, including 
soft market testing

Narrative update as 
to current initiatives 
to increase external 
funding for Council 
activities, with 
details of additional 
resources committed 
to support these 
activities 
 
Specific elements 
which should be 
included - proportion 
of spend on leisure/
community facilities 
vs amount funded by 
Council; externally 
funded Capital 
schemes; total 
external funding 
received figure

Medium 
Term (2 
years)

Cabinet 
Member for 
Finance and 
Corporate 
Assets

Head of 
Development 
and Corporate 
Landlord

In Q1, Faringdon Leisure centre is in 
delivery. External funding bid preparation 
underway for Wantage and White Horse 
Leisure Centres. Other sites are awaiting 
surveys.

In progress but not 
completed

B2 a) Complete energy 
efficiency and site 
decarbonisation 
assessments for all 
non-leisure operational 
properties

Data on the energy 
efficiency of all 
non-leisure centres; 
Narrative report on 
site decarbonisation 
assessments, with 
projections for how 
the sites will be 
decarbonised 

Long 
Term (2 
years plus 
to deliver)

Cabinet 
Member for 
Finance and 
Corporate 
Assets

Head of 
Development 
and Corporate 
Landlord

No progress to report Q1 2022/2023. The 
Climate Action team are preparing a tender 
for the survey work for all outstanding 
operational council premises.

In progress but not 
completed

      33Theme 5 performance updates whitehorse.gov.uk/climateaction

P
age 172

https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/2/2022/02/South-Climate-Action-plan-2022-2024.pdf


Theme 5: Our buildings - performance updates against reporting measures 

CAP ID Actions Reporting Measure Delivery 
Timescale

Cabinet 
Lead Officer Lead Performance Update

RAG rate 
progress 
against 
each 
measure

Comments on AMBER 
or RED ratings

B2 b) Prepare for external 
funding opportunities 
for non-leisure 
properties, particularly 
properties with an end-
of-use heating plant, 
including carrying out 
soft market testing

Narrative update as 
to current initiatives 
to increase external 
funding for Council 
activities, with 
details of additional 
resources committed 
to support these 
activities 
 
Specific elements 
which should be 
included - proportion 
of spend on leisure/
community facilities 
vs amount funded by 
Council; externally 
funded Capital 
schemes; total 
external funding 
received figure

Long 
Term (2 
years plus 
to deliver)

Cabinet 
Member for 
Finance and 
Corporate 
Assets

Head of 
Development 
and Corporate 
Landlord

No progress to report Q1 2022/2023. 
Awaiting decarbonisation assessment 
output. 

In progress but not 
completed

      34Theme 5 performance updates whitehorse.gov.uk/climateaction

P
age 173

https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/2/2022/02/South-Climate-Action-plan-2022-2024.pdf


Theme 5: Our buildings - performance updates against reporting measures 

CAP ID Actions Reporting Measure Delivery 
Timescale

Cabinet 
Lead Officer Lead Performance Update

RAG rate 
progress 
against 
each 
measure

Comments on AMBER 
or RED ratings

B3 Include carbon and 
energy reduction targets 
in management plans 
for the monitoring of 
site operations including 
all leisure centres to 
enforce and encourage 
low carbon operational 
behaviour in council 
assets

Report on the 
changes to the carbon 
and energy reduction 
targets in the criteria 
for monitoring 
operations and report 
on the changes 
to operational 
procedures to meet 
carbon and energy 
reduction targets; 
data on carbon 
emissions from 
operations

Long 
Term (2 
years plus 
to deliver)

Cabinet 
Member 
Development 
and 
Infrastructure

Head of 
Development 
and Corporate 
Landlord

This action compliments the site 
decarbonisation assessments covered 
in actions B1 and B2. Whilst the 
decarbonisation reports could be helpful 
for this action, the core aim here is to look 
at the ‘softer side’ of energy management, 
looking to optimise energy efficiency 
across the operational estate.  This will be 
developed further as part of the evolution 
of the Corporate Landlord Model which 
has commenced in Q1.  In Q2 we will 
consolidate the Councils office base from 
135 Milton Park to Abbey House presenting 
an opportunity to review the operating 
needs of the building (other users include 
Oxfordshire County Council and The 
Citizens Advice Bureau) and to manage 
energy consumption e.g. lighting, heating 
to match the pattern of use.

In progress but not 
completed

B4 Develop a policy 
to agree an energy 
efficiency standard for 
new asset acquisitions 
and council owned 
builds

Update on the 
development of the 
energy efficiency 
standards policy 
for new asset 
acquisitions and 
builds, including 
case studies of 
how this has been 
implemented

Long 
Term (2 
years plus 
to deliver)

Cabinet 
Member for 
Finance and 
Corporate 
Assets

Head of 
Development 
and Corporate 
Landlord

No progress to report Q1 2022/2023. Not progressed

      35Theme 5 performance updates whitehorse.gov.uk/climateaction

P
age 174

https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/2/2022/02/South-Climate-Action-plan-2022-2024.pdf


Theme 6: Our communities - performance updates against reporting measures 

CAP ID Actions Reporting Measure Delivery 
Timescale

Cabinet 
Lead Officer Lead Performance Update

RAG rate 
progress 
against 
each 
measure

Comments on 
AMBER or RED 
ratings

C1 Implement an external 
communications plan 
which shares updates 
on the climate action 
work undertaken 
by the council, and 
advice and guidance to 
residents, businesses 
and the voluntary and 
community sector 
on reducing carbon 
emissions. To include:

Narrative update 
on comms and 
engagement activities 
which interface with 
communities, schools 
and other local 
organisations

Short 
Term (1 
year)

Cabinet Member 
Community 
Engagement

Head of 
Corporate 
Services

During Q1, a Climate Comms Forward 
Plan has been developed and is discussed 
fortnightly with officers to keep it up to 
date as a live document. This includes 
internal and external communications 
activities assigned where apprropriate, to 
each climate action the council is involved 
with.

C2 Advice and guidance 
on circular economy 
principles and how 
to implement them, 
especially for businesses 
and the voluntary and 
community sector

Narrative update 
on comms and 
engagement activities 
which interface with 
communities, schools 
and other local 
organisations

Long 
Term (2 
years plus 
to deliver)

Cabinet Member 
Community 
Engagement

Head of 
Corporate 
Services

During Q1, we continued to promote 
the work of Oxfordshire Greentech, as a 
business network supporting the growth 
of the low-carbon sector in Oxfordshire. 
Greentech offer a special interest group 
focused on Circular Economy and can 
provide specialist support and guidance in 
relation to this area. Additionally during 
Q1 as part of the promotion of the Climate 
Action Fund, a guidance document was 
produced to offer inspiration to applicants 
on the types of projects they could 
implement in their communities and seek 
funding for. These ideas included activity 
to reuse, repair and recycling existing 
materials.

C3 Advice and guidance 
on energy efficiency of 
operations, including 
consideration for 
delivery options and 
the energy efficiency 
of buildings used 
by businesses and 
the voluntary and 
community sector 

Narrative update 
on comms and 
engagement activities 
which interface with 
communities, schools 
and other local 
organisations

Long 
Term (2 
years plus 
to deliver)

Cabinet Member 
Community 
Engagement

Head of 
Corporate 
Services

In Q1, energy effiency information for 
businesses and community groups was 
added to the council's climate action web 
pages.  This will be further developed in 
Q2, alongside the launch of an Oxfordshire 
wide councils' climate action website, 
supporting an coordinated response to 
offering advice and guidance across the 
county.

      36Theme 6 performance updates whitehorse.gov.uk/climateaction

P
age 175

https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/2/2022/02/South-Climate-Action-plan-2022-2024.pdf


Theme 6: Our communities - performance updates against reporting measures 

CAP ID Actions Reporting Measure Delivery 
Timescale

Cabinet 
Lead Officer Lead Performance Update

RAG rate 
progress 
against 
each 
measure

Comments on 
AMBER or RED 
ratings

C4 Share climate friendly 
lifestyle changes, 
including ways to make 
homes more energy 
efficient

Narrative update 
on comms and 
engagement activities 
which interface with 
communities, schools 
and other local 
organisations

Long 
Term (2 
years plus 
to deliver)

Cabinet Member 
Community 
Engagement

Head of 
Corporate 
Services

In Q1, officers have supported and been 
actively engaged in, the Oxfordshire 
Climate Action Comms Project, which 
includes the launch of a new Oxfordshire 
climate action website as well as ongoing 
promotion of events and climate 
action messaging since the campaign 
commenced. This has included a month 
by month Oxfordshire wide theme, to 
share climate friendly lifestyle changes to 
residents and communities around specific 
subjects with shared messaging. In Q1 
these themes included biodiversity and 
active travel. 

C5 Promote climate funding 
opportunities for 
businesses, voluntary 
and community sectors, 
and residents

Narrative update 
on comms and 
engagement activities 
which interface with 
communities, schools 
and other local 
organisations

Long 
Term (2 
years plus 
to deliver)

Cabinet Member 
Community 
Engagement

Head of 
Corporate 
Services

In Q1, we promoted the Climate Action 
Fund, which resulted in 22 applications 
from organisations across the Vale. 
Resulting in a total request of £78,000, 
against a budget of £50,000. The 
applications were assessed in Q1 with 
awards due in Q2.

C6 Promote community 
sharing and reuse 
to reduce waste 
and unnecessary 
consumption 

Narrative update 
on comms and 
engagement activities 
which interface with 
communities, schools 
and other local 
organisations

Long 
Term (2 
years plus 
to deliver)

Cabinet Member 
Community 
Engagement

Head of 
Corporate 
Services

In Q1, the council's social media pages 
were used to encourage members of 
the community to reduce waste and 
unnecessary consumption, including 
promoting composting, the Great British 
Spring Clean, Earth Day, walk to work day 
and clean air day.

      37Theme 6 performance updates whitehorse.gov.uk/climateaction

P
age 176

https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/2/2022/02/South-Climate-Action-plan-2022-2024.pdf


Theme 6: Our communities - performance updates against reporting measures 

CAP ID Actions Reporting Measure Delivery 
Timescale

Cabinet 
Lead Officer Lead Performance Update

RAG rate 
progress 
against 
each 
measure

Comments on 
AMBER or RED 
ratings

C7 Promote relevant 
housing energy 
efficiency schemes, 
including grants, to 
residents, landlords and 
housing associations

Narrative update 
on comms and 
engagement activities 
which interface with 
communities, schools 
and other local 
organisations

Long 
Term (2 
years plus 
to deliver)

Cabinet Member 
Community 
Engagement

Head of 
Corporate 
Services

In Q1, we promoted an event held by 
Oxford City and Better Homes Oxford. 
Information was also shared inabout 
external funding opportunities where 
appropriate. Vale of White Horse received 
88 enquires to the Green Homes Grant 
Local Authority Delivery (LAD) 1b scheme, 
and 40 households subsequently received 
retrofitting measures.

C8 Include in Community 
Employment Plans 
considerations for 
addressing the councils 
climate neutral targets 
through commitments 
such as green skills 
training, sourcing 
through a local and 
sustainable supply chain, 
supporting local social 
enterprises and charities 
and accessing local 
employment

Update on the 
conditions of 
Community 
Employment Plans 
that address the 
climate emergency 
and how they are 
being implemented 
by developers; data 
on the number 
of Community 
Employment Plans 
implemented with 
conditions that 
address the climate 
emergency

Long 
Term (2 
years plus 
to deliver)

Cabinet Member 
Community 
Engagement

Head of 
Development 
and Corporate 
Landlord

The current Local Plan Policy does not 
specifically focus on climate targets, 
and as such is a new area of focus for 
Community Employment Plans (CEPs). In 
Q1, work began to try and ensure that an 
appropriately worded policy is considered 
for inclusion within the new joint local plan 
and includes a focus on climate. 
 
Existing CEPs in Vale help to address 
the climate emergency through 
alternative headings (such as community 
engagement). Outputs achieved in Q1 at 
the Kingsgrove site in Wantage include 
420 trees planted supporting the Queen's 
Green Canopy,  and connections made to 
recycle and reuse construction materials, 
such as fence panels and construction 
PPE, for the benefit of local charities and 
schools.

Ongoing measure

      38Theme 6 performance updates whitehorse.gov.uk/climateaction

P
age 177

https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/2/2022/02/South-Climate-Action-plan-2022-2024.pdf


Theme 6: Our communities - performance updates against reporting measures 

CAP ID Actions Reporting Measure Delivery 
Timescale

Cabinet 
Lead Officer Lead Performance Update

RAG rate 
progress 
against 
each 
measure

Comments on 
AMBER or RED 
ratings

C9 Support communities 
with their 
neighbourhood planning 
by providing up-to-date 
advice and guidance on 
climate measures and 
actions, encouraging 
climate considerations 
to be at the core of 
neighbourhood plans

"Data on the number 
of neighbourhood 
plans developed; 
Narrative update on 
the types of climate 
actions incorporated 
into neighbourhood 
plans"

Long 
Term (2 
years plus 
to deliver)

Cabinet Member 
for Corporate 
Services and 
Transformation 

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes 

In Q1 work continued to assist 
communities preparing neighbourhood 
plans, including the insertion of climate 
measures. The following neighbourhood 
plans are at preparation stage: Abingdon, 
East Challow, East Hanney, Great Coxwell 
Review, Stanford-in-the-Vale, Steventon, 
Sunningwell, Sutton Courtenay, Wantage 
and Shellingford.

C10 Support taxi drivers in 
switching to electric 
vehicles, including 
reviewing options to 
incentivise the switch 
through fees and 
charges

Data on the number 
of taxi drivers driving 
electric vehicles and 
narrative update on 
the support to taxi 
drivers for doing so

Long 
Term (2 
years plus 
to deliver)

Cabinet Member 
Healthy 
Communities

Head of 
Legal and 
Democratic

The licence fee for electric vehicles is set at 
£85, which is over 60% lower than the fee 
for all other vehicles.  At Q1, there are no 
licensed electric vehicles in the Vale, out of 
331 currently licensed.

This will always 
be a long term 
initiative until 
the Government 
embargo on new 
petrol and diesel 
vehicles comes into 
effect, but we have 
to recognise that the 
trade will not readily 
move to what is in 
reality a developing 
technology 
without readily 
availalbe charging 
infrastructre

      39Theme 6 performance updates whitehorse.gov.uk/climateaction

P
age 178

https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/2/2022/02/South-Climate-Action-plan-2022-2024.pdf


Theme 6: Our communities - performance updates against reporting measures 

CAP ID Actions Reporting Measure Delivery 
Timescale

Cabinet 
Lead Officer Lead Performance Update

RAG rate 
progress 
against 
each 
measure

Comments on 
AMBER or RED 
ratings

C11 Organise quarterly 
climate focused 
network meetings 
for town and parish 
councils, and voluntary 
and community 
organisations, linking 
with existing networks

Data on number 
of meetings held; 
narrative update 
on the agendas, 
outcomes and actions 
from the meetings

Long 
Term (2 
years plus 
to deliver)

Cabinet Member 
Community 
Engagement

Head of 
Corporate 
Services 

During Q1, the Climate Action Team 
continued to connect with the many pre-
existing climate and biodiversity focused 
network meetings and partnerships in 
Oxfordshire, with a view to developing 
these relationships further. Based on 
discussions in Q1, the Climate Action 
Team has begun to scope opportunities 
to support town and parish councils, and 
voluntary and community organisations 
with their climate and nature recovery 
plans through further funding (where 
available), skills development, 
communications or links with other council 
services and likeminded groups.

      40Theme 6 performance updates whitehorse.gov.uk/climateaction

P
age 179

https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/2/2022/02/South-Climate-Action-plan-2022-2024.pdf


Theme 7: Our partners - performance updates against reporting measures 

CAP ID Actions Reporting Measure Delivery 
Timescale

Cabinet 
Lead Officer Lead Performance Update

RAG rate 
progress 
against 
each 
measure

Comments on AMBER or 
RED ratings

OP1 Build relationships 
with town and parish 
councils to support 
and encourage 
their climate action 
initiatives 

Update on how the 
council has worked 
with town and parish 
councils on climate 
action initiatives, 
including case studies

Long 
Term (2 
years plus 
to deliver)

Cabinet 
Member 
Community 
Engagement

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes 

The CAP aims to build relationships with 
Town and Parish Councils, and Voluntary 
and Community Organisations as key to 
achieving the district’s climate action 
targets. To help achieve this goal, the 
Climate Action Fund 2022 was launched 
in Q4 2021/22, and in Q1 2022/23 
received applications from 21 different 
organisations, highlighting  groups who are 
either at the start of their climate journey 
or already engaged in community action. 
The 13 successful projects will provide 
examples of good practice to inspire 
others, and will encourage more to apply 
for funding during the next round of grants 
launching in Q2 2022/23. 

OP2 Identify areas in our 
community that are 
most vulnerable to 
the effects of climate 
change to ensure 
they are properly 
supported and 
protected to promote 
wider community 
wellbeing

Update on the 
identification of areas 
most vulnerable to 
the effects of climate 
change and how the 
council has supported 
them to adapt to 
these changes, 
including through 
initiatives such as 
Better Housing Better 
Health

Long 
Term (2 
years plus 
to deliver)

Cabinet 
Member 
Corporate 
Services and 
Transformation

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

During Q1 2022/23, residents seeking cost 
of living crisis support continued to be 
signposted to Better Housing, Better Health 
via the council’s website and through 
information provided by the Community 
Connectors, as part of a range of available 
financial help and food provision.

OP3 Work with Oxfordshire 
County Council to 
support active and 
sustainable travel 
infrastructure 
initiatives 

Narrative update 
on progress toward 
completion of map, 
once map completed, 
this should transition 
to an annual review 
of the accuracy of 
map                                                                     

Short 
Term (1 
year)

Cabinet 
Member 
Corporate 
Services and 
Transformation

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

In Q1, Oxfordshire County Council has 
tendered for a consultant to develop a 
Strategic Active Travel Network and an 
appointment is due to be made by end of 
August 2022.

      41Theme 7 performance updates whitehorse.gov.uk/climateaction

P
age 180

https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/2/2022/02/South-Climate-Action-plan-2022-2024.pdf


Theme 7: Our partners - performance updates against reporting measures 

CAP ID Actions Reporting Measure Delivery 
Timescale

Cabinet 
Lead Officer Lead Performance Update

RAG rate 
progress 
against 
each 
measure

Comments on AMBER or 
RED ratings

OP4 Work with the 
Future Oxfordshire 
Partnership on a 
county-wide approach 
to reducing carbon 
emissions, building 
on the strategic vision 
and Pathways to Zero 
Carbon Oxfordshire

Update on progress 
on the Future 
Oxfordshire 
Partnership's county-
wide approach to 
reducing carbon 
emissions, including 
examples of projects 
and programmes that 
address the strategic 
vision and Pathways 
to Zero Carbon 
Oxfordshire

Short 
Term (1 
year)

Cabinet 
Member for 
Strategic 
Partnerships 
and Place

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

During Q1 2022/23, City Science were 
appointed to develop on the Pathways to 
Zero Carbon Oxfordshire (PaZCO) Part 2 
Routemap and have organised a series of 
five themeatic workshops which will be 
held in Q2. The workshops are designed to 
define the action plan. 

OP5 With Our partners, 
support the 
development of 
a coordinated 
retrofit programme 
for Oxfordshire 
through our role in 
the Environmental 
Advisory Group of the 
Future Oxfordshire 
Partnership

Narrative report on 
work influencing 
work, comms 
activity and direct 
engagement with 
residents.

Long 
Term (2 
years plus 
to deliver)

Cabinet 
Member 
Strategic 
Partnerships 
and Place

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

During Q1 2022/23, the council promoted 
an event held in Oxford Town Hall which 
was specifically designed to showcase 
retrofit options for homeowners which 
included talks by expert installers and 
options to vist homes that had installed 
measures. 

OP6 Support Registered 
Social Landlords in 
applying for retrofit 
funding, such as 
Social Housing 
Decarbonisation 
Funding 

Narrative update on 
engagement with 
Registered Social 
Landlords on retrofit 
funding

Long 
Term (2 
years plus 
to deliver)

Cabinet 
Member 
Healthy 
Communities

Head of 
Housing and 
Environment

The council remains to support any bids 
by the Registered Providers for retrofit 
funding or Social Housing Decarbonisation 
Funding.  No requests for support were 
recieved during Q1.  

The council is ready and 
available to assist if the 
Registered Providers 
decide to apply for the 
funding

      42Theme 7 performance updates whitehorse.gov.uk/climateaction

P
age 181

https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/2/2022/02/South-Climate-Action-plan-2022-2024.pdf


Theme 7: Our partners - performance updates against reporting measures 

CAP ID Actions Reporting Measure Delivery 
Timescale

Cabinet 
Lead Officer Lead Performance Update

RAG rate 
progress 
against 
each 
measure

Comments on AMBER or 
RED ratings

OP7 Use our membership 
of Oxfordshire Local 
Enterprise Partnership 
(OxLEP) to ensure 
rapid growth of the 
green economy 

Update on the 
council's influence in 
OxLEP to ensure rapid 
growth of the green 
economy, including 
examples of projects 
and programmes that 
address this work

Long 
Term (2 
years plus 
to deliver)

Cabinet 
Member for 
Strategic 
Partnerships 
and Place

Head of 
Development 
and Corporate 
Landlord

During Q1 2022/23 the Economic 
Development team have: 
Supported OxLEP to develop stakeholder 
and speaker contacts for a forthcoming 
event to be hosted at Harwell Campus, 
focusing on “What would need to happen 
to get every business in Oxfordshire to 
cut their carbon emissions in half by 
2030?” this event has been marketed to 
local businesses, and will be attended by 
EcDev Officers. The event will take place in 
September 2022; and 
Worked in partnership with OxLEP, 
Abindgon and Witney College, and 
Oxfordshire Greentech to develop an 
introductory event at the new Green 
Construction Centre (Abingdon and Witney 
College) that will lead onto more events 
across different specific topics/sectors 
related to Green Skills, with a specific focus 
on Retrofit. This event will take place in 
November 2022 and is funded through our 
partnership with Greentech. 
Consulted OxLEP on the Green Skills 
Development ambitions of our UK Shared 
Prosperity Fund investment plan. OxLEP 
have developed a proposal for this section 
of the plan, and are also liaising with the 
Greater South East Net Zero Hub to explore 
how a South East wide Retrofit Academy 
proposal might develop. 

      43Theme 7 performance updates whitehorse.gov.uk/climateaction

P
age 182

https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/2/2022/02/South-Climate-Action-plan-2022-2024.pdf


Theme 7: Our partners - performance updates against reporting measures 

CAP ID Actions Reporting Measure Delivery 
Timescale

Cabinet 
Lead Officer Lead Performance Update

RAG rate 
progress 
against 
each 
measure

Comments on AMBER or 
RED ratings

OP8 Support and influence 
the Oxfordshire Plan 
2050 ensuring climate 
considerations are 
integrated throughout 
the plan

Narrative report on 
work to support the 
Oxfordshire Plan 
in accordance with 
TCE3.7

Medium 
Term (2 
years)

Cabinet 
Member for 
Strategic 
Partnerships 
and Place

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

During Q1 the Council engaged in the 
development of the Oxfordshire Plan 
2050 through officer input and through 
the member Advisory Group meetings, 
which is chaired by Cllr Emily Smith and 
with Cllr Debby Hallett as the Vale's 
representative. This work included 
feedback on draft policies to ensure that 
climate considerations, as set out in the 
Oxfordshire Strategic Vision, are central to 
the emerging Oxfordshire Plan.

Many hours dedicated 
to the project in Q1, 
ultimately success 
depends on inter-
authority partnership 
working 

OP9 Utilise the opportunity 
of the Oxford to 
Cambridge Arc to 
advance corporate 
objectives around the 
Climate Emergency

Narrative update 
on the work of the 
Oxford-Cambridge arc 
and our influencing 
activity

Long 
Term (2 
years plus 
to deliver)

Cabinet 
Member for 
Strategic 
Partnerships 
and Place

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

No progress to report Q1 2022/2023 as 
central Government have produced no 
further outputs on the OxCam Arc Spatial 
Framework (which is paused as part of the 
Levelling Up agenda and may not be taken 
forward). 

Awaiting further news 
on future of the Arc

OP10 Support the Thames 
Valley Rivers network 
to meet their aims 
and use this group to 
facilitate and influence 
work cross party and 
cross boundary to 
end pollution in the 
river and promote the 
sustainable use and 
enjoyment of the River 
Thames

Update on work with 
the Thames Valley 
Rivers network, 
including case 
studies of projects 
and programmes 
that have been 
implemented to 
meet the aims of the 
network

Short 
Term (1 
year)

Cabinet 
Member 
Climate 
Emergency and 
Environment

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

During Q1, work continued on reviewing 
a one year forward plan for the Thames 
Valley Rivers Network, to drive forward 
its aims and progress its aspiration to 
attract a wider membership. During Q1 
scoping work also started on the Council's 
engagement in and communication 
around, World Rivers Day 2022 in Q2 (25 
Sept 2022).

      44Theme 7 performance updates whitehorse.gov.uk/climateaction

P
age 183

https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/2/2022/02/South-Climate-Action-plan-2022-2024.pdf


Theme 7: Our partners - performance updates against reporting measures 

CAP ID Actions Reporting Measure Delivery 
Timescale

Cabinet 
Lead Officer Lead Performance Update

RAG rate 
progress 
against 
each 
measure

Comments on AMBER or 
RED ratings

OP11 Engagement across 
the energy sector 
on activity required 
to move to carbon 
neutral and work 
with them to tackle 
the challenge of grid 
capacity, time of day 
demand and energy 
infrastructure 

Update on 
engagement with the 
energy sector and 
examples of work 
with them to tackle 
the challenge of grid 
capacity, time of day 
demand and energy 
infrastructure

Medium 
Term (2 
years)

Cabinet 
Member 
Corporate 
Services and 
Transformation

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

No progress to report Q1 2022/23.

OP12 Partner with Good 
Food Oxfordshire 
to support their 
Good Food Strategy 
for Oxfordshire, 
ensuring climate 
considerations are 
included throughout 
the strategy

Update on the 
development of 
the Good Food 
Strategy for 
Oxfordshire, including 
examples of climate 
considerations

Medium 
Term (2 
years)

Cabinet 
Member 
Corporate 
Services and 
Transformation

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

Work on Part one of the Good Food 
Oxfordshire Strategy concluded in Q1, 
with the Strategy going to Cabinet in Q2 
2022/23.

      45Theme 7 performance updates whitehorse.gov.uk/climateaction

P
age 184

https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/2/2022/02/South-Climate-Action-plan-2022-2024.pdf


Cabinet Report 

 

Report of Head of Finance 

Author: Emma Creed 

Telephone: 01235 422498 

Textphone: 18001 01235 422498 

E-mail: emma.creed@southandvale.gov.uk  

Wards affected: All 

 

Cabinet member responsible: Andrew Crawford 

Tel: Tel:   01235 772134 

E-mail: Andy.crawford@whitehorsedc.gov.uk  

To: CABINET 

Date: 30 September 2022 

 

 

Budget monitoring April 2022 – June 2022 

Recommendation 

Cabinet is recommended to note the contents of the report 

 

Purpose of Report 

1. To report the revenue and capital expenditure against budget for the period April 2022 
to June 2022 and the latest year end outturns forecast by heads of service.  

Corporate Objectives  

2. The allocation of financial resources within the revenue and capital budgets needs to 
match the objectives agreed by the council.  The budget monitoring report shows how 
these resources have been allocated during the first three months of the financial year. 

Background 

3. This report reviews the council’s revenue and capital expenditure performance to the 
end of month three (June). Year-end outturn forecasts were worked on during July and 
are based on heads of service’s best knowledge at this time. 

Revenue budget monitoring 

4. On 16 February 2022, Council agreed a net revenue budget for 2022/23 of £15.380 
million.  This has subsequently increased to £16.887 million.  This reflects the carry 
forward of unspent one-off project budgets from 2021/22. 

Page 185

Agenda Item 14

mailto:emma.creed@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:Andy.crawford@whitehorsedc.gov.uk


5. Table 1 below shows, summarised at service level, both the revenue position as at the 
end of June 2022 and the forecast position at year end. 

Table 1: Revenue budget monitoring position as at June 2022 

 

6. The forecast variance is further broken down in table 2 below. 

Table 2: summary of forecast major variances against revenue budget 

 

Budgets forecast to be carried forward to 2023/24 

7. As shown in table 2, of the £0.84 million forecast variance to budget, £0.16 million 
represents slippage in one-off budgets.  These will be requested as carry forwards at 
the end of the financial year.  These carry forwards are shown in appendix 1. 

Employee costs 

8. Employee costs are forecast to be underspent by £180,000, not yet enough to cover 
the £625,000 managed vacancy factor set at the beginning of the year, giving a net 
overspend of £445,000 

9. Strategic management had a number of vacancies during quarter1, some costs of 
which have been offset through the use of consultants. 

Page 186



10. Corporate services is predicting an underspend mainly as a result of vacancies that are 
not anticipated to be filled by the end of the year. 

11. In Planning, employee costs are expected to overspend by £131,000.  This however 
needs to be seen in the context of income also being above budget (highlighted below), 
reflecting additional workload.   

12. Policy & programmes is expected to be underspent by £104,000 at year end.  A review 
of team structures is to be carried out. 

Service department variances over £50,000 

13. Excluding carry forwards to 2023/24, grant income to be transferred to reserves and 
employee cost variances, net revenue expenditure is forecast to be £586,000 
overspent against budget. 

14. The significant forecast variations from budget are shown in table 2 above and are 
explained below. 

Development and Corporate Landlord 

15. Utilities budgets including those recharged from South Oxfordshire are expected to be 
inadequate due to the soaring cost of fuel.  It is expected that there will be a £325,000 
overspend on these budgets broken down as follows; Facilities £139,000, Property 
£86,000, Beacon £56,000, Car Parks and toilets £44,000  

16. Use of council car parks has increased since the ending of pandemic restrictions, 
however we are still not seeing usage back to pre-pandemic levels.  It is predicted that 
there will be a £52,000 adverse variance on car parking income. 

17. The grounds team are currently leasing vehicles until vehicles can be purchased.  
There is no budget for this, and we expect to spend £131,000 during the year on these 
vehicles and their associated fuel. 

18. Recharges from South Oxfordshire relating to staff costs (which were budgeted to be 
charged to Capital) are forecast to be £173,000 overbudget)      

Finance 

19. Claimants are moving to universal credit, which has resulted in a reduction of housing 
benefit.  There is forecast to be an underspend of £425,000 because of this. 

20. Bank charges are forecast to be over budget by £100,000.  A new contract is in place 
as of 31 August 2022 which will mitigate further overspends on this budget. 

Housing and Environment 

21. Homelessness costs are expected to be £104,000 over budget.  Higher hotel 
placements and lower rental income as a result of one hostel being closed for 
refurbishment have contributed to this overspend. 

22. Waste contract costs are expected to be over budget by £338,000.  Indexation on the 
waste contract was underestimated when the budget was set and will be inadequate to 
cover actual costs this year.  Contractual indexation is based on a number of factors, 

Page 187



some of which, such as fuel, have been subject to significant price increases in recent 
months. 

Planning 

23. As identified above, planning income is above budget by £199,000 due to major 
development applications being received.   

Capital budget monitoring 

24. On 16 February 2022, Council agreed a capital programme for 2022/23 of £6.749 
million. 

25. As shown in appendix 3, at the end of June 2022, the capital programme had 
increased to £18.159 million.  The increase is due to unspent budgets carried forward 
from 2021/22.  Total capital expenditure to the end of June totalled just over £0.8 
million.   

26. Capital budgets will be reviewed in the coming months to ensure that project spend is 
more accurately profiled. 

Financial, legal and other implications  

27. The financial implications are as set out in the body of the report.  There are no other 
implications of this report. 

Conclusion 

28. At this stage of the financial year, for revenue an overspend is forecast.  On capital, 
expenditure was under budget as at the end of June and an underspend is anticipated 
for the year. 

 
 

Appendices 

1) Revenue budget monitoring – carry forwards 
2) Capital budget monitoring - summary  

 
 

Background Papers 

 Budget papers for 2022/23 

 

 

Page 188



VALE revenue budget monitoring - June 2022 Appendix 1

Proposed carry forwards £

Legal and democratic
Domestic abuse support grant 35,196

Policy and programmes
Dalton barracks garden village 155,641

Total carry forwards 190,837

Page 189



Capital VALE
Original Budget 

Full Year                            
£

Working Budget 
Full Year                                  

£

Actual Spend to 
date                                            

£
Variance

Forecast variance Manual 
input required                (+ve 

bad, -ve good)

Explanation of forecast variances >£50,000 Manual 
input required

Corporate Services - Capital 0 82,000 0 (82,000) 0

Development & Corporate Landlord - 
Capital

0 3,921,000 482,671 (3,438,329) 0

Finance - Capital 0 3,091,000 0 (3,091,000) 0

Housing & Environment - Capital 0 10,117,000 394,984 (9,722,017) 0

Legal Services - Capital 0 193,000 (600) (193,600) 0

Policy & Programmes - Capital 0 94,758 0 (94,758) (94,000)
s106 funding for public art no longer required as 
funding given directly to parishes to commission art 

Capital Contingency 0 660,000 0 (660,000) 0

Direct Service Capital Expenditure 0 18,158,758 877,054 (17,281,704) (94,000)

S:\Budget Monitoring\2022-23\Vale\3. June 2022\1. VALE capital budget monitoring June 2022

P
age 190



 

  

 

Joint Audit and Governance 

Committee  

 

 
Report of Head of Finance 

Author: Donna Ross 

Telephone: 07917 088335 

Textphone: 18001 07917 088335 

E-mail: donna.ross@southandvale.gov.uk 

SODC cabinet member responsible for Finance:  Councillor Leigh Rawlins 
Telephone:  01189 722565 
Email:  leigh.rawlins@southoxon.gov.uk 
 
VWHDC cabinet member responsible for Finance:  Councillor Andrew Crawford 
Telephone:  01235 772134 
Email:  andy.crawford@whitehorsedc.gov.uk 
 

To: Joint Audit and Governance Committee, Cabinet and Council 

DATE: 27 September 2022 by Joint Audit and Governance Committee 

            29 September 2022 (S) / 30 September 2022 (V) by Cabinet 

            13 October 2022 (S) / 12 October 2022 (V) by Council 

 

 

Treasury Outturn 2021/22 

  

Recommendations 

That Joint Audit and Governance Committee: 

1.  notes the treasury management outturn report 2021/22,  

2.  is satisfied that the treasury activities are carried out in accordance with the 
treasury management strategy and policy, and 

3.  make any comments and recommendations to Cabinets as necessary.  

That Cabinet: 

Considers any comments from Joint Audit and Governance Committee and 
recommends Council to: 

1. approve the treasury management outturn report for 2021/22; 

2. approve the actual 2021/22 prudential indicators within the report. 

Page 191

Agenda Item 15

mailto:donna.ross@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:leigh.rawlins@southoxon.gov.uk
mailto:andy.crawford@whitehorsedc.gov.uk


 

  

 

Purpose of report 

1. This report fulfils the legislative requirements to ensure the adequate monitoring 
and reporting of the treasury management activities and that the councils’ 
prudential indicators are reported to the councils at the end of the year.  The report 
provides details of the treasury activities for the financial year 2021/22. 

2. This complies with the requirements of the Chartered Institute of Public Finance 
and Accountancy (CIPFA’s) Code of Practice on Treasury Management. 

Strategic objectives 

3. Effective treasury management is required to help the councils meet their strategic 
objectives. 

 
Background 

4. The councils’ treasury activities are strictly regulated by legislation.  The CIPFA 
Prudential Code and CIPFA Treasury Management Code of Practice require a 
report to be provided to the councils at the end of the financial year.   

5. This report provides details on the treasury activity and performance for 2021/22 
against prudential indicators and benchmarks set for the year in the 2021/22 
Treasury Management Strategy (TMS), approved by each council in February 
2021.  Each council is required to approve this report. 

6. Link Asset Services are the councils’ retained treasury advisors.   

7. There are three types of investment, the performance of which is covered in this 
report 

a. True treasury investments – these are investments for the management of 
temporary cashflow balances. These include loans to other local authorities, 
or approved financial institutions. It also includes longer-term investments in 
externally managed pooled funds such as CCLA Property Fund. 

b. Non-treasury loans – these are loans to third parties, which earn a return, 
but they do not fall under the strict definition of a treasury investment.   

c. Direct property investments - both councils have investment properties let 
on commercial basis. The primary purpose of holding these assets is for 
investment purposes and they are not part of regeneration schemes.      

8. The councils continue to invest with regard for security, liquidity and yield, in that 
order. 

 

Economic conditions and factors effecting investment returns 
during 2021/22 

9. At the start of the financial year UK Bank Base Rate was held at 0.10 per cent and 
remained unchanged until December 2021 when The Bank of England raised the 
rate to 0.25 per cent. There were further increases of 0.25 percent in February and 

Page 192



 

  

 

March 2022 with Base Rate reaching 0.75 per cent by year-end.  [At the time of 
writing (August 2022) rates have increased further to 1.75 per cent.]   

10. Link Asset Services provide a regular forecast of interest rates, the latest forecast 
is reproduced in appendix A.  This forecast shows that Base Rate is expected to 
peak at 2.9 per cent in June 2023 before falling back to 2.25 per cent around 
March 2024 and remain at that level for the next 12 months.  Labour shortages, 
commodity price inflation, the impact of Russia’s invasion of Ukraine and 
subsequent Western sanctions all point to inflation remaining at elevated levels 
well into 2023. 

11. The Treasury Management Strategy makes clear that investment priority is given 
to the security of principal in the first instance.  As a result, investments have only 
been made with counterparties of high credit quality and relatively low risk.  

12. In line with the budget forecast, short-term investment returns remained close to 
zero for the first half of the financial year. The expectation for interest rates within 
the treasury management strategy for 2021/22 was that Bank Rate would remain 
at 0.1 per cent until it was clear to the Bank of England that the emergency level of 
rates introduced at the start of the Covid-19 pandemic were no longer necessary. 
 

13. The Bank of England and the Government also maintained various monetary and 
fiscal measures, supplying the banking system and the economy with massive 
amounts of cheap credit so that banks could help cash-starved businesses to 
survive the various lockdowns/negative impact on their cashflow. The Government 
also supplied huge amounts of finance to local authorities to pass on to 
businesses.  This meant that for most of the year there was much more liquidity in 
financial markets than there was demand to borrow, with the consequent effect 
that investment earnings rates remained low until towards the turn of the year 
when inflation concerns indicated central banks, not just the Bank of England, 
would need to lift interest rates to combat the growing levels of inflation.  

14. The rises in Base Rate from December 2021 allowed both councils to place 
deposits at above budgeted interest rates during the last quarter of the financial 
year and generate investment returns above the budget forecasts. 

 

Summary of investment activities during 2021/22 

15. Prudential limits (security).  Both councils are required by the Prudential Code to 
report on the limits set each year in the TMS.  The purpose of these limits is to 
ensure that the activity of the treasury function remains within certain parameters, 
thereby mitigating risk and reducing the impact of an adverse movement in interest 
rates.  However, if these limits are set to be too restrictive, they may impair the 
opportunities to reduce costs/improve performance.  These limits are shown in 
appendix B. 

16. Yield - the performance of the two councils is summarised in the tables below.   

Page 193



 

  

 

 

 

17. Both South and Vale exceeded treasury budgeted investment income this year in 
terms of actual income against budget and rates of return against benchmark on 
their in-house managed portfolios.  This was predominantly a result of deposits 
that matured in the last quarter of the financial year being reinvested at slightly 
higher rates than predicted. More detail on benchmarks is included in the 
appendices that follow this report.  

18. Detailed reports on the treasury activities for each council and performance for 
2021/22 against prudential indicators and benchmarks set for the year are 
contained in appendix C – South Oxfordshire DC and appendix D – Vale of White 
Horse DC.   

19. A detailed list of both councils’ treasury investments as at 31 March 2022 is shown 
in appendix E. 

Debt activity during 2021/22 

20. During 2021/22, there has not been a need for either council to borrow and both 
councils continue to take a prudent approach to their debt strategy.  The prudential 
indicators and limits set out in appendix B provide the scope and flexibility for the 
council to borrow in the short-term, if such a need arose, for cash flow purposes to 
support the council(s) in the achievement of their service objectives.   

Climate and ecological impact implications 

21. There are no climate or ecological implications arising from this report, however 
the Council can make significant impact via future investment opportunities and 
operational changes.  Numerous changes have already been made to ensure that 
climate is a key consideration in key documents and processes (such as the 
procurement strategy), and this will become more evident in future decision 
making.  As opportunities to support the climate ambitions of the Councils arise, 
they will be considered and appropriately weighted to include any climate or 
ecological impacts. 

Financial implications 

22. The treasury investments arranged in 2021/22 generated just under £2 million of 
investment income for South during the year and over £700,000 for Vale.  Income 

South Treasury 

investments 

£000

Non treasury 

loan

    £000

Sub Total £000 Property 

investment 

£000

Overall total 

£000

1 Average investment balance 174,907 15,000 189,907 8,012 197,918 

2 Budgeted investment income 1,224 623 1,847 

3 Actual investment income 1,375 623 1,998 490 2,488 

4 surplus/(deficit)  (3) - (2) 151 0 151 

5 Rate of return  (3) ÷ (1) 0.79% 4.15% 1.05% 6.11% 1.26%

Vale Treasury 

investments 

£000

Property 

investment      

£000

Overall total 

£000

1 Average investment balance 145,589 5,091 150,680 

2 Budgeted investment income 558 

3 Actual investment income 744 286 1,030 

4 surplus/(deficit)  (3) - (2) 187 

5 Rate of return  (3) ÷ (1) 0.51% 5.62% 0.68%

Page 194



 

  

 

earned from investments supports the councils’ medium term financial plans and 
contributes to the councils’ balances or supports the in-year expenditure 
programmes.    

Legal implications 

23. There are no significant legal implications.  Compliance with the CIPFA Code of 
Practice for Treasury Management in the Public Services and the MHCLG Local 
Government Investment Guidance provides assurance that the councils’ 
investments are, and will continue to be, within their legal powers. 

Conclusion 

24. Despite a difficult operating environment, both councils continued to make 
investments during 2021/22 that maintained security and liquidity whilst providing a 
return that mostly exceeded market benchmarks.     

Background papers 

 Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accounting (CIPFA) code of practice 
for treasury management in the public sector. 

 DCLG Local Government Investment Guidance 

 CIPFA treasury management in the public services code of practice and cross 
sectoral guidance notes 

 Treasury Management Strategy 2021/22 – Councils in February 2021. 
 

Appendices 

A. Interest rate forecasts 
B. Prudential limits  
C. SODC – Treasury activities 2021/22 
D. VWHDC – Treasury activities 2021/22  
E. Treasury investments as at 31 March 2022 
F. Glossary of terms 
         

Page 195



  Appendix A 

 
Link Group Interest Rate Forecasts 
 
 

 
 
Forecasts as at 09/08/2022 

Sep-22 Dec-22 Mar-23 Jun-23 Sep-23 Dec-23 Mar-24 Jun-24 Sep-24 Dec-24 Mar-25

BANK RATE 2.25 2.50 2.75 2.75 2.75 2.50 2.50 2.25 2.25 2.25 2.25

3 month ave earnings 2.50 2.80 3.00 3.00 2.80 2.50 2.40 2.30 2.30 2.30 2.20

6 month ave earnings 2.90 3.10 3.10 3.10 2.90 2.80 2.70 2.60 2.50 2.50 2.40

12 month ave earnings 3.20 3.30 3.20 3.10 3.00 2.90 2.80 2.70 2.40 2.40 2.40

5 yr PWLB 2.80 3.00 3.10 3.10 3.00 3.00 2.90 2.90 2.80 2.80 2.80

10 yr PWLB 3.00 3.20 3.30 3.30 3.20 3.10 3.10 3.00 3.00 3.00 2.90

25 yr PWLB 3.40 3.50 3.50 3.50 3.50 3.40 3.40 3.30 3.30 3.20 3.20

50 yr PWLB 3.10 3.20 3.20 3.20 3.20 3.10 3.10 3.00 3.00 2.90 2.90

P
age 196



  Appendix B 
Prudential limits (indicators) as at March 2022 

 

Prudential indicators as at 31 March 2022           

   Vale South 

        

   

Original 
estimate 

Actual 
position 

Original 
estimate 

Actual 
position 

   £m £m £m £m 

Authorised limit for external debt       

Borrowing  30 0 30 0 

Other long-term liabilities  0 0 0 0 

   30 0 30 0 

        

Operational boundary for external debt       

Borrowing  25 0 25 0 

Other long-term liabilities  0 0 0 0 

   25 0 25 0 

Investments       
 
Interest rate exposures       

Limits on fixed interest rates %  100% 82% 100% 77% 

Limits on variable interest rates £k  50 27 50 46 
 
Maximum principal sums invested > 364 days      

Upper limit for principal sums invested > 364 days £k 40 26 70 36 
 
Limit to be placed on investments to maturity       

1 - 2 years  NA NA NA NA 

2 - 5 years  NA NA NA NA 

5 years +  NA NA NA NA 

            

 
 
Prudential indicators – explanatory note 
 
Debt 
 
There are two limits on external debt: the ‘Operational Boundary’ and the ‘Authorised 
Limit’.   Both are consistent with the current commitments, existing plans and the 
proposals in the budget report for capital expenditure and financing, and with approved 
treasury management policy statement and practices.  They are both based on 
estimates of most likely, but not worst case, scenario.   

The key difference is that the Authorised Limit cannot be breached without prior 
approval of the Council.  It therefore includes more headroom to take account of 
eventualities such as delays in generating capital receipts, forward borrowing to take 
advantage of attractive interest rates, use of borrowing in place of operational leasing, 
“invest to save” projects, occasional short-term borrowing to cover temporary revenue 
cash flow shortfalls as well as an assessment of risks involved in managing cash flows.   

The Operational Boundary is a more realistic indicator of the likely position. 

 
Interest rate exposures 
 
The maximum proportion of interest on borrowing which is subject to fixed/variable rate 
of interest. 

Page 197



  Appendix B 
 
 
Investments 
 
Interest rate exposure 
 
The purpose of these indicators is to set ranges that will limit exposure to interest rate 
movement. The indicator required by the Treasury Management Code considers the net 
position of borrowing and investment and is based on principal sums outstanding. 
 
Principal sums invested 
 
This indicator sets a limit on the level of investments that can be made for more than 
364 days. 

Page 198



Appendix C 

 
1 

 

          

SODC treasury activities in 2021/22 

Council treasury investments as at 31 March 2022 
 

1. The council’s treasury investments, analysed by maturity as at 31 March 2022 were 
as follows:  

 

   

 
 

 

2. The majority of the funds invested were held in the form of fixed interest rate and 
term cash deposits. These provide some certainty over the investment return.  

3. The investment profile is organised to ensure sufficient liquidity for revenue and 
capital activities, security of investments and to manage risks within all treasury 
management activities. 

4. The chart below shows in percentage terms the portfolio above analysed by 
counterparty type: 

£000 % holding

Call 509 0%

Money market fund 25,090 13%

Cash available within 1 week 25,599 13%

Up to 3 months 18,500 9%  

4-6 months 45,500 23%  

6 months to 1 year 69,500 36%

Over 1 year 16,000 8%

Total cash deposits 175,099 89%  

CCLA Property Fund 7,603 4%

Unit Trust 12,425 6%

Total investments 195,126 100%

Table 1: Maturity structure of investments at 31 March 2022

Page 199



Appendix C 

 
2 

 

 

 
Treasury investment income  

 
5. The total income earned on investments during 2021/22 was £1.99 million, 

compared to the original budget of £1.85 million, as shown in table 2 below: 

 

 
6. The actual return achieved was £152,000 more than the original budget. This was 

principally due to: 

 Interest earned on cash deposits being £95,000 higher than forecast in the 
2021/22 budget due to higher than forecast cash balances and an increase 
in UK interest rates.  

 Dividends accumulated by the Unit Trust were £83,000 above budget due to 
an improvement in the FTSE All-Share Index during 2021/22. The Unit Trust 
objective is to provide growth by investing in shares that closely track the 
performance of the Index. 
 

 Dividends received on the CCLA Property Fund were £26,000 less than 
forecast. However, the reduction in dividends was more than matched by 
capital growth with the Fund’s unit price increasing by 17.6 per cent. 
 

Table 2:  Investment interest earned by investment type

Annual Actual Variation

Investment type Budget Interest

£000 £000 £000

Fixed deposits and Short-term liquidity accounts 1,171 1,266 95

Unit Trust 388 471 83

CCLA property fund 288 262 (26)

1,847 1,999 152

Page 200



Appendix C 

 
3 

 

7. The actual average rate of return on internally managed treasury deposits for the 
year was 1.14 per cent (0.83 per cent in 2021/22). 

 Performance measurement 

8. A list of treasury investments as at 31 March 2022 is shown in appendix E.  All 
investments were with approved counterparties.  The average level of 
investments held was £175 million. Table 3 below shows in summary the 
performance of the council’s treasury investments against the benchmarks set out 
in the Treasury Management Strategy.  These benchmarks are used to assess 
and monitor the council’s treasury investment performance for each type of 
investment. 

9. The £175 million does not represent the council’s usable, cash backed reserves, 
which at 31 March 2022 totalled £144 million including capital grants received in 
advance of spend.  The difference represents the council’s working capital 
balance and timings of cashflows. 

Note: the benchmark return for unit trusts and CCLA includes the movement in 
capital value.  All other benchmarks reflect earnings of treasury investment 
income.   

 
10. Daily cashflow balances are managed in-house with the portfolio of fixed-term 

deposits, call accounts and money market fund balances benchmarked against 
the three-month SONIA rate, which was an average of 0.24 per cent for 2021/22.  
The performance for the year of 0.81 per cent exceeded the benchmark by 0.57 
per cent.   

11. The CCLA property fund initial principal investment of £5 million (March 2013) 
increased in value during 2021/22 from £6.5 million to £7.6 million.  Dividends 
received in the year totalled £0.26 million. Both the capital appreciation and the 
interest earned are included in the performance of 21.78 per cent achieved 
above.  The capital gain is however not realised and so for comparison purposes, 
the actual rate of return of income received during the year is 3.8 per cent 
compared with the Fund’s benchmark income return of 3.3 per cent.  

 

 

Table 3: Treasury investment returns achieved against benchmark   

   

Benchmark 
Return 

Actual 
Return 

Growth 
(Below)/ 
above 

Benchmark Benchmarks 

        
Deposits & Short-term 
liquidity funds – internally 

managed  

0.24% 0.81% 0.57% 3mth SONIA 

Unit Trust *  13.07% 12.88% (0.19%) 
FTSE All Shares 

Index 
        

Property Fund * 
 

22.52% 21.78% (0.74%) 
IPD balanced property 

unit trust index 
* Returns include income and 
capital growth         

Page 201



Appendix C 

 
4 

 

Equities  

12. The council’s holdings with the Legal & General (L&G) UK Index Trust were 
purchased in 2000/01 at an initial cost of £10 million.  This is an authorised unit 
trust incorporated in the United Kingdom and regulated by the FSA.  The trust’s 
objective is to provide growth by tracking the capital performance of the UK equity 
market as represented by the FTSE All-Share index.  

13. The index is comprised of shares in all eligible companies listed on the London 
Stock Exchange’s main market. The Fund seeks to replicate as closely as 
possible the constituents of the benchmark index, by holding all, or substantially 
all, of the assets comprising the FTSE All-Share Index in similar proportions to 
their index weightings.  It may also hold shares in companies which are 
reasonably expected to become part of the Benchmark index in the near future. At 
31March 2022 the UK Index Trust Fund comprised 613 holdings. 

14. The Fund performance as shown in Table 3 is comprised of income and capital 
growth. The capital growth performance is based on volatile market values and is 
unrealised.  The price of units in the fund ranged from 319.3p per unit at the start 
of the financial year to a high of 364.1p per unit on 10 February 2022.   

15. The chart below shows the performance of the Unit Trust during 2021/22 

 

 

16. In line with the council’s policy, in January 2022 units valued at £2 million were 
sold in order to realise some of the Fund’s capital growth when its value exceeded 
£14 million. (Fund value 31/12/2021 = £14.255 million).  The price of the Units 
sold was £360.1p.  The All-Share Index fell a week later, and the Fund value 
dropped to a low price of £326.2p per unit on 7 March 2022 before recovering to 
end the financial year at a unit price of £360.6p. 

Page 202



Appendix C 

 
5 

 

17. The Fund invests in UK companies and aims to replicate the FTSE All Share with 
returns broadly in line with the performance of the Index.  The constituents of the 
Fund will not always exactly match the Index and therefore performance may be 
positively or negatively impacted by the constituent and weighting variations and 
other factors such as trading costs for example. 

18. The performance of the fund over the past five years compared to the benchmark 
index is summarised in table 4 below. 

 

19. The council holds accumulation units where income attributable to the unit class 
is automatically reinvested in the in the Fund and is reflected in the price of each 
accumulation unit, rather than being distributed to unit holders. Consequently, no 
cash distribution payments were received during the year.  Officers monitor the 
performance of the unit trust holding on a regular basis.   

  

Non-treasury investment loan 

20. During 2013/14, the council entered into a secured loan agreement with SOHA to 
enable them to finance affordable housing schemes.  The Council lent £15 million 
over 20 years at a fixed rate of 4.15 per cent.  Interest is paid quarterly and during 
2021/22, the council received £0.6 million.  

Land and property 

21. The Council holds a portfolio of investment properties, which includes land, 
depots, garages, and shops that are let on a commercial basis. These assets are 
valued on an annual basis and had average net book value of £8 million during 
2021/22 (£7.9 million 2020/21).  Income generated was £0.49 million in 2021/22 
(£0.32 million in 2020/21) giving a gross rate of return of 6.11 per cent.   

22. Due to movement in property values and the exclusion of whole life costs, these 
rates of return should not be taken as a direct comparison with the performance of 
other classes of investment. 

Liquidity and yield 

23. The council uses short-term investments to meet daily cash-flow requirements 
and aims to invest a proportion of the portfolio in longer-term instruments where 
possible.   

24. The average daily balance held in short-term notice accounts during 2021-22 was 
£23.6million.  

Table 4: Unit Trust returns achieved against benchmark

 

12 months to 31 March 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

% % % % % 

L&G UK Index Trust 12.88 27.63 -18.84 5.87 1.36

Index 13.07 28.77 -19.06 6.01 1.29

Relative to Index -0.19 -1.14 0.22 -0.14 0.07

Page 203



Appendix D 

 
1 

 

VWHDC detailed treasury performance in 2021/22 

Council treasury investments as at 31 March 2022 
 
1. The council’s treasury investments analysed by age as at 31 March 2022 

 were as follows:  
 

Table 1: maturity structure of investments at 31 March 2022: 

        

  £000 % holding   

Money market fund 16,500  11%   

Cash available within 1 week 16,500  11%   

Up to 3 months 30,500  20%     

5-6 months 27,000  17%   

6 months to 1 year 55,500  36%   

Over 1 year 23,000  15%   

      

Total cash deposits 152,500  98%   
      

CCLA Property Fund 3,041  2%   
      

Total investments 155,541  100%   

 
 
 
2. The majority of the funds invested were held in the form of fixed interest rate and 

term cash deposits. These provide some certainty over the investment return.   

3. The investment profile is organised to ensure sufficient liquidity for revenue and 
capital activities, security of investments and to manage risks within all treasury 
management activities. 

4. The chart below shows in percentage terms how the portfolio above is spread 
across investment types: 

 

Banks - fixed deposits
£36,000

23%

Building societies -
fixed deposits

£46,000
29%

Local 
authorities
£31,000…

Housing Associations
£23,000

15%

Money Market 
Funds £16,500…

CCLA Property Fund
£3,041

2%

Portfolio Analysis (£000)

Page 204



Appendix D 

 
2 

 

 

Treasury investment income 

5. The total interest earned on treasury investments during 2021/22 was £0.74 million 
compared to the original budget estimate of £0.56 million as shown in table 2 
below: 

Table 2: Investment interest earned by investment type   

     

   Annual  Actual Variation 

Investment type  Budget Interest   

   £000 £000 £000 

Fixed term and call                 471  644  
               

173  

CCLA Property Fund                   87  100  
                  

13  

Total Interest   558  744  186  

 
6. The actual rate of return achieved was £0.19 million higher than the original 

budget. This was primarily due to average balances throughout the year remaining 
higher than forecast.  

7. The actual average rate of return on internally managed treasury deposits for the 
year was 0.45 per cent. 
 

Performance measurement 

8. A list of treasury investments as at 31 March 2022 is shown in appendix E. All 
investments were with approved counterparties. The average level of investments 
held was £146 million.  Table 3 below shows in summary the performance of the 
council’s treasury investments against the benchmarks set out in the Treasury 
Management Strategy. These benchmarks are used to assess and monitor the 
council’s treasury investment performance for each type of investment. 

9. The £146 million does not represent the council’s usable cash backed reserves, 
which at 31 March 2022 totalled £55 million including capital grants received in 
advance of spend.  The difference represents the council’s working capital balance 
and timing of cashflows.  

 

Table 3: Treasury investment returns achieved against benchmark 

  
Benchmark 

return 
Actual 
return 

Growth 
(below)/above 

Benchmark Benchmarks 
       

Bank & Building Society 
deposits - internally managed 

0.24% 0.51% 0.27% 3 Month SONIA 

Property related funds (CCLA)* 22.52% 21.78% (0.74%) 

IPD balanced 
property unit trust 

index 

* Returns include income and capital growth       

Page 205



Appendix D 

 
3 

 

 

 

10. Daily cashflow balances are managed in-house with the portfolio of fixed-term 
deposits, call accounts and money market fund balances benchmarked against the 
three-month SONIA rate, which was an average of 0.24 per cent for 2021/22.  The 
performance for the year of 0.51 per cent exceeded the benchmark by 0.27 per 
cent.   

11. The CCLA property fund initial principal investment of £2 million (April 2013) 
increased in value during 2021/22 from £2.6 million to £3 million.  Dividends 
received in the year totalled £0.1 million. Both the capital appreciation and the 
interest earned are included in the performance of 21.78 per cent achieved above.  
The capital gain is however not realised and so for comparison purposes, the 
actual rate of return of income received during the year is 3.8 per cent compared 
with the Fund’s benchmark income return of 3.3 per cent. 

 

Land and Property 

12. The council holds a portfolio of investment properties, which includes land, offices 
and shops that are let on a commercial basis.  These assets are valued on an 
annual basis and had an average net book value of £5.1 million during 2021/22 
(£5.7 million as at 31 March 2021).  Income generated was £0.3 million (£0.2 
million in 2020/21).  This is equivalent to a gross return of 5.62 per cent. 

13. Due to movement in property values and the exclusion of whole life costs, these 
rates of return should not be taken as a direct comparison with other classes of 
investment. 

Liquidity and yield 
 

14. The council uses short-term investments to meet daily cash-flow requirements and 
also aims to invest a proportion of the portfolio in longer-term instruments where 
possible.   
 

15. The average daily balance held in short-term notice accounts during 2021-22 was 
£31 million. 

 
 

 

 
 
 

Page 206



   Appendix E 
South Oxfordshire District Council investments as at 31 March 2022   
Counterparty Deposit Type Maturity Date Principal  Rate 

National Counties Building Society Fixed Apr-22 2,500,000  0.35% 
Thurrock BC Fixed Apr-22 5,000,000  0.40% 
Thurrock BC Fixed Apr-22 3,000,000  0.30% 
National Counties Building Society Fixed Apr-22 1,000,000  0.33% 
Thurrock BC Fixed May-22 5,000,000  0.40% 
National Counties Building Society Fixed Jun-22 2,000,000  0.33% 
Monmouthshire Building Society Fixed Jul-22 1,000,000  0.15% 
Progressive Building Society Fixed Jul-22 2,500,000  0.16% 
Principality Building Society Fixed Aug-22 2,000,000  0.15% 
Monmouthshire Building Society Fixed Aug-22 2,000,000  0.15% 
Principality Building Society Fixed Aug-22 1,500,000  0.15% 
Principality Building Society Fixed Aug-22 2,000,000  0.15% 
Monmouthshire Building Society Fixed Aug-22 2,000,000  0.15% 
Furness Building Society Fixed Aug-22 2,000,000  0.30% 
Thurrock BC Fixed Aug-22 3,500,000  0.20% 
Newcastle Building Society Fixed Aug-22 2,000,000  0.18% 
Newcastle Building Society Fixed Aug-22 2,000,000  0.18% 
Surrey Heath BC Fixed Aug-22 3,000,000  0.16% 
Furness Building Society Fixed Sep-22 2,000,000  0.30% 
Goldman Sachs International Bank Fixed Sep-22 2,000,000  0.38% 
National Bank of Kuwait Fixed Sep-22 3,000,000  0.22% 
Monmouthshire Building Society Fixed Sep-22 3,000,000  0.15% 
Nottingham Building Society Fixed Sep-22 3,000,000  0.15% 
Furness Building Society Fixed Sep-22 2,000,000  0.30% 
Nottingham Building Society Fixed Sep-22 2,000,000  0.15% 
Cambridge BS Fixed Sep-22 3,000,000  0.25% 
Principality Building Society Fixed Oct-22 3,000,000  0.23% 
Progressive Building Society Fixed Oct-22 1,000,000  0.35% 
Progressive Building Society Fixed Oct-22 2,000,000  0.35% 
Goldman Sachs International Bank Fixed Oct-22 4,000,000  0.82% 
Saffron Building Society Fixed Nov-22 2,000,000  0.35% 
Saffron Building Society Fixed Nov-22 1,000,000  0.35% 
National Counties Building Society Fixed Nov-22 3,000,000  0.50% 
Skipton Building Society Fixed Nov-22 3,000,000  0.20% 
Furness Building Society Fixed Nov-22 3,000,000  0.50% 
Monmouthshire Building Society Fixed Nov-22 1,000,000  0.40% 
West Bromwich Building Society Fixed Nov-22 4,000,000  0.28% 
Saffron Building Society Fixed Dec-22 3,000,000  0.40% 
Blaenau Gwent CBC Fixed Dec-22 3,000,000  0.18% 
Blaenau Gwent CBC Fixed Jan-23 4,000,000  0.20% 
Skipton Building Society Fixed Jan-23 4,000,000  0.25% 
West Bromwich Building Society Fixed Jan-23 2,000,000  0.55% 
Thurrock BC Fixed Jan-23 3,500,000  0.38% 
Cumberland Building Society Fixed Jan-23 2,000,000  0.62% 
Royal Bank of Scotland Fixed Feb-23 2,000,000  2.46% 
Goldman Sachs International Bank Fixed Feb-23 5,000,000  1.72% 
Wokingham BC Fixed Mar-23 5,000,000  1.10% 
Places for People Fixed Mar-23 5,000,000  1.00% 
Principality Building Society Fixed Mar-23 2,000,000  1.23% 
West Bromwich Building Society Fixed Mar-23 2,000,000  1.15% 
Places for People Fixed Apr-23 5,000,000  1.00% 
Places for People Fixed May-23 2,000,000  1.00% 
Places for People Fixed Jun-23 3,000,000  1.00% 
Gravesham Borough Council Fixed Apr-24 3,000,000  0.30% 
Gravesham Borough Council Fixed Mar-27 3,000,000  0.75% 
Santander Reserve Account Call           410,032  variable 
Royal Bank of Scotland Call               2,362  variable 
Royal Bank of Scotland Call             96,489  variable 
Goldman Sachs MMF  20,400,000  variable 
Blackrock MMF  4,690,000  variable 
L&G Equities Unit Trust  12,424,595  variable 
CCLA Property Fund  7,602,919  variable 

TOTAL     195,126,397    

Page 207



   Appendix E 
 
 

 
 
Note – these tables show principal investment values, whereas figures in table 1 of appendix C and 
appendix D are shown at the fair values of investments held. 

Vale of White Horse District Council investments at 31 March 2022

Counterparty Deposit Type Maturity Date Principal Rate

Principality Building Society Fixed May-22 2,000,000 0.15%

Places For People Homes Ltd Fixed Jun-22 5,000,000 0.75%

Furness Building Society Fixed Jun-22 3,000,000 0.35%

National Counties Building Society Fixed Jun-22 1,000,000 0.33%

Merthyr Tydfil CBC Fixed Jun-22 4,000,000 0.80%

National Bank of Kuwait (Int) Fixed Jun-22 5,000,000 0.23%

Newcastle Building Society Fixed Jun-22 2,500,000 0.18%

National Counties Building Society Fixed Jul-22 1,000,000 0.33%

PCC for Merseyside Fixed Aug-22 5,000,000 0.38%

Monmouthshire Building Society Fixed Aug-22 2,000,000 0.15%

National Counties Building Society Fixed Aug-22 3,000,000 0.35%

Cambridge Building Society Fixed Aug-22 1,000,000 0.25%

National Counties Building Society Fixed Sep-22 1,000,000 0.33%

Monmouthshire Building Society Fixed Sep-22 1,000,000 0.15%

Principality Building Society Fixed Sep-22 3,000,000 0.15%

Thurrock Council Fixed Sep-22 5,000,000 0.20%

Saffron Building Society Fixed Sep-22 3,000,000 0.20%

Cambridge Building Society Fixed Sep-22 2,000,000 0.25%

Furness Building Society Fixed Oct-22 3,000,000 0.30%

Goldman Sachs International Bank Fixed Nov-22 3,000,000 0.91%

Metropolitan Housing Trust Ltd Fixed Nov-22 3,000,000 1.10%

West Bromwich Building Society Fixed Nov-22 2,500,000 0.36%

Monmouthshire Building Society Fixed Dec-22 3,000,000 0.38%

Principality Building Society Fixed Dec-22 2,000,000 0.38%

Goldman Sachs International Bank Fixed Dec-22 5,000,000 1.09%

Progressive Building Society Fixed Jan-23 3,000,000 0.35%

Thurrock Council Fixed Jan-23 3,000,000 0.25%

Close Brothers Ltd Fixed Jan-23 3,000,000 0.90%

Blackpool Borough Council Fixed Jan-23 4,000,000 0.40%

Cumberland Building Society Fixed Jan-23 2,000,000 0.62%

Goldman Sachs International Bank Fixed Feb-23 3,000,000 1.68%

Goldman Sachs International Bank Fixed Mar-23 2,000,000 0.37%

Close Brothers Ltd Fixed Mar-23 2,000,000 1.50%

National Bank of Kuwait (Int) Fixed Mar-23 5,000,000 1.65%

Southern Housing Group Fixed Mar-23 5,000,000 1.00%

Thurrock Council Fixed Mar-23 2,000,000 1.17%

Yorkshire Housing Ltd Fixed Apr-23 5,000,000 1.00%

Places for People Homes Ltd Fixed Jun-23 2,000,000 1.00%

Places For People Homes Ltd Fixed Oct-23 1,000,000 1.00%

Places For People Homes Ltd Fixed Feb-24 2,000,000 1.00%

Gravesham Borough Council Fixed Apr-24 3,000,000 0.30%

Rotherham MBC Fixed Jun-24 5,000,000 variable

Kirklees Metropolitan Council Fixed Mar-25 5,000,000 0.80%

Lloyds Bank Call 8,000,000 0.04%

Goldman Sachs MMF 8,000,000 variable

LGIM MMF 8,500,000 variable

CCLA Property fund 2,000,000

GRAND TOTAL 154,500,000

Page 208



  Appendix F 
 

GLOSSARY OF TERMS 
 

Basis point (BP) 1/100th of 1%, i.e. 0.01% 

Base rate Minimum lending rate of a bank or financial institution in the UK. 

Benchmark A measure against which the investment policy or performance 
of a fund manager can be compared. 

Bill of Exchange A non-interest-bearing written order used primarily in 
international trade that binds one party to pay a fixed sum of 
money to another party at a predetermined future date.  

Callable Deposit A deposit placed with a bank or building society at a set rate for a 
set amount of time.  However, the borrower has the right to repay 
the funds on pre agreed dates, before maturity.  This decision is 
based on how market rates have moved since the deal was 
agreed.  If rates have fallen the likelihood of the deposit being 
repaid rises, as cheaper money can be found by the borrower. 

[Cash] Fund 
Management 

Fund management is the management of an investment portfolio 
of cash on behalf of a private client or an institution, the receipts 
and distribution of dividends and interest, and all other 
administrative work in connection with the portfolio. 

Certificate of 
Deposit (CD) 

Evidence of a deposit with a specified bank or building society 
repayable on a fixed date.  They are negotiable instruments and 
have a secondary market; therefore the holder of a CD is able to 
sell it to a third party before the maturity of the CD. 

Commercial 
Paper 

Short-term obligations with maturities ranging from 2 to 270 days 
issued by banks, corporations and other borrowers.  Such 
instruments are unsecured and usually discounted, although 
some may be interest bearing. 

Corporate Bond Strictly speaking, corporate bonds are those issued by 
companies.  However, the term is used to cover all bonds other 
than those issued by governments in their own currencies and 
includes issues by companies, supranational organisations and 
government agencies. 

Counterparty Another (or the other) party to an agreement or other market 
contract (e.g. lender/borrower/writer of a swap/etc.) 

Credit Default 
Swap (CDS) 

A swap designed to transfer the credit exposure of fixed income 
products between parties.  The buyer of a credit swap receives 
credit protection, whereas the seller of the swap guarantees the 
credit worthiness of the product.  By doing this, the risk of default 
is transferred from the holder of the fixed income security to the 
seller of the swap. 

Page 209



  Appendix F 

Capital 
Financing 
Requirement 
(CFR) 

The amount the council has to borrow to fund its capital 
commitments. 

CIPFA Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy. 

CLG [Department for] Communities and Local Government. 

Derivative A contract whose value is based on the performance of an 
underlying financial asset, index or other investment, e.g. an 
option is a derivative because its value changes in relation to the 
performance of an underlying stock. 

Debt 
Management 
Account Deposit 
Facility (DMADF) 

Deposit Account offered by the Debt Management Office, 
guaranteed by the UK government 

European 
Central Bank 
(ECB) 

European Central Bank – sets the central interest rates in the 
EMU area.  The ECB determines the targets itself for its interest 
rate setting policy; this is the keep inflation within a band of 0 to 
2%.  It does not accept that monetary policy is to be used to 
manage fluctuations in unemployment and growth caused by the 
business cycle. 

European and 
Monetary Union 
(EMU) 

The Economic and Monetary Union (EMU) is an umbrella 
term for the group of policies aimed at converging the economies 
of all member states of the European Union. 

Equity A share in a company with limited liability.  It generally enables 
the holder to share in the profitability of the company through 
dividend payments and capital appreciation.  Equity values can 
decrease as well as increase. 

Forward Deal The act of agreeing today to deposit funds with an institution for 
an agreed time limit, on an agreed future date, at an agreed rate. 

Forward 
Deposits 

Same as forward dealing (above). 

Fiscal Policy The government policy on taxation and welfare payments. 

GDP Gross Domestic Product. 

[UK] Gilt Registered UK government securities giving the investor an 
absolute commitment from the government to honour the debt 
that those securities represent. 

LIBID London inter-bank bid rate (to be phased out in December 2021) 

LIBOR London inter-bank offered rate (to be phased out in December 
2021)  

Page 210



  Appendix F 

Money Market 
Fund 

A well rated, highly diversified pooled investment vehicle whose 
assets mainly comprise of short-term instruments.  It is very 
similar to a unit trust, however in a MMF. 

Monetary Policy 
Committee 
(MPC) 

Government body that sets the bank rate (commonly referred to 
as being base rate).  Their primary target is to keep inflation 
within plus or minus 1% of a central target of 2% in two years 
time from the date of the monthly meeting of the committee.  
Their secondary target is to support the government in 
maintaining high and stable levels of growth and employment. 

Other Bond 
Funds 

Pooled funds investing in a wide range of bonds. 

PWLB Public Works Loan Board. 

QE Quantitative Easing. 

Retail Price 
Index 

Measurement of the monthly change in the average level of 
prices at the retail level weighted by the average expenditure 
pattern of the average person. 

Sovereign Issues 
(excl UK Gilts) 

Bonds issued or guaranteed by nation states, but excluding UK 
government bonds. 

Supranational 
Bonds 

Bonds issued by supranational bodies, e.g. European Investment 
Bank.  The bonds – also known as Multilateral Development 
Bank bonds – are generally AAA rated and behave similarly to 
gilts, but pay a higher yield (“spread”) given their relative 
illiquidity when compared with gilts. 

Treasury Bill Treasury bills are short-term debt instruments issued by the UK 
or other governments.  They provide a return to the investor by 
virtue of being issued at a discount to their final redemption 
value. 

 

Page 211



Document is Restricted

Page 212

Agenda Item 17
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	7 Hackney carriage fares
	Appendix A
	Appendix B
	Appendix C

	8 Adoption of powers from Oxfordshire County Council under Land Drainage Act
	9 Great Coxwell Conservation Area Appraisal and Boundary Review Adoption
	Appendix 1 - Boundary Review
	Appendix 2 - Consultation Statement

	10 Update on the Corporate Transformation Programme, and the Technology and Customer Workstreams
	Annex A - Technology roadmap
	Annex B - Customer Transformation Roadmap

	11 Business case for Transforming IT and Systems of Planning and Regulatory Services
	12 Corporate Performance Report - Quarter 1, 2022/23
	Background
	Strategic context
	Quarter One 2022/23 Performance Highlights
	Theme 1:  Providing the homes people need 
	Theme 2:  Tackling the climate emergency
	Theme 3:  Building healthy communities
	Theme 4:  Building stable finances
	Theme 5:  Working in partnership
	Theme 6:  Working in an open and inclusive way
	Theme 1: Providing the homes people need - performance updates against reporting measures  
	Theme 2: Tackling the climate emergency - Performance updates against reporting measures 
	Theme 3: Building healthy communities - performance updates against reporting measures 
	Theme 4: Building stable finances - performance updates against reporting measures 
	Theme 5: Working in partnership - performance updates against reporting measures 
	Theme 65: Woking in an open and inclusive way - performance updates against reporting measures 

	13 Climate Action Plan Performance Report - Quarter 1, 2022-23
	Introduction
	Quarter context
	Q1 2022/23 Performance Highlights
	Theme 1  Our ways of working
	Theme 2  Our service delivery
	Theme 3  Our people
	Theme 4  Our land
	Theme 5  Our buildings
	Theme 6  Our communities
	Theme 7  Our partners
	Theme 1: Our ways of working - Performance updates against reporting measures
	Theme 2: Our service delivery - performance updates against reporting measures 
	Theme 3: Our people - performance updates against reporting measures 
	Theme 4: Our land - performance updates against reporting measures 
	Theme 5: Our buildings - performance updates against reporting measures 
	Theme 6: Our communities - performance updates against reporting measures 
	Theme 7: Our partners - performance updates against reporting measures 

	14 Budget monitoring - quarter 1, 2022/23
	Appendix 1 - proposed carry forwards
	Appendix 2 - capital budget June 2022

	15 Treasury outturn 2021/22
	Appendix A - Interest rate forecasts
	Appendix B - Prudential Limits
	Appendix C - South Treasury activities
	Appendix D - Vale Treasury activities
	Appendix E - Treasury Investments as at 31 March 2022
	Appendix F - Glossary of terms

	17 Business case for Transforming IT and Systems of Planning and Regulatory Services

